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Nordea Bank Finland Plc is part of the Nordea Group
Nordea’s vision is to be a Great European bank,
acknowledged for its people, creating superior edior
customers and shareholders. We are making it ples&b
our customers to reach their goals by providingidev
range of products, services and solutions withinkiag,
asset management and insurance. Nordea has arouind 1
million customers, approximately 1,400 branch efiand

a leading netbanking position with 5.9 million estamers.
The Nordea share is listed on the NASDAQ OMX Nordic

Exchange in Stockholm, Helsinki and Copenhagen.
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Nordea Bank Finland Group
Five-year overview of the Directors’ Report

Income statement

EURM 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net interest income 1,202 1,812 1,531 1,393 1,210
Net fee and commission income 241 215 315 308 271
Net gains/losses on items at fair value 1,325 770 586 430 301
Equity method 4 -4 2 31 20
Other income 53 29 169 297 60
Total operating income 2,825 2,822 2,603 2,459 1,862

General administrative expenses:

Staff costs -599 -537 -515 -504 -483
Other expenses -432 -397 -375 -359 -371
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment chardes o
tangible and intangible assets -37 -33 -29 -18 -48
Total operating expenses -1,068 -967 -919 -881 -902
Profit before loan losses 1,757 1,855 1,684 1,578 960
Net loan losses -381 -133 20 63 -46
Impairment of securities held as financial non-entr
assets - - 0 -2 1
Operating profit 1,376 1,722 1,704 1,639 915
Income tax expense -373 -389 -339 -358 191
Net profit for the year 1,003 1,333 1,365 1,281 1,106

Balance sheet

EURmM 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Treasury bills and interest-bearing securities 8,90 5,620 4,364 4,038 3,953
Loans to credit institutions 59,037 47,447 45,549 47,031 39,758
Loans to the public 65,723 68,293 60,597 52,463 46,264
Derivatives 74,520 85,662 30,731 23,692 28,165
Other assets 12,979 12,939 6,013 4,122 5,571
Total assets 221,165 219,961 147,254 131,346 123,711
Deposits by credit institutions 44,344 37,713 26,789 29,233 21,219
Deposits and borrowings from the public 44,526 45,279 41,709 35,689 35,092
Debt securities in issue 39,276 31,263 29,635 22,680 21,430
Derivatives 73,237 87,291 32,012 24,057 28,069
Subordinated liabilities 437 1,238 1,270 1,665 1,904
Other liabilities 8,373 5,902 5,046 4,543 3,793
Equity 10,972 11,275 10,793 13,479 12,204
Total liabilities and equity 221,165 219,961 147,254 131,346 123,711

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 3



Ratios and key figures

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Return on equity, % 9.0 12.1 11.2 10.0 5.6
Cost/income ratio, % 38 34 35 36 48
Tier 1 capital ratio% 14.0 12.0 13.7 13.8 17.8
Total capital ratio, % 14.6 13.3 15.3 16.0 20.2
Tier 1 capital, EURm 10,099 9,807 9,725 8,998 11,426
Risk-weighted assets, EURm 72,092 81,720 71,044 65,270 64,058
Number of employees (full-time equivalents) 9,218 9,634 9,347 9,060 8,910
Average number of employees 10,152 10,412 10,010 9,843 9,717
Salaries and remuneration, EURm -442 -429 -392 -372 -366
Return of total assets, % 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.0 0.6
Equity to total assets, % 5.0 5.1 7.3 10.3 9.9
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Business definitions and exchange rates

These definitions apply to the descriptions inAmaual Report.

Capital base

The capital base includes the sum of the Tier 1
capital and the supplementary capital consisting of
subordinated loans and the deduction for expected
shortfall (the difference between expected losses
and provisions, IRB).

Tier 1 capital

The proportion of the capital base, which includes
consolidated shareholders’ equity excluding
proposed dividend, tax assets as well as goodwill i
the banking operations and half of the expected
shortfall deduction.

Expected losses

Expected losses reflect the normalised loss lefvel o
the individual loan exposure over a business cycle
as well as various portfolios.

Risk-weighted amounts

Total assets and off-balance-sheet items valued on
the basis of the credit and market risks, as veell a
the operational risks, in accordance with reguieio
governing capital adequacy, excluding book value
of shares which have been deducted from the
capital base and goodwiill.

Tier 1 capital ratio
Tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk-weighted
amounts.

Total capital ratio
Capital base as a percentage of risk-weighted
amounts.

Return on equity (ROE)

Operating profit less taxes as a percentage of
average shareholders’ equity including minority
interests. Average equity is the mean of equity at
the beginning and end of the year.

Cost/income ratio
Total operating expenses divided by total operating
income.

Return on total assets (ROA)

Operating profit less taxes as a percentage of
average total assets. Average total assets are
calculated as the mean of total assets at the
beginning and end of the year.

Equity to total assets
Total shareholders’ equity including minority
interests as a percentage of total assets at yelar-e

Exchange rates appliedend of year rates as at 31 December 2009)

EUR 1.0000 uUsD 1.4406 DKK 7.4418 EEK 15.6466
GBP 0.8881 CHF 1.4836 LTL 3.4528 LVL 0.7093
NOK 8.3000 PLN 4.1045 SEK 10.2520 SGD 2.0194
Rating, Nordea Bank Finland

31 Dec 2009 Short Long

Moody's P-1 Aa2

S&P A-1+ AA-

Fitch F1+ AA-

DBRS R-1 (high) AA
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Nordea Bank Finland
Director’s Report

Throughout this report the terms “Nordea Bank
Finland”, “NBF” and “Bank Group” refer to Nordea
Bank Finland Plc and its subsidiaries. Nordea Bank
Finland Plc is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nordea
Bank AB (publ), the parent company in the Nordea
Group. The Nordea Group is referred to as
“Nordea”.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc is domiciled in Helsinki
and its business identity code is 1680235-8.

As part of the Nordea Group, NBF operates in the
banking business. All the operations of NBF are
integrated into the operations of the Nordea Group,
whose annual report, with activities and earnings
reported by the customer areas, encompasses the
operations of NBF in their entirety.

Legal structure

Nordea aims at continuous simplification of itsdeg
structure and as regards the Nordic banks thesaim i
that Nordea Bank AB (publ) will be converted into
a European company, a “Societas Europaea”,
(“SE™), in accordance with the European Company
Statute.

Among other things, the conversion is conditional
on Nordea obtaining necessary approvals from the
relevant authorities. The transformation is expecte
to lead to improved operational efficiency, reduced
operational risk and complexity as well as enhanced
capital efficiency.

Nordea is still awaiting satisfactory regulatorydan
legislative solutions, particularly to the deposit
guarantee issue. The final regulatory responses to
the financial crisis that began in 2007 are furtyedtr

to be seen and to be evaluated. Nordea is following
up and analysing the changes in the process, which
are not expected to be finalised during 2010.

Subsidiaries and foreign branches

NBF has subsidiaries in Finland and abroad. The
most significant subsidiary is Nordea Finance
Finland Ltd, which is responsible for the Group’s
finance company operations in Finland. The Nordea
Finance Finland Group comprises one Finnish
financial institution and several real estate
companies, four associated companies as well as
four subsidiaries operating in Poland and in the
Baltic market: Nordea Finance Polska S.A., Nordea
Finance Estonia Ltd, Nordea Finance Latvia Ltd and
Nordea Finance Lithuania Ltd.
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NBF has foreign branches in Frankfurt, London,
New York, Riga, Singapore, Tallinn and Vilnius
and on Grand Cayman. NBF has no foreign
representative offices.

Changes in the group structure

Nordea Bank Finland Plc has established three new
subsidiaries to manage residential real estateein t
Baltic countries, Ol Promano Est, SIA Promano Lat
and UAB Promano Lit.

During the year, one subsidiary, Power Partners Qy,
was dissolved. Nordea Bank Finland Plc owned
31% and Nordea Finance Finland Ltd 49.5% of the
shares in Power Partners Oy.

Nordea Bank Finland PlIc increased its ownership in
the associated company Realia Holding Oy during
2009. NBF's share of the total capital invested is
thereafter 40.3%.

Arfin Oy and Eka-kiinteistdt Oy, associated
companies of Nordea Bank Finland Plc, were
dissolved during 2009.

Lines of business, results for the financial period
and total assets of the above companies are shown
in the Notes to the financial statements (note 46).

In addition, some small subsidiaries have been
disposed of or merged during the year. These
disposals had no material effect on the Group’s
result.

Business development in 2009

Even in the very difficult environment the financia
industry has faced in 2009, NBF's business has
continued to develop strongly, with the focus on
further enhancing business relations with core
customers and also acquiring new customers. Due
to its strong position NBF was able to continue to
develop business relations with customers and
support existing customers, while adhering to
prudent risk management policy.

Total income was stable driven by strong growth in
customer driven capital markets operations. Profit
before loan losses decreased by 5% while operating
profit decreased by 20% following the increase in
loan losses. Profit before tax was EUR 1,376m
(2008: 1,722), and return on equity was 9.0%
(12.2).



Comments on the income statement

Operating income

Total operating incom&as stable and amounted to
EUR 2,825m (2,822), which was mainly the result
of strong growth in net gains and losses on itetms a
fair value.

Net interest incomdecreased by 34% to EUR
1,202m (1,812) compared to last year, with lending
and deposit volumes being lower than last year.
Margins increased both in corporate lending and
household mortgages whereas deposit margins were
considerably lower than last year, following lower
market interest rates. Lending margins have
increased reflecting continued re-pricing of credit
risk. Total lending to the public decreased by 4% t
EUR 66bn.

Deposit volumes decreased by 2% to EUR 44bn.
The exceptionally low interest rate level has ked t
an outflow from deposit accounts to more profitable
investments e.g. equities and funds.

Net fee and commission incomereased by 12%

to EUR 241m (215). Commission income increased
by 12% to EUR 611m (545). Savings related
commissions decreased by 12% due to lower Assets
under Management on average. Additionally, the
sale of international global custody operations in
2008 decreased income from custody operations.
Lending-related commissions were up 22%
reflecting increased guarantee fees as a conseguenc
of the centralisation of Trade Finance operations t
Finland. Payment and card fees increased by 15%.
Commission expenses increased by 12% to EUR
370m (330) mainly as a result of higher transaction
fees.

Net gains/losses on items at fair valnereased by
72% to an all time high level and totalled EUR
1,325m (770). The customer-driven capital markets
activities continued to perform very strongly in
2009, with a high demand for risk management
products in both Nordic Banking and in Institutibna
& International Banking. Competition in the Nordic
markets increased towards the end of the year,
which resulted in tightening spreads across the
markets.

Profit from companies accounted for under the
equity methodvas EUR 4m compared to a negative
income of EUR 4m last year.

Other operating incomacreased to EUR 53m (29)
mainly due to the income from the sale of the
international global custody operations to J.P.
Morgan last year.
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Operating expenses
Total operating expenséscreased by 10% to EUR
1,068m (967).

Staff costsncreased by 12% to EUR 599m (537).
The increase reflects general increases in wagks an
restructuring reservations. Profit related salaries
were lower than last year whereas the allocation to
profit sharing increased markedly. Pension expenses
increased mainly due to one-off items both in 2008
and 2009. In 2009 the number of employees,
measured by full-time equivalents, decreased by
416 and amounted to 9,218 at the end of the year.

Other expenseamounted to EUR 432m (397), up
by 9% compared with the preceding year. Higher
business volumes and investments in growth areas
mainly explain the increase in IT and other
operating expenses.

Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets
increased somewhat to EUR 37m (33).

Loan losses

Net loan losseamounted to EUR 381m (133).
Provisions for both collectively and individually
assessed loans were increased. Reversals and
recoveries were somewhat higher than in the
preceding year, thus decreasing net loan losses. Th
increase in provisions stems largely from the
economic slowdown in the three Baltic countries.
Net loan losses in 2009 correspond to a loan loss
ratio of 56 basis points compared to a loan loss ra
of 22 basis points in 2008.

Individual loan losses amounted to 39 basis points
in 2009 compared to 15 basis points in 2008.
Collective provisions net amounted to 17 basis
points in 2009 and to 7 basis points in 2008.

Loan losses in the Baltic countries totalled EUR
209m and total allowances amounted to EUR 319m,
of which collective allowances were EUR 188m.

Net loan losses continue to stem from a large
number of smaller and medium-sized exposures
rather than from a few large exposures.

Taxes

Income tax expensegere EUR 373m (389). The
effective tax rate amounted to 27% compared to the
tax rate of 23% in 2008. The tax rate in 2009 is
higher than the Finnish legal tax rate of 26% mainl
due to uncreditable foreign taxes.



Net profit
Net profit for the yeaamounted to EUR 1,003m
(1,333). Return on equity was 9.0% (12.1).

Comments on the balance sheet

Total assets were fairly stable and amounted to EUR
221bn (220). All balance sheet items in foreign
currencies are translated into euros at the actual
year-end currency exchange rates. See Note 1 for
more information regarding accounting policies.

Assets

Consolidatedotal assetamounted to EUR 221bn
at year-end, showing an increase of EUR 1bn
compared to the previous year-end.

Loans to credit institutionmcreased to EUR 59bn
(47) reflecting higher amount of intra-group
deposits.

Loans to the publidecreased by approximately

EUR 3bn to EUR 66bn (68). The housing market in
Finland has picked up during 2009 and traditional
domestic mortgage lending to household customers
increased by 6%.

Corporate lending decreased by 12% compared to
the previous year totalling EUR 32bn (37). Main
reason for the decrease is the stagnated corporate
business environment. Consumer lending to
households continued to show growth and it
increased by 7%.

Treasury bills and interest-bearing securities
increased by EUR 3bn and totalled EUR 9bn at
year-end (6), reflecting a higher liquidity buffer
compared to the end of 2008.

Other assetslecreased by approximately EUR
11bn, mainly reflecting the lower balance sheet
values of derivatives as a result of changes in
exchange and interest rates.

Liabilities

Total liabilitiesamounted to EUR 210bn (209),
showing an increase of approximately EUR 1bn.

Deposits by credit institutioniacreased by
approximately EUR 7bn to EUR 44bn (38)
reflecting mainly increased intra-group transaction

Deposits and borrowings from the pubtiecreased
by approximately EUR 1bn to EUR 44bn (45).
Deposits from the public constitute the Bank
Group’s primary source of funding. Balances
especially in time deposits decreased significantly
during the year due to the outflow from deposits to
funds and equity markets.
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Debt securities in issuacreased by approximately
EUR 8bn to EUR 39bn (31). The issued securities
mainly comprise short-term debt instruments with a
maturity under one year.

Other liabilitiesincluding subordinated liabilities
decreased by approximately EUR 12bn mainly
reflecting lower balance sheet values of derivative

Equity

Shareholders’ equity amounted to EUR 11,275m at
the beginning of 2009. Net profit for the year was
EUR 1,001m. Total equity amounted to EUR
10,972m at the end of 2009.

Appropriation of distributable funds

The parent company'’s distributable funds on 31

December 2009 were EUR 7,738m of which the

profit for the year is EUR 987m. It is proposedttha

e adividend of EUR 600m be paid and

e« EUR 0.2m be reserved for public good
purposes

» whereafter the distributable funds will total
EUR 7,138m

Off-balance sheet commitments

The bank’s business operations include a
considerable proportion of off-balance sheet items
such as guarantees, documentary credits and credit
commitments. Credit commitments and unutilised
credit lines amounted to EUR 17.8bn (16.1), while
guarantees and granted but not utilised documentary
credits as well as other off-balance sheet
commitments, excluding nominal values of

derivative contracts, totalled EUR 17.7bn (17.6).

The nominal values of derivatives increased to EUR
4,512bn (3,781).

Capital adequacy and ratings

At year-end, the Group'’s total capital ratio was
14.6% (13.3) and the Tier 1 ratio was 14.0% (12.0).
Risk-weighted assets after transition rules totialle
EUR 72bn (82).

A debenture loan with a nominal value of EUR
600m was prematurely paid back in March 2009
with the permission of FIN-FSA.

Together with a number of Nordic banks, Nordea
was downgraded when Moody’s conducted a
calibration of ratings for the whole sector. Thade
term rating for Nordea Bank Finland Plc was
lowered from Aal to Aa2 in September 2009.



Risk, liquidity and capital management

Risk, liquidity and capital management are key
success factors in the financial services industry.
Exposure to risk is inherent in providing financial
services, and Nordea assumes a variety of risks in
its ordinary business activities, the most sigaific
being credit risk related to loans and receivables.
The maintaining risk awareness in the organisation
is incorporated in Nordea’s business strategies.
Nordea has clearly defined risk, liquidity and ¢api
management frameworks, including policies and
instructions for different risk types and for the
capital structure.

Management principles and control

Board of Directors and Board Credit Committee
The Board of Directors has the ultimate
responsibility for limiting and monitoring the
Group’s risk exposure as well as for setting the
targets for the capital ratios. Risk is measuredl an
reported according to common principles and
policies approved by the Board of Directors, which
also decides on policies for credit, market, lidtyid
and operational risk management and the ICAAP.
All policies are reviewed at least annually.

In the credit instructions, the Board of Directors
decides on powers-to-act for credit committees at
different levels within the customer areas. These
authorisations vary for different decision-making
levels, mainly in terms of size of limits, and aieo
dependent on the internal rating of customers. The
Board of Directors also decides on the limits for
market and liquidity risk in the Group.

The Board Credit Committee monitors the
development of the credit portfolio including
industry and major customer exposures and
confirms industry policies approved by the
Executive Credit Committee (ECC).

CEO and GEM

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has overall
responsibility for developing and maintaining
effective risk, liquidity and capital management
principles and control.

The CEO in Group Executive Management (GEM)
decides on the targets for the Group’s risk
management regarding SIIR as well as, within the
scope of resolutions adopted by the Board of
Directors, the allocation of the market risk limits
and liquidity risk limits to the risk-taking units
Group Treasury and Markets. The limits are set in
accordance with the business strategies and are
reviewed at least annually. The heads of the units
allocate the respective limits within the unit and
may introduce more detailed limits and other risk
mitigating techniques such as stop loss rules.
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The CEO and GEM regularly review reports on risk
exposures and have established the following
committees for risk, liquidity and capital
management:

» The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
chaired by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
prepares issues of major importance concerning
the Group'’s financial operations, financial risks
as well as capital management for decision by
the CEO in GEM.

» Capital Planning Forum (CPF), chaired by the
CFO, monitors the development of the required
(internal and regulatory) capital and the capital
base and also decides upon capital planning
activities within the Group.

» The Risk Committee, chaired by the Chief Risk
Officer (CRO), monitors developments of risks
on an aggregated level.

» The ECC and Group Credit Committee (GCC),
chaired by the CRO, decide on major credit risk
limits and industry policies for the Group.

Credit risk limits are granted as individual

limits for customers or consolidated customer
groups and as industry limits for certain defined
industries.

CRO and CFO

The CRO is, through the unit Group Credit & Risk
Control, responsible for the risk management
framework, consisting of policies, instructions and
guidelines for the whole Group.

The CFO is, through the unit Group Corporate
Centre, responsible for the capital management
framework including required capital as well as the
capital base. Group Treasury, within Group
Corporate Centre, is responsible for SIIR and
liquidity risk.

Each customer area and product area is primarily
responsible for managing the risks in its operation
including identification, control and reporting, ikeh
Group Credit & Risk Control consolidates and
monitors the risks on Group level and on other
organisational levels.

Monitoring and reporting

The control environment in Nordea is based on the
principles for segregation of duties and
independence. Monitoring and reporting of risk is
conducted on a daily basis for market and liquidity
risk, on a monthly and quarterly basis for creidik r
and on a quarterly basis for operational risk.

Risk reporting is regularly made to GEM and to the
Board of Directors. Group Internal Audit makes an
independent evaluation of the processes regarding
risk and capital management in accordance with the
annual audit plan.



Risk management

Credit risk management

Group Credit and Risk Control is responsible fa th
credit risk management framework, consisting of
policies, instructions and guidelines for the Group

Each customer area and product area is primarily
responsible for managing the credit risks in its
operations, while Group Credit and Risk Control
consolidates and monitors the credit risks on both
Group and sub levels.

Within the powers to act granted by the Board of
Directors, credit risk limits are approved by
decision-making authorities on different levels in
the organisation.

The responsibility for a credit exposure lies wath

customer responsible unit. Customers are assigned a

rating or score in accordance with the Nordea
framework for quantification of credit risk.

Credit decision-making structure for main operations

Nordea - Board of Directors/Board Credit Committee
Policy matters/Instructions/Monitoring

Nordea Bank
Denmark
Board of Directors

Nordea Bank Finland
Board of Directors
Reporting

Nordea Bank Norway
Board of Directors
Reporting

| Executive Credit Committee |

| Group Credit Committee |

Nordic Banking Trade Financial Shipping, New
Country Credit and Insti- Oil Euro-
Committee Project tutions Services pean
Finance & Markets
Inter-
Region national
Decision-making Credit Credit Credit
Authority Com- Com- Credit Com-
mittee mittee Com- mittee
mittee
Branch
Decision-making
Authority

Credit risk definition and identification

Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss if
counterparts fail to fulfil their agreed obligat®n

and the pledged collateral does not cover the slaim
Credit risk stems mainly from various forms of
lending, but also from guarantees and documentary
credits, counterparty credit risk in derivatives
contracts, transfer risk attributable to the transf
money from another country and settlement risk.
Risks in specific industries are followed by indyst
monitoring groups and managed through industry
policies, which establish requirements and limits o
the overall industry exposure.

Credit risk appetite

Nordea has defined its credit risk appetite as an
expected loan loss level of 25 basis points over th
cycle. Net loan losses over the past years show an
average not exceeding this level.
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Individual and collective assessment of

impairment

Throughout the process of identifying and

mitigating credit impairments, Nordea works
continuously to review the quality of the credit
exposures. Weak and impaired exposures are
closely and continuously monitored and reviewed at
least on a quarterly basis in terms of current
performance, business outlook, future debt service
capacity and the possible need for provisions.

An exposure is impaired, and a provision is
recognised, if there is objective evidence based on
loss events or observable data that the customer’s
future cash flow is impacted to the extent thalt ful
repayment is unlikely, collateral included. Theesiz
of the provision is equal to the estimated lossdei
the difference between the book value and the
discounted value of the future cash flow, including
the value of pledged collateral. Impaired exposures
can be either performing or non-performing.
Exposures that have been past due more than 90
days are automatically regarded as in default, and
reported as non-performing and impaired or not
impaired depending on the deemed loss potential.

In addition to individual impairment testing of all
individually significant customers, collective
impairment testing is performed for groups of
customers that have not been found to be impaired
on individual level. The collective impairment is
based on the migration of rated and scored
customers in the credit portfolio. The assessmént o
collective impairment reacts to up- and down-
ratings of customers as well as to new customers
and customers leaving the portfolio. Also customers
going to and from default affect the calculation.
Collective impairment is assessed quarterly foheac
legal unit. The rationale for this two-step procedu
with both individual and collective assessmenbis t
ensure that all incurred losses are accountedpfor u
to and including each balance sheet day.

Further information on credit risk management and
credit risk analysis is presented in the Group’s
Capital Adequacy and Risk Management Report
(Pillar 3) 2009, which is available on
www.nordea.com and also in Note 47 to the
Financial statements of the Annual Report.

Credit portfolio

Credit risk exposure is measured and presented as
the principal amount of on-balance sheet claims, ie
loans to credit institutions and the public, anfi of
balance sheet potential claims on customers and
counterparts, net after allowances. Exposure also
includes the risk related to derivatives contractd
securities financing.
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Credit risk exposure, loans and receivables

(excluding cash and balances at central banksettidreent risk exposure)

Group Parent company
EURmM 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008
To credit institutions 59,037 47,447 64,054 52,629
To the public 65,723 68,293 60,053 62,479
- of which corporate 32,412 36,972 29,439 33,874
- of which household 32,725 30,732 30,028 28,016
- of which public sector 586 589 586 589
Total loans 124,760 115,740 124,107 115,108
Off-balance credit exposute 35,546 33,667 32,830 30,976
Counterparty risk exposufe 27,684 26,383 27,684 26,383
Treasury bills / interest-bearing securities 8,906 5,620 8,906 5,620
Total credit risk exposure in the banking operatiors 196,896 181,410 193,527 178,087

* Of which for corporate customers approx. 90%

2 After close-out netting and collateral agreements, including current market value exposure as well as potential future exposure.

NBF's total loans have decreased by 4% to EUR
66bn during 2009 (68). Including off-balance sheet
exposures, the total credit risk exposure at yadr e
was EUR 197bn (181). The portion of total lending
going to corporate customers was 49% (54) and to
household customers 50% (45). Loans to credit
institutions, mainly in the form of inter-bank
deposits, increased to EUR 59bn at the end of 2009
(47).

Loans to corporate customers

Loans to corporate customers at the end of 2009
amounted to EUR 32bn (37), down 12%, while
lending to household customers increased by 6% to
EUR 33bn (31).

Real estate remains the largest sector in NBF's
lending portfolio, EUR 8.0bn (8.8). There is a high
level of collateral coverage, especially for expesu
which are assigned lower rating grades (3+ or
lower).

The distribution of loans to corporate customers by
size of loans shows a high degree of diversificatio
where approx. 79% of the corporate volume is for
loans on a scale of up to EUR 50m per customer.
This distribution has been relatively stable inergc
years.

All credit risk mitigations are an inherent parttbé
credit decision process. In every credit decisioth a
review are considered the valuation of collaterals

are considered as well as the adequacy of covenants
and other risk mitigations.

Pledging of collateral is the main credit risk
mitigation technique. In corporate exposures, the
main collateral types are real estate mortgages,
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floating charges and leasing objects. Collateral
coverage is higher for exposures to financially
weaker customers than for those which are
financially strong.

Regarding large exposures syndication of loans is
the primary tool for managing concentration risk
while credit risk mitigation by the use of credit
default swaps has been done to a limited extent.

Covenants in credit agreements do not substitute
collaterals but may be of great help as a
complement to both secured and unsecured
exposures. All exposures of substantial size and
complexity include appropriate covenants. Financial
covenants are designed to react on early warning
signs and are followed up carefully.

Loans to household customers

In 2009, mortgage loans and consumer loans
increased to EUR 25.6bn and EUR 7.2bn
respectively. The portion of mortgage loans out of
total household loans was 78% (78).Collateral
coverage is high for mortgage loans to household
customers, whereas consumer loans to this segment
have a lower degree of collateral.

Geographical distribution

Lending to the public distributed by borrower
domicile shows that the Nordic market accounts for
78% (87). Apart from the Baltic countries other EU
countries represent the main part of the lending
outside the Nordic countries. At the end of 2009,
lending to customers in the Baltic countries was
EUR 7.7bn (8.2)
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Loans to the public by country and industry

Group

31 Dec 2009, EURm Finland Baltic Poland Total 2009  Total 2008
Energy (oil, gas etc) 378 105 483 413
Metals and mining materials 391 15 406 848
Paper and forest materials 911 46 957 1,241
Other materials (building materials etc) 1,698 267 1,965 1,929
Industrial capital goods 816 40 856 1,203
Industrial commercial services etc 1,219 197 1,416 1,867
Construction and engineering 831 274 1,105 1,245
Shipping and offshore 3,141 15 3,156 3,353
Transportation 920 416 1,336 1,128
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc) 772 101 873 593
Media and leisure 641 145 786 1,002
Retail trade 2,211 578 2,789 3,093
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc) 1,760 245 2,005 1,990
Health care and pharmaceuticals 269 19 288 402
Financial institutions 1,179 116 1,295 1,691
Real estate 6,745 1,291 8,036 8,802
IT software, hardware and services 360 21 381 477
Telecommunication equipment 41 9 50 518
Telecommunication operators 379 6 385 263
Utilities (distribution and productions) 976 353 1,329 1,414
Other, public and organisations 2,298 158 59 2,515 3,500
Corporate loans 27,936 4,417 59 32,412 36,972
Household mortgages 22,652 2,904 25,556 24,018
Household consumer 7,169 - 7,169 6,714
Public sector 162 424 586 589
Total 57,919 7,745 59 65,723 68,293
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Loans to the public by country and industry

Parent company

31 Dec 2009, EURm Finland Baltic Poland  Total 2009  Total 2008
Energy (oil, gas etc) 377 105 482 411
Metals and mining materials 358 5 363 802
Paper and forest materials 823 19 842 1,130
Other materials (building materials etc) 1,392 232 1,624 1,428
Industrial capital goods 661 33 694 1,039
Industrial commercial services etc 922 123 1,045 1,615
Construction and engineering 652 195 847 923
Shipping and offshore 3,138 14 3,152 3,345
Transportation 472 314 786 577
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc) 714 90 804 509
Media and leisure 520 121 641 848
Retail trade 1,935 501 2,436 2,701
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc) 1,527 230 1,757 1,737
Health care and pharmaceuticals 214 9 223 336
Financial institutions 1,168 113 1,281 1,669
Real estate 6,730 1,286 8,016 8,785
IT software, hardware and services 303 16 319 442
Telecommunication equipment 37 7 44 487
Telecommunication operators 370 5 375 243
Utilities (distribution and productions) 936 346 1,282 1,368
Other, public and organisations 2,397 29 - 2,426 3,479
Corporate loans 25,646 3,793 - 29,439 33,874
Household mortgages 22,775 2,781 25,556 24,018
Household consumer 4,472 - 4,472 3,998
Public sector 164 422 586 589
Total 53,057 6,996 - 60,053 62,479
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Rating and scoring distribution Rating distribution for the Corporate portfolio
One way in which credit quality can be assessed is 16 %
through analysis of the distribution across rating 4% mo-
grades, for rated corporate customers and o]
institutions, as well as risk grades for scored ool M
household and small business customers, i.e. retail

exposures.

8%
6% A
Following the economic downturn, the credit
quality weakened in 2009. Mainly the corporate 2ol

credit portfolio migrated downwards in 2009. About H D e
71% (77) of the corporate exposure is rated 4— or O e e 6 o s 5 a4 4 e s a2 2 2 1L
higher. The portion of institutional exposures date Rating grade

5- or higher is 96% (95). About 88% (88) of the

retail exposures are scored C- or higher.

4% -

Risk grade distribution for the Retail portfolio

. 35 %
Impaired loans

Impaired loans, gross, increased to EUR 1,801m 30%1
from EUR 971m during 2009 as the result of the 25%
current downturn and worsened economic
conditions for many customers. Allowances for
individually assessed loans increased to EUR 447m

20 % -

15 % +

from EUR 258m. Allowances for collectively 10%

assessed exposures were EUR 316m (174). The "

ratio of total allowances to cover impaired loans, H H H H H IR
gross, was 42% (44). The main increases in O e A A B B B oD b e e
impaired loans were in household mortgages and Risk grade

household consumer financing as well as in the
corporate sector Real estate.

Past due loans to corporate customers that are not
considered impaired decreased to EUR 307m (351).

Impaired loans, allowances and ratios
The volume of past due loans to household P

customers increased to EUR 475m (416) in 2009. Group Parent company
- : : : Basis points of
_In the _Baltlc countrles,_gross impaired Ioan_s, loans 2009 2008 2009 2008
including both performing and non-performing Gross impaired
loans, amounted to EUR 535m, corresponding to loans 143 84 126 72
690 basis points of loans. Total allowances for the - of which
. . . performing 74 52 71 50
Baltic countries amounted to EUR 319m, of which - of which
collective allowances were EUR 188m. Total non-performing 69 31 55 22

allowances amounted to 412m basis points of loans,  Total allowance

giving a provisioning ratio of 60%. ratic’ 61 37 54 34
Provisioning ratid 0.42 0.44 0.43 0.47
! Excluding off-balance sheet items

2 Total allowances in relation to total loans before allowances
3 Total allowances in relation to impaired loans
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Impaired loans gross and allowances by country anishdustry

Group

Allowances Provisioning

(individual+ ratio (allowances/
31 Dec 2009, EURm Finland Baltic Poland collective) impaired loans)
Energy (oil, gas etc) - - -
Metals and mining materials 2 1 0.49
Paper and forest materials 5 1.17
Other materials (building materials etc) 70 28 70 0.72
Industrial capital goods 67 2 28 0.41
Industrial commercial services etc 100 7 36 0.34
Construction and engineering 20 50 41 0.58
Shipping and offshore 43 0 7 0.17
Transportation 41 5 20 0.44
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc) 73 26 0.34
Media and leisure 45 8 11 0.21
Retail trade 83 16 50 0.51
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc) 38 18 15 0.28
Health care and pharmaceuticals 7 - 1 0.10
Financial institutions 33 3 45 1.28
Real estate 65 135 113 0.57
IT software, hardware and services 35 12 0.34
Telecommunication equipment 7 13 1.11
Telecommunication operators - 1 291
Utilities (distribution and productions) 1 12 0.26
Other, public and organisations 1 38 80 1.96
Corporate 733 334 581 0.54
Household mortgages 248 177 132 0.31
Household consumer 289 24 72 0.23
Public sector - - - -
Total impaired loans 1,270 535 2 1,807
Allowanceg 464 319 2 785
Provisioning ratio 0.37 0.60 1.00 0.43
Y Includes EUR 6m impaired loans related to off-balance sheet items.
?Includes EUR 22m allowances related to off-balance sheet items.
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Impaired loans gross and allowances by country anishdustry

Parent company

Allowances Provisioning

(individual+ ratio (allowances/
31 Dec 2009, EURm Finland Baltic Poland collective) impaired loans)
Energy (oil, gas etc) - - - -
Metals and mining materials 1 1 0.54
Paper and forest materials 5 1 1.30
Other materials (building materials etc) 64 23 70 0.81
Industrial capital goods 62 0 28 0.45
Industrial commercial services etc 93 4 36 0.37
Construction and engineering 20 a7 41 0.60
Shipping and offshore 39 7 0.19
Transportation 41 20 0.48
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc) 70 26 0.37
Media and leisure 39 11 0.23
Retail trade 80 12 50 0.55
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc) 38 13 15 0.30
Health care and pharmaceuticals 7 - 1 0.12
Financial institutions 31 3 45 1.33
Real estate 64 135 113 0.57
IT software, hardware and services 31 0 12 0.37
Telecommunication equipment 2 13 1.30
Telecommunication operators 0 0 1 3.21
Utilities (distribution and productions) 0 12 0.28
Other, public and organisations 0 0 - 28 453.20
Corporate 687 267 - 529 0.55
Household mortgages 249 177 133 0.31
Household consumer 172 24 35 0.18
Public sector - - - -
Total impaired loans* 1,108 468 - 1,576
Allowance¢ 403 294 - 697
Provisioning ratio 0.36 0.63 - 0.44
Y Includes EUR 6m impaired loans related to off-balance sheet items.
?Includes EUR 22m allowances related to off-balance sheet items.
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Net loan losses

Net loan loss provisions in NBF were EUR 381m
(133). EUR 277m (107) relates to corporate
customers and EUR 104m (26) relates to household
customers. Collective provisions net increased to
EUR 316m from 174m in 2009 while specific
provisions increased to EUR 447m from EUR
258m. The main losses were in housing loans as
well as in the corporate sectors Real estate and
Other materials.

The loan loss ratio in 2009 was 56 bp compared to
22 bp in 2008. Net loan losses as well as impaired
loans continue to stem from a large number of
smaller and medium-sized exposures rather than
from a few large exposures.

Restructured loans and receivables for 2009 are
close to zero before and after restructuring. Asset
taken over for protection of claims consist mostly
of other assets.

Baltic countries
The recession in the Baltic countries has affected
the credit quality as well as the collateral values

Net loan losses and loan loss ratios

In the Baltic countries, gross impaired loans
amounted to EUR 535m or 690 basis points of total
loans, compared with EUR 141m or 174 basis
points at the end of 2008.

The total allowances for the Baltic countries & th
end of 2009 corresponded to 412 basis points of the
lending portfolio, an increase from 157 basis point
at the end of 2008. The provisioning ratio in the
Baltic countries was 60%. In the Baltic countries,
the loan loss ratio was 257 basis points.

Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk is the risk that Nordea’s
counterpart in a FX, interest, commodity, equity or
credit derivative contract defaults prior to mattyri
of the contract and that Nordea at that time has a
claim on the counterpart. The total counterparty
credit risk exposure at the end of 2009 was EUR
27.7bn, of which the current exposure represents
EUR 6.3bn. 57% of the total exposure and 30% of
the current exposure was towards Financial
institutions.

Baltic countries, net loan losses and impaired loan

Group Parent company Group Parent company
Basis points of loans 2009 2008 2009 2008 Basis points of loans 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loan losses, EURmM 381 133 313 113 Net loan losses, EURmM 209 40 180 38
Loan loss ratid 55,8 21,9 50,1 20,5 - of which collective 90 17 89 17
- of which individual 38,9 14,6 32,9 12,8 Loan loss ratio,
- of which collective 16,9 73 172 7.7 basis points 257 67 248 72
* Net loan losses divided by the opening balance of loans to the public Gross impaired Ioans,
EURmM 535 141 468 115
Gross impaired loans,
basis points 690 174 669 158
Total allowances,
EURmM 319 127 294 125
Total allowance ratio,
basis points 412 157 421 172
Provisioning ratid 0.60 0.90 0.63 1.09
Total allowances in relation to gross impaired loans
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 17



Market risk

Market risk is the risk of a loss in the marketueal
of portfolios and financial instruments as a restilt
movements in financial market variables.

Market price risk and market price risk appetite
The customer-driven trading activity of Nordea
Markets and the investment and liquidity portfolios
of Group Treasury are the key contributors to
market risk. For all other banking activities, the
basic principle is that market risks are eliminabgd
matching assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items.

For Group Treasury, the Board of Directors has set
the maximum level of risk such that it should not
lead to an accumulated loss in earnings in excess o
EUR 250m at any time in a financial year. The
compliance with the risk appetite is ensured by
market risk limits and stop-loss rules. For the
trading activities in Nordea Markets, the risk
appetite and the market risk limits are set intieta

to the earnings these activities generate.

Market risk analysis

The total VaR was EUR 25m (38) at the end of
2009 demonstrating a considerable diversification
effect between interest rate, equity, credit spread
and foreign exchange risk, as the total VaR is fowe
than the sum of the risk in the four categories.

The total interest rate VaR ended 2009 at EUR 15m
(26). The total gross sensitivity to a 1 percentage
point parallel shift, which measures the
development in the market value of NBF’s interest
rate sensitive positions if all interest rates were
move adversely for Nordea, was EUR 83m at the
end of 2009 (157). The largest part of NBF’'s
interest rate sensitivity stemmed from interes rat
positions in Swedish Kronor, Danish Kroner, US
Dollars and Euro.

At the end of 2009, NBF's equity VaR stood at
EUR 2m (1), and structured equity option risk was
EUR 28m (16).

Credit spread VaR ended 2009 at EUR 12m (13).
Credit spread risk is concentrated on the financial
sector.

NBF's foreign exchange VaR was EUR 14m (15) at
year-end. By far the largest foreign exchange
exposure is to Danish kroner.

NBF’s exposure to commodity risk, primarily pulp
and paper, is solely related to customer-driven
activities. The risk was EUR 9m at the end of 2009

(4).

The fair value of investments in private equity
funds was EUR 7m (6).
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Market risk
Group
31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM Measure 2009 2008
Total Risk VaR 24.9 38.1
- Interest Rate Risk VaR 155 25.9
- Equity Risk VaR 2.3 0.8
- Credit Spread Risk VaR 12.3 125
- Foreign Exchange Risk VaR 13.8 154
Diversification effect VaR 43%  30%

Structured Equity Option RiskSimulation 27.6 15.9

Commodity Risk Simulation 8.9 4.1

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of direct o
indirect loss, or damaged reputation, resultingnfro
inadequate or failed internal processes, from peopl
and systems, or from external events. Operational
risk includes compliance risk, which is the risk of
business not being conducted according to legal and
regulatory requirements, market standards and
business ethics.

Managing operational risk is part of the
management’s responsibilities. The Group’s
network of Risk and Compliance Officers ensures
that operational and compliance risk within the
Group is managed effectively in the business
organisation, which represents the first line of
defence.

In order to manage these risks Group Operational
Risk Management, representing the second line of
defence, has defined a common set of standards in
the form of Group directives, active risk
management processes and reporting requirements.
A sound risk management culture is aimed for with
the objective to follow best practice regarding
market conduct and ethical standards in all busines
activities. The key process for active risk
management is the annual Risk Self Assessment
process, which puts focus on identifying and
following up on key risks, which are identified hot
through top-down Division management
involvement and bottom-up reuse of existing
information from processes such as incident
reporting, quality and risk analyses, and product
approvals.

Group Internal Audit, representing the third lirfe o
defence, provides assurance to the Board of
Directors on the risk management, control and
governance processes.
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Liquidity risk and Structural Income Interest
Risk

Liquidity risk

Management principles and control

The Board of Directors of Nordea Group has the
ultimate responsibility for Asset and Liability
Management of the Group i.e. limiting and
monitoring the Group’s structural risk exposures.

Risks in Nordea are measured and reported
according to common principles and policies
approved by the Board. The Board of Directors also
decides on policies for liquidity risk management.
These policies are reviewed at least annually.

The CEO in GEM decides on the targets for the
Group’s risk management regarding SIIR, as well
as, within the scope of resolutions adopted by the
Board of Directors, the allocation of the liquidity
risk limits.

The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
chaired by the CFO, prepares issues of major
importance concerning the Group’s financial
operations and financial risks for decision by CEO
in GEM.

Group Treasury operationalises the targets and
limits and develops the liquidity risk and SIIR
management frameworks, which consist of policies,
instructions and guidelines for the whole Group.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of being able to meet
liquidity commitments only at increased cost or,
ultimately, being unable to meet obligations aythe
fall due.

Nordea Group’s liquidity management is based on
policy statements resulting in different liquidiigk
measures, limits and organisational procedures.

Policy statements stipulate that Nordea'’s liquidity
management reflects a conservative attitude towards
liquidity risk. Nordea strives to diversify the

Group’s sources of funding and seeks to establish
and maintain relationships with investors in orger
manage the market access.

Broad and diversified funding structure is reflecte
by the strong presence in Nordea Group’s four
domestic markets in the form of a strong and stable
retail customer base and a variety of funding
programmes.

Special focus is given to the composition of the
investor base in terms of geographical range and
rating sensitivity.
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Nordea publishes adequate information on the
liquidity situation of Nordea Group to remain
trustworthy at all times. Nordea’s liquidity risk
management includes stress testing and a business
continuity plan for liquidity management.

Stress testing is defined as the evaluation of
potential effects on a bank’s liquidity situation
under a set of exceptional but plausible events. Th
stress test should identify events or influences th
could affect the funding need or the funding price
and seek to quantify the potential effects. The
purpose of stress tests is to supplement the normal
liquidity risk measurement and confirm that the
business continuity plan is adequate in stressful
events, and that the business continuity plan
properly describes procedures to handle a liquidity
crisis with minimal damage to Nordea. Nordea
stress scenarios are based on the assessment of the
particular events which Nordea is presumed to be
most vulnerable to taking into account the current
business structure and environment.

Stress tests focus on one hand on increased funding
need and on the other hand on increased funding
prices.

Group Treasury is responsible for managing the
liquidity in Nordea and for compliance with the
group wide limits from the Boards of Directors,
CEO in GEM and ALCO.

Liquidity risk measurement methods

The liquidity risk management focuses on both
short-term liquidity risk and long-term structural
liquidity risk. In order to measure the exposure on
both horizons, a number of liquidity risk measures
have been developed covering all material sources
of liquidity risk.

In order to avoid short-term funding pressures,
Nordea measures the funding gap risk, which
expresses the expected maximum accumulated need
for raising liquidity in the course of the next 14

days. Cash flows from both on balance sheet and
off-balance sheet items are included.

Funding gap risk is measured and limited for each
currency and as a total figure for all currencies
combined. The total figure for all currencies
combined is limited by the Board of Directors.

To ensure funding in situations where Nordea is in
urgent need of cash and the normal funding sources
do not suffice, Nordea holds a liquidity buffer.

Limit is set by the Board of Directors for the
minimum size of the liquidity buffer. The liquidity
buffer is set to ensure a total positive cash flow
defined by the funding risk measurement and
consists of high-grade liquid securities that can b
sold or used as collateral in funding operations.
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The structural liquidity risk of Nordea is measured
and limited by the Board of Directors through the
net balance of stable funding, which is defined as
the difference between stable liabilities and stabl
assets. These liabilities primarily comprise retail
deposits, bank deposits and bonds with a remaining
term to maturity longer than 6 months, and
shareholders’ equity, while stable assets primarily
comprise retail loans, other loans with a remaining
term to maturity longer than 6 months and
committed facilities.

ALCO has set as a target that the net balance of
stable funding should be positive, which means that
stable assets must be funded by stable liabilities.

Cash flow analysis

Liquidity risk analysis

The short-term liquidity risk has been held at
moderate levels throughout 2009. The average
funding gap risk, i.e. the average expected need fo
raising liquidity in the course of the next 14 days
has been EUR -3.9bn (3.7).

NBF's liquidity buffer has been in the range EUR
10.2-14.4bn (3.6—13.1) throughout 2009 with an
average of EUR 11.3bn (6.0). NBF considers this a
high level and it reflects the Group’s conservative
attitude towards liquidity risk in general and
towards unexpected liquidity events in particular.
The yearly average for the net balance of stable
funding was EUR -6.2bn (-4.0)

Group

EURmM On demand 0-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years >5 years Total

Interest bearing financial assets 24,651 38,588 18,233 33,125 33,486 148,083
Non interest bearing financial assets 79,490 79 ,490
Total financial assets 24 651 38,588 18,233 33,125 112,976 227,573
Interest bearing financial liabilities 35,365 71,170 15,677 6,387 495 129,094
Non interest bearing financial liabilities 9218 92,851
Total financial liabilities 35,365 71,170 15,677 6,387 93,346 221,945
Derivatives, cash inflow 10,992 3,323 335 1,469 16,119
Derivatives, cash outflow -10,706 -3,308 -687 -1,481 -16,182
Net exposure 286 15 -352 -12 -63
Exposure -10,714 -32,296 2,571 26,386 19,618 5,565
Cumulative exposure -10,714 -43,010 -40,439 -14,053 5,565

Parent company

EURmM On demand 0-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years >5 years Total

Interest bearing financial assets 24,360 39,123 18,132 32,205 33,391 147,211
Non interest bearing financial assets 79,524 79,524
Total financial assets 24,360 39,123 18,132 32,205 112,915 226,735
Interest bearing financial liabilities 35,460 70,050 15,698 6,471 494 128,173
Non interest bearing financial liabilities 9291 92,189
Total financial liabilities 35,460 70,050 15,698 6,471 92,683 220,362
Derivatives, cash inflow 11,011 3,232 35 1,469 15,747
Derivatives, cash outflow -10,726 -3,308 -687 -1,481 -16,202
Net exposure 285 -76 -652 -12 -455
Exposure -11,100 -30,642 2,358 25,082 20,220 5,918
Cumulative exposure -11,100 -41,742 -39,384 -14,302 5,918

The table is based on contractual maturities fopaance sheet financial instruments. For derieatithe expected cash inflows and
outflows are disclosed for both derivative assatsderivative liabilities, as derivatives are magthgn a net basis. In addition to the on
balance sheet and derivative instruments, NBF teitcommitments amounting to EUR 17,863m, whichld be drawn at any time.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009
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Structural Interest Income Risk

SIIR is the amount Nordea’'s accumulated net
interest income would change during the next 12
months if all interest rates change by one pergenta
point.

SIIR reflects the mismatch in the balance sheet
items and the off-balance sheet items when the
interest rate re-pricing periods, volumes or refeee
rates of assets, liabilities and derivatives do not
correspond exactly.

Nordea Group’s SIIR management is based on

Group Treasury has the responsibility for the
operational management of SIIR and for complying
with group wide targets.

SIIR measurement methods

The basic measures for SIIR are the two re-pricing
gaps measuring the effect on Nordea’s net interest
income for a 12 month period of a one percentage
point increase, respectively decrease, in all @gter
rates. The re-pricing gaps are calculated under the
assumption that no new market transactions are
made during the period. Main elements of the

customer behaviour and Nordea’s decision-making
process concerning Nordea’s own rates are,
however, taken into account. For example in a low
interest rate environment, when rates are decrgasin
further, the total decrease of rates cannot baeppl
to non-maturity deposits since rates cannot be
negative. Similarly in an increasing rate
environment Nordea may choose not to increase
interest rates on all customer deposits
correspondingly.

policy statements resulting in different SIIR
measures, targets and organisational procedures.

Policy statements focus on optimising financial
structure, balanced risk taking and reliable egin
growth, identification of all significant sourcet o
SIIR, measurement under stressful market
conditions and adequate public information.

SIIR, Gap analysis 31 Dec 2009

Group

EURmM, Balance Within 3 Non re-

Interest Rate Fixing Period sheet months 3-6 month 6-12 month 1-2 year 2-5year >5year pricing Total
Assets

Interest bearing assets 141,671 114,076 11,570 7,396 4,285 2,079 988 1,277 141,671
Non interest bearing assets 79,494 - - - - - 79,494 79,494
Total assets 221,165 114,076 11,570 7,396 4,285 2,079 988 80,771 221,165
Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 128,314 110,540 6,196 4,251 4,076 2,785 466 - 128,314
Non interest bearing liabilities 92,851 - - - - - - 92,851 92,851
Total liabilities 221,165 110,540 6,196 4,251 4,076 2,785 466 92,851 221,165
Off-balance sheet items, net 5,732 -2,143 -2,842 -684 -29 -34 -

Exposure 9,268 3,231 303 -475 -735 488 -12,080
Cumulative exposure 12,499 12,802 12,327 11,592 12,080 0

Parent company

EURmM, Balance Within 3 Non re-

Interest Rate Fixing Period sheet months 3-6 month 6-12 month 1-2 year 2-5year >5year pricing Total
Assets

Interest bearing assets 141,018 113,423 11,570 7,396 4,285 2,079 988 1,277 141,018
Non interest bearing assets 79,532 - - - - - - 79,532 79,532
Total assets 220,550 113,423 11,570 7,396 4,285 2,079 988 80,809 220,550

Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 128,327 110,578 6,196 4,251 4,076 2,785 441 - 128,327
Non interest bearing liabilities 92,223 - - - - - - 92,223 92,223
Total liabilities 220,550 110,578 6,196 4,251 4,076 2,785 441 92,223 220,550
Off-balance sheet items 5,732 -2,143 -2,842 -684 -29 -34 -
Exposure 8,577 3,231 303 -475 -735 513 -11,414
Cumulative exposure 11,808 12,111 11,636 10,900 11,414 0
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SIIR analysis

At the end of the year, the SIIR for decreasing
market rates was EUR —117m (—88) and the SIIR
for increasing rates was EUR 81m (172). These

figures imply that net interest income would

decrease if interest rates fell and increase éfrast

rates rose.

Capital management
Nordea strives to attain efficient use of capital

through active management of the balance sheet
with respect to different asset, liability and risk

categories.

The goal is to enhance returns to the shareholder

while maintaining a prudent risk and return
relationship.

Capital requirements and RWA

Capital governance

The Board of Directors decides ultimately on the
targets for capital ratios and capital policy in
Nordea. The CEO in GEM decides on the overall
framework of capital management.

Nordea’s ability to meet targets and to maintain
minimum capital requirements is reviewed regularly
within the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
and the Capital Planning Forum (CPF).

The CPF, headed by the CFO is the forum
responsible for coordinating capital planning
activities within the Group, including regulatonyca
internal capital as well as the capital base.
Additionally the CPF reviews the future capital
requirements in the assessment of annual dividends,
share repurchases, external and internal debt and
capital injection decisions.

Group 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2009 2008 2008
Capital Capital

EURmM requirement RWA  requirement RWA

Credit risk 5,163 64,540 5,235 65,439

IRB 2,590 32,375 2,829 35,357

- of which corporate 1,707 21,337 1,940 24,246

- of which institutions 517 6,460 540 6,752

- of which retail 344 4,301 307 3,841

- of which residential real estate 174 2,176 141 1,757

- of which other 170 2,125 167 2,084

- of which other 22 277 41 518

Standardised 2,573 32,165 2,407 30,083

- of which sovereign 41 515 45 567

- of which retail 388 4,847 358 4,472

- of which residential real estate 11 144 - -

- of which qualifying revolving - - - -

- of which other 377 4,703 358 4,472

- of which other 2,144 26,803 2,004 25,044

Market risk 236 2,946 291 3,636

- of which trading book, VaR 103 1,287 240 3,004

- of which trading book, non-VaR 133 1,659 51 631

- of which FX, non-VaR 0 0 0 0

Operational risk 368 4,606 318 3,975

Standardised 368 4,606 318 3,975

Sub total 5,767 72,092 5,844 73,050
Adjustment for transition rules

Additional capital requirement according to traiesitrules - - 694 8,670

Total 5,767 72,092 6,538 81,720

Capital ratio

31 Dec 31 Dec

2009 2008

Tier 1 ratio, %, incl profit 14.0 12.0

Capital ratio, %, incl profit 14.6 13.3
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Capital requirement and RWA

Parent company 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2009 2008 2008
Capital Capital
EURmM requirement RWA requirement RWA
Credit risk 4,828 60,355 4,889 61,117
IRB 2,474 30,926 2,712 33,901
- of which corporate 1,597 19,964 1,832 22,904
- of which institutions 516 6,454 540 6,750
- of which retail 344 4,301 302 3,775
- of which residential real estate 174 2,176 141 1,757
- of which other 170 2,125 161 2,018
- of which other 17 207 38 472
Standardised 2,354 29,429 2,177 27,216
- of which sovereign 43 540 46 576
- of which retail 202 2,522 170 2,129
- of which residential real estate 11 144 - -
- of which qualifying revolving - - - -
- of which other 191 2,378 170 2,129
- of which other 2,109 26,367 1,961 24,511
Market risk 236 2,946 291 3,636
- of which trading book, VaR 103 1,287 240 3,004
- of which trading book, non-VaR 133 1,659 51 631
- of which FX, non-VaR 0 0 0 0
Operational risk 343 4,284 295 3,690
Standardised 343 4,284 295 3,690
Subtotal 5,407 67,585 5,475 68,443
Adjustment for transition rules
Additional capital requirement according to traiesitrules - - 631 7,883
Total 5,407 67,585 6,106 76,326
Capital ratio
31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008
Tier 1 ratio, %, incl profit 145 12.5
Capital ratio, %, incl profit 15.2 13.9
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 23



Pillar 1

Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) are calculated based
on pillar 1 requirements. Nordea Bank Finland
Group had 48% of the exposure covered by IRB
approaches by the end of 2009. Nordea will
continue the implementation of the IRB approach in
some remaining portfolios. Nordea is also permitted
to use its own internal Value-at-Risk (VaR) models
to calculate capital requirements for the majotgar
of the market risk in the trading books. For
operational risk, the standardised approach is
applied.

Pillar 2

Nordea bases the internal capital requirementsrunde
the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) on pillar 1 and pillar 2 risks, which in
practice means a combination of Capital
Requirements Directive (CRD) risk definitions,
Nordea’s Economic Capital (EC) framework and
buffers for periods of economic stress.

The ICAAP describes Nordea's management,
mitigation and measurement of material risks and
assesses the adequacy of internal capital by dgfini
an internal capital requirement reflecting the risk
appetite of the institution.

EC is based on quantitative models used to estimate
the unexpected losses for each of the following
major risk types: credit risk, market risk, opevatl
risk, business risk and life insurance risk.
Additionally, the EC models explicitly account for
interest rate risk in the banking book, market sk
the investment portfolios, risk in Nordea'’s

sponsored defined benefit pension plans, realeestat
risk and concentration risk.

For 2010 the EC has been further aligned with the
regulatory capital calculations by substitutiorthu#
internal estimates of LGD and CCF for the
corporate and institution portfolios with the
estimates used under the Foundation IRB approach.
As a consequence of on average higher LGD and
CCF the EC will increase.

In addition to calculating risk capital for its vaus

risk types, Nordea conducts a comprehensive capital
adequacy stress test process to analyse the edfects
a series of global and local shock scenarios. The
results of stress testing are considered, with
potential management interventions, in Nordea’s
internal capital requirement. The internal capital
requirement is a key component of Nordea's capital
ratio target setting.
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Economic Profit (EP)

Nordea uses EP as one of its financial performance
indicators. EP is calculated as risk-adjusted profi
less cost of equity.

Risk-adjusted profit and EP are measures for
shareholder value creation.

In investment decisions and customer relationships,
EP drives and supports the right behaviour with a
balanced focus on income, costs and risk. The EP
model also captures both growth and return. EC and
expected losses (EL) are inputs in the EP
framework.

Expected losses

EL reflects the normalised loss level of an
individual credit exposure over a business cycle as
well as various portfolios.

The average EL ratio used in the EP framework,
calculated as EL divided by exposure at default
(EAD), was 26 basis points at the end 2009 (22
basis points at the end 2008) excluding the
sovereign and institution exposure classes.

It should be noted that the EL ratio is a morelstab
measure than actual losses, but it will vary wii t
business cycle as a consequence of shifts in the
repayment capacity (PD dimension) and collateral
coverage (LGD dimension) distributions.

Capital base

Capital base (referred to as own funds in the CRD)
is the sum of tier 1 capital and tier 2 capitataft
deductions.

Tier 1 capital is defined as capital of the same or
close to the character of paid-up, capital-eligible
reserves and a limited portion hybrid capital loan
(perpetual loans) instruments. Profit may only be
included after deduction of proposed dividend.
Goodwill and deferred tax assets are deducted from
tier 1.

Tier 2 is divided into perpetual loans and dated
loans. The total tier 2 amount may not exceeditier
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Dated tier 2 loans may not exceed half the amount Pillar 3 disclosure, Capital adequacy and risk

of tier 1. The limits are set after deductions, management
i.e. investment in insurance and other financial The disclosure in accordance with the Pillar 3
companies. requirements according to the CRD in the Basel Il

framework is presented amvw.nordea.com

Capital base

Group Parent company
EURmM 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008
Original own funds
Paid up capital 2,319 2,319 2,319 2,319
Share premium 599 599 599 599
Eligible capital 2,918 2,918 2,918 2,918
Reserves 7,047 7,019 6,751 6,817
Minority interests 6 7 - -
Income (positive/negative) from current year 1,001 ,331 987 1,233
Eligible reserves 8,054 8,357 7,738 8,050
Tier 1 capital (before hybrid capital and deductiors) 10,972 11,275 10,656 10,968
Proposed/actual dividend -600 -1,300 -600 -1,300
Deferred tax assets -17 -15 -13 -13
Intangible assets -69 -59 -64 -53
Deductions for investments in credit institutions 22- -21 -4 -4
IRB provisions excess (+) / shortfall(-) =72 -73 -62 -60
Other items, net -93 - -93 -
Deductions from original own funds -873 -1,468 -836 -1,430
Tier 1 capital (net after deduction) 10,099 9,807 9,820 9,538
Additional own funds
Securities of indeterminate duration and otherimsents 543 547 543 547
Subordinate loan capital - 600 - 600
Other additional own funds - - - -
Tier 2 capital (before deductions) 543 1,147 543 1,147
Deductions for investments in credit institutions 22- -21 -4 -4
IRB provisions excess (+) / shortfall(-) =72 -73 -62 -60
Deductions from original additional own funds -94 -9 -66 -64
Tier 2 capital (net after deductions) 449 1,053 477 1,083
Total own funds for solvency purposes 10,54 10,86( 10,29 10,621

! The term provision is used in the CRD when defining the basis for shortfall/provision excess. In Nordea, the term allowances is used when referring to the same treatment.
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Capital adequacy ratios

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
RWA Basel Il (pillar 1) excl transition rules 7229 73,050 67,585 68,443
RWA incl transition rules 72,092 81,720 67,585 76,326
Regulatory Capital requirement incl transition sule 5,767 6,538 5,407 6,106
Economic Capital 3,885 3,508 3,614 3,224
Tier 1 capital 10,099 9,807 9,820 9,538
Capital base 10,548 10.860 10,297 10,621
Core tier 1 ratio excl transition rules, % 14.0 134 145 13.9
Core tier 1 ratio incl transition rules, % 14.0 12.0 145 125
Tier 1 ratio excl transition rules, % 14.0 134 145 13.9
Tier 1 ratio incl transition rules, % 14.0 12.0 145 125
Capital ratio excl transition rules, % 14.6 14.9 15.2 15.5
Capital ratio incl transition rules, % 14.6 13.3 15.2 13.9
Capital base / Regulatory Capital requirementtirasisition rules, % 182.9 166.1 190.4 173.9
Specification over group undertakings consolidateih the Nordea Bank Finland Group
Carrying Voting
Number amount, power of Consolidation
31 Dec 2009 of shares EURmM holding, % Domicile method
Group undertakings included in the NBF Group
purchase
Nordea Finance Finland Ltd 1,000,000 306 100 Espoo method
Other companies 32
Total 338
Over 10 % investments in credit institutions dedddrom the capital base
Luottokunta 42 24 Helsinki
NF Fleet Oy 20 Espoo
Other
Total investments in credit institutions deducted fom the
capital base 44
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Human resources

Nordea’s employees continue to create great
customer experiences, as one team, living ourwisio
— making it possible.

It's all about people and Nordea’s People

Strategy

While products and services can be copied, people

are what ultimately distinguish us from our

competitors. Consequently, our people are what will

move Nordea from Good to Great. The People

Strategy focuses on selected prioritised areas,

namely:

e Building the foundation — HR Basics

* Being the employer of choice for those who
will move us from Good to Great

« Staffing, ensuring we have the right person in
the right place at the right time

* Mobilising, differentiating and rewarding,
thereby securing outstanding organisational
performance

« Providing opportunities for our people to
develop and grow

* Practising the leadership required to enable us
to go from Good to Great

All of these priorities are guided by and reinforce
Nordea’s three values: Great Customer Experiences,
One Nordea Team and It's All About People.

Building the foundation — HR Basics

Having a good understanding of our people
resources and putting solid people processes in
place is an integral part of our People Strategy. |
2009 we have improved in this area through a
number of actions related to developing and making
better use of our HR Information System.

Being the employer of choice for those who will
move us from Good to Great

Making Nordea Great requires us to be able to
attract and retain the very best. To do this wéyear
decided to stay with our high activity level also i
2009, a year when many companies decided to do
less in the area of Employer branding.

Staffing, ensuring we have the right person in the
right place at the right time

Being successful in positioning ourselves as the
employer of choice has limited value unless we are
able to actually hire the right ones. Our predittio
for 2009 was that it would be a year of growth and
hence that it would be critical to make sure we hir
many of the very best.
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Mobilising, differentiating and rewarding,

thereby securing outstanding organisational
performance

We must make sure everyone in Nordea is aligned
to our vision and targets and enabled to actually
contribute. Hence we have worked to improve
Performance Management (PM) at Nordea in 2009.
This work will continue also in 2010.

Providing opportunities for our people to

develop and grow

No organisation can grow unless the people develop
and grow. We have made improvements in 2009
aimed at strengthening the tie between business
needs and competency areas we must develop. In
2010 we will seek to improve the People Planning
Process and related tools while at the same time
making it clear that development is the

responsibility of all at Nordea.

Practising the leadership required to enable us to
go from Good to Great

Knowing that leadership drives performance and is
the strongest individual driver for building a
company’s culture it has been one of the greatest
priorities within the People Strategy in 2009, and
will continue to be so also in 2010.

Profit-sharing scheme

All employees participate in a unified profit-shagi
programme. The profit-sharing scheme is capped
and not based on the value of the Nordea share. For
2009, each employee can receive a maximum of
EUR 3,200, of which EUR 2,000 is based on a pre-
determined level of risk-adjusted profit, an
additional EUR 600 based on the level of relative
customer satisfaction and an additional EUR 600
based on Nordea’s relative performance compared
to a Nordic peer group as measured by return on
equity.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Nordea strives to make Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) an integrated part of our
business and our identity — a part of our DNA. We
strongly believe that responsible business leads to
sustainable business results. Nordea'’s increased
focus on CSR was manifested in the formation of a
CSR Secretariat at the end of 2008 and a new CSR
strategy was approved by Group Executive
Management in early 2009. The first deliveries,
mainly focused on in-house operations, have been
met.
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Legal proceedings

Within the framework of normal business
operations, NBF faces a number of claims in
lawsuits and other disputes, most of which involve
relatively limited amounts. None of these dispuses
considered likely to have any significant adverse
effect on the Group or its financial position.

Corporate Governance

NBF's Corporate Governance Report 2009 is
attached to this annual report. The report, inclgdi
the Report on the key aspects of the systems for
internal control and risk management regarding
financial reports, has not been reviewed by the
auditors.

Nordea shares

Nordea Bank Finland Plc does not possess its own
shares. The information regarding bought and sold
shares in the parent company Nordea Bank AB
(publ) is presented in note 48.

Subsequent events

No events have occurred after the balance sheet dat
that might affect the assessment of the annual
financial statements.
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Outlook 2010

Nordea expects the macroeconomic recovery to
continue in 2010, but the development is still fimg
and hence uncertainty remains.

Based on this as well as a strong starting poidt an
strong customer business development, Nordea will
pursue a prudent growth strategy, balancing
opportunities and risks, and will invest in theufitgt
through several growth and efficiency initiatives.
The effect on the result from initiatives will be
neutral in 2010. NBF is expected to contribute to
this strategy and these initiatives.

Nordea expects cost growth for 2010 to be largely
in line with the growth rate in 2009, including the
effects from growth and efficiency initiatives.

Nordea expects risk-adjusted profit to be lower in
2010 compared to 2009, due to lower income in
Treasury and Markets.

Credit quality continues to stabilise, in line witte
macroeconomic recovery. However, loan losses
could remain at a high level also in 2010, as it is
difficult to forecast when loan losses will stant t
level off.

Nordea Group expects the effective tax rate to be
approx. 26%.
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Nordea Bank Finland Group and Nordea Bank Finland P

Income statement

Group Parent company

EURmM Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
Operating income
Interest income 3 2,692 5,694 2,482 5,486
Interest expense 3 -1,490 -3,882 -1,488 -3,879
Net interest income 3 1,202 1,812 994 1,607
Fee and commission income 4 611 545 573 507
Fee and commission expense 4 -370 -330 -355 -308
Net fee and commission income 4 241 215 218 199
Net gains/losses on items at fair value 5 1,325 770 1,321 769
Profit from companies accounted for under the gquigthod 21 4 -4 - -
Dividends 6 - - 52 2
Other operating income 53 29 60 34
Total operating income 2,825 2,822 2,645 2,611
Operating expenses
General administrative expenses:

Staff costs 8 -599 -5637 -550 -489

Other expenses 9 -432 -397 -427 -392
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment chardearggible and
intangible assets 10, 22, 23 -37 -33 -22 -20
Total operating expenses -1,068 -967 -999 -901
Profit before loan losses 1,757 1,855 1,646 1,710
Net loan losses 11 -381 -133 -313 -113
Impairment of securities held as financial non-entrassets - - - -9
Operating profit 1,376 1,722 1,333 1,588
Income tax expense 12 -373 -389 -346 -355
Net profit for the year 1,003 1,333 987 1,233
Attributable to :
Shareholders of Nordea Bank Finland Plc 1,001 1,331 987 1,233
Non-controlling interests 2 2 - -
Total 1,003 1,333 987 1,233
Statement of comprehensive income

Group Parent company

EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Net profit for the year 1,003 1,333 987 1,233
Currency translation differences during the period 0 0 - -
Available-for-sale investments:
- Valuation gains/losses during the period 0 -1 0 -1
- Tax on valuation gains/losses during the period 0 0 0 0
- Transferred to profit or loss on sale for theiqer 0 - 0 -
- Tax on transfers to profit or loss on sale far geriod 0 - 0 -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 0 -1 0 -1
Total comprehensive income 1,003 1,332 987 1,232
Attributable to :
Shareholders of Nordea Bank Finland Plc 1,001 1,330 987 1,232
Non-controlling interests 2 2 - -
Total 1,003 1,332 987 1,232
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Balance sheet

Group Parent company
EURmM Note 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 906 8,004 906
Treasury bills 13 1,033 691 1,033 691
Loans to credit institutions 14 59,037 47,447 64,054 52,629
Loans to the public 14 65,723 68,293 60,053 62,479
Interest-bearing securities 15 7,873 4,929 7,873 4,929
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 16 1 0 1 0
Shares 17 1,052 982 1,048 981
Derivatives 18 74,520 85,662 74,520 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 19 141 157 141 157
Investments in group undertakings 20 - - 338 309
Investments in associated undertakings 21 56 51 16 16
Intangible assets 22 69 59 64 53
Property and equipment 23,24 143 117 54 54
Investment property 25 7 3 4 3
Deferred tax assets 12 17 15 13 13
Current tax assets 12 0 133 - 124
Retirement benefit assets 34 91 82 85 75
Other assets 26 3,029 9,532 3,014 9,507
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 27 369 902 235 824
Total assets 221,165 219,961 220,550 219,412
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 28 44,344 37,713 44,285 37,664
Deposits and borrowings from the public 29 44,256 45,279 44,354 45,366
Debt securities in issue 30 39,276 31,263 39,276 31,266
Derivatives 18 73,237 87,291 73,237 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 19 7 16 7 16
Current tax liabilities 12 129 341 128 340
Other liabilities 31 7,813 4,403 7,666 4,298
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 32 571 1,016 428 882
Deferred tax liabilities 12 44 39 - -
Provisions 33 49 59 46 55
Retirement benefit obligations 34 30 28 30 28
Subordinated liabilities 35 437 1,238 437 1,238
Total liabilities 210,193 208,686 209,894 208,444
Equity
Non-controlling interests 6 7 - -
Share capital 2,319 2,319 2,319 2,319
Share premium reserve 599 599 599 599
Other reserves 2,848 2,941 2,848 2,848
Retained earnings 5,200 5,409 4,890 5,202
Total equity 10,972 11,275 10,656 10,968
Total liabilities and equity 221,165 219,961 220,550 219,412
Assets pledged as security for own liabilities 36 12,674 16,840 12,674 16,839
Other assets pledged 37 - - - -
Contingent liabilities 38 17,084 17,119 17,350 17,377
Commitments 39 18,462 16,548 15,480 13,599
Other notes
Note 1 Accounting policies Note 43 Obtained collaterals which are permitete sold or repledged
Note 2 Segment reporting Note 44 Maturity analysis for assets and lialgiiti
Note 40 Classification of financial instruments tdld5 Related-party transactions
Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value N6 Mergers, acquisitions, disposals and dissaistio
Note 42 Assets and liabilities in foreign curreasci Note 47 Credit risk disclosures
Note 48 Nordea shares
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Statement of changes in equity

Group

Attributable to the shareholders of Nordea Bank Firtland Plc

Other reserves
Share Available-for- Non-

Share premium sale Other  Retained controlling Total
EURmM capital  reserve investments reserves  earnings Total interests  equity
Balance at 1 Jan 2009 2,319 599 0 2,941 5409 11,268 7 11,275
Total comprehensive income - - 0 0 1,001 1,001 2 1,003
Share-based paymehts - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividend for 2008 - - - - -1,301  -1,301 - -1,301
Other changés - - - -93 90 -4 -3 -6
Balance at 31 Dec 2009 2,319 599 0 2,848 5,200 10,965 6 10,972
Balance at 1 Jan 2008 2,319 599 1 2,928 4,939 10,786 7 10,793
Total comprehensive income - - -1 0 1,331 1,330 2 1,332
Share-based paymehts - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividend for 2007 - - - - -850 -850 - -850
Other changes - - - 13 -12 1 -2 -1
Balance at 31 Dec 2008 2,319 599 0 2,941 5,409 11,268 7 11,275

Parent company
Other reserves

Share Available-for-

Share premium sale Other Retained Total
EURmM capital’ reserve investments reserves earnings equity
Balance at 1 Jan 2009 2,319 599 0 2,848 5,202 10,968
Total comprehensive income - - 0 - 987 987
Share-based paymehts - - - - 2 2
Dividend for 2008 - - - - -1,301 -1,301
Balance at 31 Dec 2009 2,319 599 0 2,848 4,890 10,656
Balance at 1 Jan 2008 2,319 599 1 2,848 4,818 10,585
Total comprehensive income - - -1 - 1,233 1,232
Share-based paymehts - - - - 1 1
Dividend for 2007 - - - - -850 -850
Balance at 31 Dec 2008 2,319 599 0 2,848 5,202 10,968

* Total shares registered were 1,030.8 million (31 Dec 2008: 1,030.8 million). All the shares in Nordea Bank Finland Plc are held by Nordea Bank AB (publ). The carrying amount of
the shares corresponds to EUR 2.25 per share. Pursuant to the Articles of Association the Bank's minimum share capital is EUR 850m and maximum share capital EUR 3,400m.

2 Refers to the Long-Term Incentive Programmes (LTIP 2007, LTIP 2008 and LTIP 2009), see also note 8.

% Transfer of equity share of untaxed reserves from Other reserves to Retained earnings EUR 93m.

“ Refers to the Long-Term Incentive Programmes (LTIP 2007 and LTIP 2008), see also nhote 8.

Description of items in equity is included in Ndté\ccounting policies.

No decision was made during the financial yeassoi@é equity warrants or convertible bonds entitlmmgubscription of shares in the Bank. At the
end of 2009, the Bank held no authorisations ghsethe General Meeting for issuance or buybaclkshafes, equity warrants or convertible bonds.
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Cash flow statement

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Operating activities
Operating profit 1,376 1,722 1,333 1,588
Adjustments for items not included in cash flow 483 -398 -873 -448
Income taxes paid -450 -86 -433 -72
Cash flow from operating activities before changem operating assets
and liabilities 92 1,238 27 1,068
Changes in operating assets
Change in treasury bills 736 707 736 707
Change in loans to credit institutions -10,530 115 -10,382 -215
Change in loans to the public 2,158 -7,851 2,092 -7,495
Change in interest-bearing securities 210 1,860 210 1,860
Change in financial assets pledged as collateral 0 0 0 0
Change in shares 41 218 41 217
Change in derivatives, net -1,950 1,363 -1,950 1,363
Change in investment properties -3 1 0 0
Change in other assets 6,501 -8,118 6,493 -8,065
Changes in operating liabilities
Change in deposits by credit institutions 6,631 10,931 6,621 10,927
Change in deposits and borrowings from the public 1,023 3,570 -1,013 3,632
Change in debt securities in issue 8,013 1,628 8,010 1,628
Change in other liabilities 3,407 435 3,366 443
Cash flow from operating activities 14,284 6,097 14,252 6,070
Investing activities
Acquisition of group undertakings - - -30 -
Sale of group undertakings 0 - 1 13
Dividends from associated companies 1 1 - -
Acquisition of investments in associated companies -3 -7 - -6
Sale of investments in associated companies 1 22 0 22
Acquisition of property and equipment -58 -51 -11 -24
Sale of property and equipment 9 9 0 0
Acquisition of intangible assets -18 -37 -19 -37
Sale of intangible assets 0 4 - -
Investments in debt securities, held to maturity -3,960 -4,036 -3,960 -4,036
Purchase/sale of other financial fixed assets -6 -121 -6 -122
Cash flow from investing activities -4,034 -4,216 -4,025 -4,190
Financing activities
Issued subordinated liabilities - - - -
Amortised subordinated liabilities -786 -64 -786 -64
Dividend paid -1,300 -850 -1,300 -850
Other changes -6 -1 1 0
Cash flow from financing activities -2,092 -915 -2,085 -914
Cash flow for the year 8,158 966 8,142 966
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 16,400 15,433 16,397 15,431
Exchange rate difference 0 1 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 24,558 16,400 24,539 16,397
Change 8,158 966 8,142 966
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Cash flow statement cont.

Comments on the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared in amooedvith IAS 7. The cash flow statement show®wsdl and outflows of cash and cash
equivalents during the year. Nordea Bank Finlacash flow has been prepared in accordance witintheect method, whereby operating profit is
adjusted for effects of non-cash transactions asalnrealised gains/losses and loan losses. Thdloas are classified by operating, investing and
financing activities.

Operating activities

Operating activities are the principal revenue-piidg activities and cash flows are mainly derifredn the operating profit for the year with
adjustment for items not included in cash flow ammbme taxes paid. Adjustment for non-cash iterokiges:

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Depreciation 37 33 22 20
Impairment charges - 0 - 9
Loan losses 413 145 335 117
Unrealised gains/losses -1,340 -414 -1,337 -414
Capital gains/losses (net) -1 -2 0 0
Change in accruals and provisions 79 -92 125 -111
Translation differences 0 1 0 0
Other -15 -69 -18 -69
Total -827 -398 -872 -448

Changes in operating assets and liabilities confassets and liabilities that are part of normadiness activities, such as loans, deposits dnid de
securities in issue. Changes in derivatives arerteg net.

Cash flow from operating activities includes instrpayments received and interest expenses pdidhvgtfollowing amounts:

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest payments received 2,972 5,721 2,782 5,510
Interest expenses paid -1,900 -3,944 -1,898 -3,941
Cash and cash equivalents
The following items are included in Cash and caghwalents assets:
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 906 8,004 906
Loans to credit institutions, payable on demand 584, 15,494 16,535 15,491
24,558 16,400 24,539 16,397

Cash comprises legal tender and bank notes irgfo@irrencies. Balances with central banks con$idéposits in accounts with central banks and
postal giro systems under government authority reviiee following conditions are fulfilled.

- the central bank or the postal giro system isidibed in the country where the institution is ésished
- the balance on the account is readily availabjetine.

Loans to credit institutions, payable on demantliohe liquid assets not represented by bonds or atterest-bearing securities.
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Accounting policies
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1. Basis for presentation

NBF's financial statements are prepared in accarelan
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations of such standards by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC), as endorsed by the EU
Commission. In addition, certain complementarysule
in the Finnish Accounting Act, the Finnish Credit
Institutions Act, the Financial Supervision Authgis
Regulations and Guidelines and the Decision of the
Ministry of Finance on the financial statements and
consolidated statements of credit institutions trelge
been applied.

The disclosures, required in the standards and
legislation above, have been included in the nobes,
Risk, Liquidity and Capital management sectionror i
other parts of the “Financial statements”.

On 26 February 2010 the Board of Directors approved
the financial statements, subject to final appr@fdahe
Annual General Meeting on 9 March 2010.

2. Comparative figures

The comparative figures for 2008 include no materia
changes.

3. Changed accounting policies and presentation

The accounting policies and basis for calculatianmes

in all material aspects, unchanged in comparisah wi
the 2008 Annual Report. The impact on the
presentation from the amendment to IAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” is described
below, together with the impact on disclosures ftom
new standard IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” and the
amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures*.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents...........ccccooceeriieenineennns 42
12. Financial inStruments ...........cccooceeeeeniiieeee e 42
13. Loans to the public/credit insStitutions. . e ....ccvvvee... 44
14. [T T o PR 45
15. Intangible aSSets ........ccuviiiiiiiiii e 46
16. Property and equipment...........c.ueviieeeeeeesiieeeeee s 46
17. INVEStMENt PrOPErtY......ccccuvvveeeiiieere e
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The implemented revision of IAS 23 “Borrowing
Costs” and amendments to IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation” (Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation)
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (Reassessment of embedded
derivatives) and IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
(Vesting Conditions and Cancellations) as well as
“Improvements to IFRSs” and new interpretations
(IFRIC 13, 14, 15, 16) have had no or only an
insignificant impact on Nordea (EU commission
endorsement for IFRIC 15 and 16 as from 2010).

Amendment of IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

IASB has amended IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” with effective date for Nordea as ffbm
January 2009. The main impact from this amendment
is that the “Statement of changes in equity” hanbe
added and the “Statement of comprehensive income”
renamed and relocated to be displayed immediately
after the “Income statement”.

New standard IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

IFRS 8 is mandatory for Nordea as from 1 January
2009. The IFRS requires identification of operating
segments on the basis of the information regularly
reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decisioaker
(CODM) in order to allocate resources to the segmen
and assess its performance. The reportable segiments
Nordea have, mainly as a consequence of the
restrictions in the aggregation criteria, been diealh

and information has been added to comply with the
requirements in the new standard. See note 2 “Seigme
reporting” for more information.
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Amendment of IFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures”

In March 2009 the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) published the amendment “Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments”, effectige
from 1 January 2009. The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements
and liquidity risk. See the separate section Risk,
Liquidity and Capital management as well as note 47
for more information.

Forthcoming changes in IFRSs

IFRS 9 “Financial instrument” (Phase 1)

IASB has published a new standard on financial
instruments. The standard is the first step in the
replacement of IAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and this first phase
covers classification and measurement of financial
assets. The effective date is for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but earlier
application is permitted. The EU commission has not
endorsed this standard for implementation in 2009.

Nordea has, due to the fact that the standardéws b
recently published and that it is not yet endotsgthe
EU commission, not finalised the investigation o t
impact on the period of initial application or on
subsequent periods.

Other forthcoming changes in IFRSs

IASB has revised IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
and amended IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”. Nordea has chosen not to
implement these changes in advance and the updated
standards will generally be applied prospectively f
business combinations effected as from 1 January
2010, meaning that there will generally be no
restatement of business combinations with acqoisiti
dates prior to the implementation of this IFRS. The
transition rules furthermore state that changes in
recognised deferred tax assets, originating from
business combinations effected before the appdicati
of this IFRS, shall be recognised in the income
statement without any equivalent adjustments made t
goodwill through the income statement, unless tiere
an impairment of goodwill. On acquisitions on and
after 1 January 2010 the major expected impacts on
Nordea from the amended IFRS 3 and IAS 27 will
include a broader definition of business combimedjo
the need to expense acquisition costs and continuou
fair value adjustments of contingent considerations
recognised in the income statement.
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IASB has amended IAS 32 “Financial instruments:
Presentation” with respect to classification ohty
issues. Nordea has chosen not to implement these
changes early and the updated standard will beeppl
retroactively as from 1 January 2011. There isenty
no identified significant impact on the period oitial
application, but the amendment may affect futugéts
issues involving different currencies.

IASB has furthermore revised IFRS 1 “First-time
Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards” and IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
(not yet endorsed by the EU commission), amended
IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” (Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions), IAS 39 “Financia
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (Eligible
hedged items) as well as published “Improvements to
IFRSs”. These revised and amended standards and
improvements are effective for Nordea as from 1
January 2010, except for the revision of IAS 24akhi

is effective as from 1 January 2011, but are not
expected to have any significant impact on theqakeri

of initial application or on subsequent periods.

In addition, one new interpretation not mandatany f
Nordea in 2009, but where early adoption is allowed
has been published (IFRIC 17 “Distributions of Non-
cash Assets to Owners”). There is currently no
identified significant impact on the period of ialt
application or on subsequent periods.

The above mentioned revised and amended standards,
improvements and new interpretation not yet adopted
are not, in the period of initial application or in
subsequent periods, expected to have any significan
impact on the capital adequacy.

4. Critical judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accozdan
with generally accepted accounting principles respji

in some cases, the use of estimates and assumptions
management. The estimates are based on past
experience and assumptions that management believes
are fair and reasonable. These estimates and the
judgement behind them affect the reported amounts o
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet itemsyelsas
income and expenses in the financial statements
presented. Actual outcome can later, to some gxtent
differ from the estimates and the assumptions made.
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Certain accounting policies are considered to be
particularly important to the financial position of
Nordea, since they require management to make
difficult, complex or subjective judgements and
estimates, the majority of which relate to mattbet
are inherently uncertain. These critical judgements
estimates are in particular associated with:
» the fair value measurement of certain financial
instruments
» the impairment testing of:
— goodwill and
— loans to the public/credit institutions
» the actuarial calculations of pension liabilitiesla
plan assets
» claims in civil lawsuits.

Fair value measurement

Critical judgement is exercised when determinirig fa

value of OTC derivatives and other financial

instruments that lack quoted prices or recently
observed market prices in the following areas:

» The choice of valuation techniques

* The determination of when quoted prices fail to
represent fair value (including the judgement of
whether markets are active)

* The construction of fair value adjustments in order
to incorporate relevant risk factors such as credit
risk, model risk and liquidity risk

» The judgement of which market parameters that
are observable

In all of these instances, decisions are based upon
professional judgement in accordance with Nordea’s
accounting and valuation policies. In order to easu
proper governance, Nordea has a Group Valuation
Committee that on an ongoing basis reviews critical
judgements that are deemed to have a significant
impact on fair value measurements.

See also the separate section 10 “Determinatidairof
value of financial instruments” and Note 41 “Assets
and liabilities at fair value”.

Impairment testing

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. This considtaio
analysis to assess whether the carrying amount of
goodwill is fully recoverable. The determinationtbé
recoverable amount involves establishing the value
use, measured as the present value of the cash flow
expected from the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill has been allocated.
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The forecasts of future cash flows are based on
Nordea'’s best estimates of future revenues and
expenses for the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. A number of assumption
and estimates have significant effect on these
calculations and include parameters like
macroeconomic assumptions, market growth, business
volumes, margins and cost effectiveness. Changes to
any of these parameters, following changes in ntarke
conditions, competition, strategy or other, affabts
forecasted cash flows and may result in impairment
charges of goodwiill.

See also the separate section 15 “Intangible &saeds
Note 22 “Intangible assets”.

Loans to the public/credit institutions

When testing individual loans for impairment, thesn
critical judgement, containing the highest unceaitigi
relates to the estimation of the most probableréutu
cash flows generated from the customer.

When testing a group of loans collectively for
impairment, the key aspect is to identify the egent
and/or the observable data that indicate that fosaee
been incurred in the group of loans. Assessingéte
present value of the cash flows generated by the
customers in the group contains a high degree of
uncertainty when using historical data and the @edu
experience when adjusting the assumptions based on
historical data to reflect the current situation.

See also the separate section 13 “Loans to the
public/credit institutions” and Note 14 “Loans aheir
impairment”.

Actuarial calculations of pension liabilities andlan
assets related to employees

The Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) for major
pension plans is calculated by external actuasesgu
demographic assumptions based on the current
population. These calculations are based on a numbe
of actuarial and financial parameters. The most
important financial parameter is the discount rate.
Other parameters like assumptions as to salary
increases and inflation are fixed based on the @gge
long-term development of these parameters. Thedixi
of these parameters at year-end is disclosed ia Bibt
“Retirement benefit obligations”.

The major part of the assets covering the pension
liabilities is invested in liquid assets and valad
market price at year-end. The expected return an pl
assets is fixed, taking into account the asset
composition and based on long-term expectations on
the return on the different asset classes. Thectege
return is also disclosed in Note 34 “Retirementdfién
obligations”.
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See also the separate section 19 “Pensions to
employees” and Note 34 “Retirement benefit
obligations”.

Claims in civil lawsuits

Within the framework of the normal business
operations, Nordea faces a number of claims in civi
lawsuits and other disputes, most of which involve
relatively limited amounts. None of these disputes
considered likely to have any significant adver§ect
on Nordea or its financial position. See also N8g8e
“Contingent liabilities”.

5.  Principles of consolidation

Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the parent company Nordea Bank Finland
Plc and those entities that meet the definition of
subsidiary according to IAS 27. This definition is
generally fulfilled when the parent company owns,
directly or indirectly through group undertakingsore
than 50 per cent of the voting rights or otherwias

the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity.

All Group undertakings are consolidated using the
purchase method. Under the purchase method, the
acquisition is regarded as a transaction whereby th
parent company indirectly acquires the subsidiary’s
assets and assumes its liabilities and contingent
liabilities. The acquisition cost to the Group is
established in a purchase price allocation analirsis
such analysis, the cost of the business combinétion
established as the fair values of recognised ifielle
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Tdwest of
the business combination is the aggregate of ihe fa
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instratae
issued by the acquirer, in exchange for the nettass
acquired, plus any costs directly attributablent® t
business combination. When the cost of the business
combination exceeds the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiiiies,
the excess is reported as goodwill. If the diffeeeis
negative, such difference is immediately recognised
the income statement.

The Group undertakings are included in the
consolidated accounts as from the date on which
control is transferred to NBF and are no longer
consolidated as from the date on which controlegas

Equity and net income attributable to non-contngjli
interests are separately disclosed in the baldmeet s
and income statement.
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In the consolidation process the reporting from the
subsidiaries is adjusted to ensure consistency with
IFRS principles applied by Nordea.

Investments in associated undertakings

The equity method of accounting is used for assedia
undertakings where the share of voting rights is
between 20 and 50 per cent and/or where NBF has
significant influence. Investments within Nordea’s
investment activities, which are classified as atuee
capital organisation within Nordea, are measurddiat
value in accordance with the rules set out in I8S 2
and IAS 39.

Profits from companies accounted for under thetgqui
method are reported post taxes in the income seatem
Consequently, the tax expense related to thesagiof

not included in the income tax expense for NBF.

Special Purpose Entities (SPE)

In accordance with IFRS Nordea does not consolidate
SPEs’ assets and liabilities beyond its controbriger

to determine whether Nordea controls an SPE or not,
Nordea has to make judgements about risks and
rewards and assesses the ability to make operhtiona
decisions for the SPE in question.

When assessing whether NBF shall consolidate a SPE,
a range of factors are evaluated. These factohsdac
whether the activities of the SPE are being in &re
conducted on NBF'’s behalf or if NBF has in subséanc
the decision making powers, the rights to obtaé th
majority of the benefits or the majority of theicksl

or ownership risks. NBF consolidates all SPEs where
NBF has retained the majority of the risks and relsa
For the SPEs that are not consolidated the ragasal
that NBF does not have any significant risks oranels
on these assets and liabilities.

SPEs used to allow clients to hold investments are
structures that allow one or more clients to investn
asset or set of assets (e g mutual funds), whieh ar
generally purchased by the SPE. The risks and dswar
of the assets held by the SPE entirely reside thigh
clients. Typically, Nordea will receive service and
commission fees for the creation of the SPE, or
because it acts as investment manager, custodian or
some other function. Nordea is the investment manag
and has sole discretion about investments and other
administrative decisions, but has no or only an
insignificant amount of capital invested.
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In most instances, SPEs used to allow clients kb ho
investments are not consolidated as Nordea's kuahl
contractual rights and obligations indicate thatdéa
does not have the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of these entities. Nordea
consequently does not have the objective of obitgini
benefits from its activities through such powerrNo
does Nordea have the majority of the residual or
ownership risk.

The number of SPEs that NBF has created is limited.

The SPEs that are consolidated in the Group atiediur
described in Note 20 “Investments in Group
undertakings”.

Principles of elimination
Intra-group transactions and balances between the
consolidated group undertakings are eliminated.

Currency translation of foreign entities

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
euro (EUR), the presentation currency of the parent
company Nordea Bank Finland Plc. The current
method is used when translating the financial
statements of foreign entities into EUR from their
functional currency. The assets and liabilities of
foreign entities have been translated at the aipsin
rates, while items in the income statement are
translated at the average exchange rate for the yea
Translation differences are accounted for in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated in the
translation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising frora th
acquisition of group undertakings are treatedexnst
in the same functional currency as the cash gengrat
unit to which they belong and are also translatdtie
closing rate.

6. Recognition of operating income and loan
losses

Net interest income

Interest income and expense are calculated and
recognised based on the effective interest ratbadet
or, if considered appropriate, based on a methaid th
results in an interest income or interest expenaeis
a reasonable approximation of using the effective
interest rate method as basis for the calculation.

Interest income and interest expense related to all
balance sheet items in Markets are recogniseckin th
income statement on the line “Net gains/losses on
items at fair value”. Interest income and expense
connected to internal placements by and internal
funding of Markets are replaced with the relatedur
external interest income and interest expense.
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Net fee and commission income

Nordea earns commission income from different
services provided to its customers. The recognition
commission income depends on the purpose for which
the fees are received. Fees are either recognésed a
revenue when services are provided or in connetbion
the execution of a significant act. Fees received i
connection to performed services are recognised as
income in the period these services are provided. A
loan syndication fee received as payment for airgng
a loan as well as other fees received as payments f
certain acts are recognised as revenue when thasct
been completed, i e when the syndication has been
finalised.

Commission expenses are transaction based and
recognised in the period when the services are
received.

Income from issued financial guarantees and exgense
from bought financial guarantees are amortised over
the duration of the instruments and classifiedraee"

and commission income” and “Fee and commission
expense” respectively.

Net gains/losses on items at fair value

Realised and unrealised gains and losses, incluging
interest in Markets, on financial instruments meagu
at fair value are recognised in the item “Net
gains/losses on items at fair value”.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses deriue fro

» Shares/participations and other share-related
instruments

* Interest-bearing securities and other interest-
related instruments

»  Other financial instruments, which contain credit
derivatives as well as commodity
instruments/derivatives

» Foreign exchange gains/losses

“Net gains/losses on items at fair value” includéso
losses from counterparty risk on instruments in the
category Financial assets at fair value througffitpso
loss. Impairment losses from instruments withireoth
categories are recognised in the item “Loan loséses
also the sub-section “Loan losses” below).

Dividends

Dividends received are recognised in the income
statement as “Net gains/losses on items at faireval
and classified as “Shares/participations and other
share-related instruments” in the note. Income is
recognised in the period in which the right to reee
payment is established.
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Profit from companies accounted for under the equit
method

The profit from companies accounted for under the
equity method is defined as the post-acquisiticangie
in NBF's share of net assets in the associated
companies. Profits from companies accounted for
under the equity method are, as stated in section 5
“Principles of consolidation” reported in the incem
statement post taxes. Consequently, tax experatedel
to these profits is excluded from the income tax
expense for NBF.

The change in NBF’s share of the net assets isllmse
the external reporting provided by the associates a
affects the financial statements of NBF in the @eiin
which the information is available.

Other operating income

Net gains from divestments of shares in subsidiarie
and associates and other operating income, naédela
to any other income line, are generally recognised
when it is probable that the benefits associatel thie
transaction will flow to Nordea and if the signéiat
risks and rewards have been transferred to therbuye
(generally when the transactions are finalised).

Loan losses

Impairment losses from financial assets class#éied
Loans and receivables, Held to maturity and interes
bearing securities classified as Available for $aée
section 12 “Financial instruments”) are reported as
“Loan losses”, together with losses from financial
guarantees. Losses are reported net of any callater
and other credit enhancements. Accounting polities
the calculation of impairment losses on loans aund
in section 13 “Loans to the public/credit instituts”.

Losses relating to Financial assets at fair vatoeugh
profit or loss, including credit derivatives, asported
under “Net gains/losses on items at fair value”.

7. Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments in the balance sheet

Derivative instruments, quoted securities and fprei
exchange spot transactions are recognised on and
derecognised from the balance sheet on the trade da
Other financial instruments are recognised on the
balance sheet on settlement date.

Financial assets, other than those for which tdade
accounting is applied, are derecognised from the
balance sheet when the contractual rights to thk ca
flows from the financial asset expire or are transd
to another party. The rights to the cash flows ralyn
expire or are transferred when the counterpart has
performed by e.g. repaying a loan to NBF, i.e. on
settlement date.
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In some cases, NBF enters into transactions where i
transfers assets that are recognised on the balance
sheet, but retains either all or a portion of riaksl
rewards of the transferred assets. If all or suthistidy

all risks and rewards are retained, the transfeassets
are reclassified to the item “Financial instruments
pledged as collateral” in the balance sheet. Teasgif
assets with retention of all or substantially &ks and
rewards include security lending agreements and
repurchase agreements, for example.

Financial liabilities, other than those for whichde

date accounting is applied, are derecognised flem t
balance sheet when the liability is extinguished.
Normally this occurs when NBF performs, for example
when NBF repays a deposit to the counterpart,fi e o
the settlement date.

For further information, see sections “Securities
borrowing and lending agreements” and “Repurchase
and reverse repurchase agreements” within secflon 1
“Financial instruments”, as well as Note 43 “Obtain
collaterals which are permitted to be sold or
repledged”.

8. Translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies

The functional currency of each entity is decideddd
upon the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates.

Foreign currency is defined as any currency othan t
the functional currency of the entity. Foreign emgy
transactions are recorded at the exchange rateeon t
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and iliaisil
denominated in foreign currencies are translatédeat
exchange rate on the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
transactions at rates different from those at tite df
the transaction, and unrealised translation diffees
on unsettled foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities, are recognised in the income statenietihe
item “Net gains/losses on items at fair value”.

9. Hedge accounting

IAS 39 includes principles and rules concerning
accounting for hedging instruments and the undeglyi
hedged item, so-called hedge accounting. All
derivatives are measured at fair value. NBF apties
EU carve out version of IAS 39 for portfolio hedgds
both assets and liabilities.
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The hedge accounting policy within NBF has been
developed to fulfil the requirements set out in I12%
NBF uses hedge accounting in order to have a
symmetrical accounting treatment of the changdaiin
value of the hedged item and changes in fair vafue
the hedging instruments and in order to hedge the
exposure to variability in cash flows and net
investments in foreign operations. The overall ps
is to have a true and fair presentation of NBF's
economical hedges in the financial statements. The
overall operational responsibility to hedge posisio
and for hedge accounting lies within Group Treasury

According to IAS 39 there are three forms of hedge
accounting:

e Fair value hedge accounting
e Cash flow hedge accounting
e Hedges of net investments

NBF currently applies only fair value hedge
accounting.

Fair value hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting is used when derivative
are hedging changes in fair value of a recognissdta
or liability attributable to a specific risk. Thisk of
changes in fair value of assets and liabilitieBlBF’'s
financial statements originates mainly from loans,
securities and deposits with a fixed interest rate,
causing interest rate risk. Changes in fair vatoenf
derivatives as well as changes in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the risks being hedgiéd
be recognised separately in the income statemehein
item “Net gains/losses on items at fair value”. &ian
effective hedge, the two changes in fair value miire
or less balance, meaning the net result will beeto
zero. The changes in fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risks hedged with the derivativ
instrument are reflected in an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the hedged item, which is also
recognised in the income statement. The fair value
change of the hedged item in a portfolio hedge of
interest rate risks is reported separately from the
portfolio in “Fair value changes of the hedged isam
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk” in accordanath
IAS 39.

Fair value hedge accounting in Nordea is performed
mainly on a portfolio basis. The effectivenesshaf t
hedging relationships is consequently measured and
evaluated so that any ineffectiveness is affedtieg
income statement under the item “Net gains/losses o
items at fair value”.
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Hedging instruments

The hedging instruments used in NBF are
predominantly interest rate swaps. Currency interes
rate swaps and cash instruments are only utilised i
few transactions. Cash instruments are only used as
hedging instruments when hedging currency risk.

Hedged items

According to IAS 39 a hedged item can be a single
asset or liability as well as a group of assets or
liabilities with similar risk characteristics. Heeld
items in NBF consist of both individual assets or
liabilities and portfolios of assets or liabilities

Hedge effectiveness

The application of hedge accounting requires tligbe
to be highly effective. A hedge is regarded as lgigh
effective if at inception and throughout its litecan be
expected that changes in fair value of the hediged i
can be essentially offset by changes in fair valfue
hedging instrument. The result should be within a
range of 80—125 per cent.

When assessing hedge effectiveness retrospectively
NBF measures the fair value of the hedging
instruments and compares the change in fair vdlue o
the hedging instrument to the change in fair value
the hedged item. The effectiveness measurement is
made on a cumulative basis.

If the hedge relationship does not fulfil the
requirements, hedge accounting will be terminated.
The change in the unrealised value of the derieativ
will, prospectively from the last time it was lgsbven
effective, be accounted for in the income stateraént
fair value through profit or loss. For fair valuedyes,
the change in the fair value on the hedged itemoup
the point when the hedge relationship is terminated
amortised to the income statement on a straight-lin
basis over the remaining maturity of the hedgem.ite

10. Determination of fair value of financial
instruments

Financial assets and liabilities classified asrfial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profitloss and
derivative instruments are recorded at fair valn¢he
balance sheet with changes in fair value recognised
the income statement in the item “Net gains/losses
items at fair value”.

Fair value is defined by IAS 32 and IAS 39 as the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
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The existence of published price quotations inciva
market is the best evidence of fair value and whew
exist they are used to measure financial assets and
financial liabilities. NBF is predominantly using
published price quotations to establish fair vdare
items disclosed under the following balance sheet
items:

» Treasury bills

* Interest-bearing securities

* Shares

» Derivatives (listed derivatives)

If quoted prices for a financial instrument fail to

represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions or if quoted prices are not availdiale,

value is established by using an appropriate viaoat

technique. Valuation techniques can range from Emp

discounted cash flow analysis to complex option

pricing models. Valuation models are designed to

apply observable market prices and rates as input

whenever possible, but can also make use of

unobservable model parameters. NBF is predominantly

using valuation techniques to establish fair vdtre

items disclosed under the following balance sheet

items:

» Treasury bills (when quoted prices in an active
market are not available)

» Interest-bearing securities (when quoted prices in
an active market are not available)

» Shares (when quoted prices in an active market are
not available)

» Derivatives (OTC derivatives)

Fair value is calculated as the theoretical netgume
value of the individual contracts, based on
independently sourced market parameters and
assuming no risks and uncertainties. This calandat
supplemented by a portfolio adjustment. The pddfol
adjustment covers uncertainties associated with the
valuation techniques, model assumptions and
unobservable parameters as well as the portfolio’s
counterparty credit risk and liquidity risk. An imgant
part of the portfolio adjustment serves to adjbstrnet
open market risk exposures from mid-prices to ask o
bid prices (depending on the net position). Fdiedént
risk categories, exposures are aggregated andinette
according to internal guidelines and aggregatedketar
price information on bid-ask spreads are applietthén
calculation. Spreads are updated on a regular.basis
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The portfolio adjustment for model risk comprises t
components (The calculation principles are defiagd
part of the internal approval process for valuation
models):

» Benchmarking of the model output (market values)
against market information or against results from
alternative models, where available

»  Sensitivity calculations where unobservable
parameters are varied to take other reasonable
values

The portfolio adjustment for counterparty risk ifT©
derivatives is based on the current exposure tavard
each counterpart, the estimated potential future
exposure as well as an estimate of the cost ofihgdg
the counterparty risk. This cost of hedging iseith
based directly on market prices (where availableyro
a theoretical calculation based on the internalitre
rating of the counterpart.

For financial instruments, where fair value is restied

by a valuation technique, it is investigated whethe
variables used in the valuation model are
predominantly based on data from observable markets
By data from observable markets, NBF considers data
that can be collected from generally available @tk
sources and judged to represent realistic markestgr

If non-observable data has a significant impacthen
valuation, the instrument cannot be recognisedlhit

at the fair value estimated by the valuation teghai

and any upfront gains are thereby deferred and
amortised through the income statement over the
contractual life of the contract

A breakdown of fair values of financial instruments
measured on the basis of quoted prices in activkeha
for the same instrument (level 1), valuation teghes
using observable data (level 2), and valuation
techniques using non-observable data (level 3) is
provided in Note 41 “Assets and liabilities at fair
value”.

The valuation models applied by NBF are consistent
with accepted economic methodologies for pricing
financial instruments and incorporate the factbad t
market participants consider when setting a price.

New valuation models are subject to approval by
Group Credit and Risk Control and all models are
reviewed on a regular basis.

For further information, see Note 41 “Assets and
liabilities at fair value”.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash anddaeslan

with central banks where the following conditiome a

fulfilled:

e The central bank is domiciled in a country where
Nordea is operating under a banking licence

e The balance is readily available at any time

Cash and cash equivalents are financial instruments
classified within the category “Loans and receieab|
see section 12 “Financial instruments”.

Loans to credit institutions payable on demandaise
recognised as “Cash and cash equivalents” in tble ca
flow statement.

12. Financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments
Each financial instrument within the scope of IA% 3
has been classified into one of the following catess:

Financial assets:

» Financial assets at fair value through profit @sto
— Held for trading
— Financial assets upon initial recognition
designated at fair value through profit or lossi{Fa
Value Option)

* Loans and receivables

* Held to maturity investments

* Available for sale financial assets

Financial liabilities:

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
loss:
— Held for trading
— Financial liabilities upon initial recognition
designated at fair value through profit or lossiFa
Value Option)

*  Other financial liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initialtyeasured
at fair value. The classification of financial inghents
into different categories forms the basis for haete
instrument is subsequently measured in the balance
sheet and how changes in its value are recogrii$es.
classification of financial instruments in NBF'sl&ace
sheet is presented in the note 40 “Classification o
financial instruments”.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at faialue
through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fatue
through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
excluding transaction costs. All changes in faiuea
are recognised directly in the income statemettién
item “Net gains/losses on items at fair value”.
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The category consists of two sub-categories; Haid f
trading and Financial assets/financial liabilitigson
initial recognition designated at fair value thrbug
profit or loss (Fair value option).

The sub-category Held for trading mainly contains
derivative instruments that are held for trading
purposes, interest-bearing securities and shatbésmwi
Markets and Treasury. It also contains trading
liabilities such as short-selling positions.

The major parts of the sub-categories Financial
assets/financial liabilities upon initial recogaoiti
designated at fair value through profit or losssisinof
some shares and interest bearing securities.

NBF also applies the Fair value option on certain
financial assets and financial liabilities related
Markets. The classification stems from that Markets
managing and measuring all its financial assets and
liabilities to fair value. Consequently, all finaak
assets and financial liabilities in Markets aressified
as Financial assets and financial liabilities atJalue
through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets, with fixed or determinable payments, thet a
not quoted in an active market. These assets a&d th
impairment are further described in the separatgose
13 “Loans to the public/credit institutions”.

Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are initially recogrdsn
the balance sheet at the acquisition price, inolydi
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recogmitibe
instruments within this category are measured at
amortised cost. In an amortised cost measurentent, t
difference between acquisition cost and redemption
value is amortised in the income statement over the
remaining term using the effective interest rat¢hme.

NBF assesses at each reporting date whether there i
any objective evidence that the asset is impalfed.
there is such evidence, an impairment loss is detbr
The loss is calculated as the difference between th
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows and is recognised as “Loan |dsSses
the income statement. See section 13 “Loans to the
public/credit institutions” for more information dhe
identification and measurement of objective evidenc
of impairment.

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are measurddiat
value. Changes in fair values, except for interest,
foreign exchange effects and impairment losses, are
recognised directly in the revaluation reserves in
equity. Interest is recognised as interest incantbe
income statement and foreign exchange effects from
Available for sale financial assets are recogniedtie
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income statement in the item “Net gains/losses on
items at fair value”. Impairment losses on interest
bearing securities classified as Available for $aée
section 12 “Financial instruments”) are, as stated
section 6 “Recognition of operating income and loan
losses”, reported as “Loan losses”.

When an available for sale financial assets isadisgd

of, the accumulated fair value changes that presiyou
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
are removed from equity and recognised in the ircom
statement in the item “Net gains/losses on itenfgiat
value”.

Available for sale financial assets are assesskzsit
annually in order to determine any need for impainm
losses. If there is objective evidence of impairmére
accumulated loss that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. The amourtiteof t
accumulated loss that is removed from equity is the
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost and
current fair value.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than those classifasd
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss,
are measured at amortised cost. Interest from Other
financial liabilities is recognised in the item témest
expense” in the income statement.

Hybrid (combined) financial instruments

Hybrid (combined) financial instruments are corisac
containing a host contract and an embedded derévati
instrument. Such combinations arise predominantly
from the issuance of structured debt instrumenish s
as issued index-linked bonds.

Index-linked bonds issued by Markets as part of the
trading portfolio are classified as Held for tragliand
the entire combined instrument, host contract fogyet
with the embedded derivative, is measured at taliner
through profit or loss. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the income statement in the item “Net
gains/losses on items at fair value”.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements
Generally, securities borrowing and securities ilegd
transactions are entered into on a collateralisesisb
Unless the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred, the securities are not recognised on o
derecognised from the balance sheet. In the cases
where the counterpart is entitled to resell oredge
the securities, the securities are recognised®n th
balance sheet as “Financial instruments pledged as
collateral”.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009

Securities in securities lending transactions are
recognised off balance sheet in the item “Assets
pledged as security for own liabilities”.

Cash collateral advanced to the counterparts is
recognised on the balance sheet as “Loans to credit
institutions” or as “Loans to the public”. Cash
collateral received from the counterparts is recsgph
on the balance sheet as “Deposits by credit inistiig”
or as “Deposits and borrowings from the public”.

Interest income and expense generated from these
transactions are recognised in “Net gains/losses on
items at fair value”.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
Securities delivered under repurchase agreemedts an
securities received under reverse repurchase
agreements are not derecognised from or recognised
the balance sheet. In the cases where the courtterpa
has the right to resell or repledge the securites,
securities are recognised on the balance sheet as
“Financial instruments pledged as collateral”.

Securities delivered under repurchase agreemests ar
recognised off-balance sheet in the item “Assets
pledged as security for own liabilities”.

Cash received under repurchase agreements is
recognised on the balance sheet as “Deposits bijt cre
institutions” or as “Deposits and borrowings frome t
public”. Cash delivered under reverse repurchase
agreements is recognised on the balance sheet as
“Loans to credit institutions” or as “Loans to the
public”.

Additionally, the sale of securities received inaese
repurchase agreements trigger the recognition of a
trading liability (short sale).

Derivatives

All derivatives are recognised on the balance saeét
measured at fair value. Derivatives with total gosi
fair values, including any accrued interest, are
recognised as assets in the item “Derivatives”.
Derivatives with total negative fair values, indiugl
any accrued interest, are recognised as liabiliti¢lse
item “Derivatives”.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses from
derivatives are recognised in the income stateiment
the item “Net gains/losses on items at fair value”.
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13. Loans to the public/credit institutions

Financial instruments categorised within “Loans and
receivables” are measured at amortised cost (see al
the separate section 7 “Recognition and derecaogniti
of financial instruments in the balance sheet” ai as
Note 40 "Classification of financial instruments”).

Nordea monitors loans as described in the separate
section on Risk, Liquidity and Capital management.
Loans attached to individual customers or groups of
customers are identified as impaired if the impaintn
test indicates objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment test of loans attached to individual
customers

Nordea tests significant loans for impairment on an
individual basis. The purpose of the impairmentstés
to find out if the loans have become impaired. As a
first step in the identification process for imair
loans, Nordea monitors whether there are indicdtors
impairment (loss event) and whether these represent
objective evidence of impairment. More informatim
the identification of loss events can be founchim t
“Risk, Liquidity and Capital Management” section.

In the process to conclude whether there is objecti
evidence of impairment, an assessment is perfotmed
estimate the most probable future cash flows géetra
by the customer. These cash flows are then disedunt
by the effective interest rate giving the net pnése
value. Collaterals received to mitigate the creidk

will be assessed at fair value. If the carrying amaof
the loan is higher than the net present valueef th
estimated future cash flows, including the fairneabf
the collaterals, the loan is impaired.

Loans that are not individually impaired will be
transferred to a group of loans with similar risk
characteristics for a collective impairment test.

Impairment test of loans attached to groups of
customers

All loans not impaired on an individual basis are
collectively assessed for impairment. The loans are
grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics that are indicative of the debtakslity
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms. Nordea monitors its portfolio through rating
migrations, the credit decision and annual review
process supplemented by quarterly risk reviews.
Through these processes Nordea identifies losggven
indicating incurred losses in a group. A loss eveain
event resulting in a deterioration of the expedtadre
cash flows. Only loss events incurred up to the
reporting date are included when performing the
assessment of the group.
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The objective for the group assessment process is t
evaluate if there is a need to make a provisiontdue
the fact that a loss event has occurred, whicmbas
yet been identified on an individual basis. Thisiq
between the date when the loss event occurredhand t
date when it is identified on an individual basis i
called “Emergence period”. The impairment remains
related to the group of loans until the losses Hmen
identified on an individual basis. The identificatiis
made through a default of the engagement or by othe
indicators.

For corporate customers and bank counterparts,edord
uses the existing rating system as a basis when
assessing the credit risk. Nordea uses historaial on
probability of default to estimate the risk for efault

in a rating class. These loans are rated and gdoupe
mostly based on type of industry and/or sensititaty
certain macro parameters, e g dependency to cg®ri
etc. Personal customers and small corporate custsome
are monitored through scoring models. These aredbas
mostly on historical data, as default rates and tages
given a default, and experienced judgement perfdrme
by management. Rating and scoring models are
described in more detail in the separate section on
Risk, Liquidity and Capital management.

The collective assessment is performed through a
netting principle, i e when rated engagements pre u
rated due to estimated increases in cash flows, thi
improvement will be netted against losses on ldhat
are downrated due to estimated decreases in cashflo
Netting is only performed within groups with simila
risk characteristics where Nordea assesses that the
customers’ future cash flows are insufficient tovee
the loans in full.

Impairment loss

If the carrying amount of the loans is higher thiz
sum of the net present value of estimated cashsflow
including the fair value of the collaterals andesth
credit enhancements, the difference is the impaitme
loss.

If the impairment loss is not regarded as finad, th
impairment loss is accounted for on an allowance
account representing the accumulated impairment
losses. Changes in the credit risk and accumulated
impairment losses will be recorded as changesen th
allowance account and as “Loan losses” in the ircom
statement (see also section 6 “Recognition of djmgra
income and loan losses”).

If the impairment loss is regarded as final, itaported
as a realised loss. A realised loss is recogninddiae
value of the loan and the related allowance for
impairment loss are derecognised with a correspondi
gain or loss recognised in the line item “Loan &s3s
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in the income statement. An impairment loss is
regarded as final when the obligor is filed for
bankruptcy and the administrator has declared the
economic outcome of the bankruptcy procedure, or
when Nordea forgives its claims either throughgale
based or voluntary reconstruction or when NBF, for
other reasons, deems it unlikely that the clainh bl
recovered.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure impairment is the
original effective interest rate for loans attache@dn
individual customer and, if applicable, to a graip
loans.

Restructured loans

In this context a restructured loan is defined kma
where the creditor has granted concessions to the
obligor due to its deteriorated financial situatamd
where this concession has resulted in an impairment
loss for the creditor. After a reconstruction tbari is
normally regarded as not impaired if it performs
according to the new conditions. Concessions made i
reconstructions are regarded as final losses uNIB&s
retains the possibility to regain the realised lwmses
incurred. This is, in the event of a recovery, régd as
recoveries of realised loan losses.

Assets taken over for protection of claims

In a financial reconstruction the creditor may cee
loans to the obligor and in exchange for this cerimn
acquires an asset pledged for the conceded loans,
shares issued by the obligor or other assets. #\sset
taken over for protection of claims are reportedtan
same balance sheet line as similar assets alreddy h
by NBF. For example a property taken over, not held
for NBF's own use, is reported together with other
investments properties. At initial recognition, adisets
taken over for protection of claims are valuedaat f
value. The fair value of the asset on the date of
recognition is its cost or amortised cost value, as
applicable. In subsequent periods, assets takerfave
protection of claims are valued in accordance ttith
valuation principles for the appropriate type ofets
Investment properties are then measured at faileval
Financial assets that are foreclosed are classified
Available for sale (see section 12 “Financial
instruments”) and measured at fair value. Changes i
fair values are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Any change in value, after the initial recognitiointhe
asset taken over, is presented in the income statem
in line with the Group’s presentation policies tbe
appropriate asset. Consequently, the credit lossidi
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after the initial recognition of the asset takeermonot
affected by any subsequent remeasurement of teé ass

14. Leasing

NBF as lessor

Finance leases

NBF's leasing operations mainly comprise finance
leases. A finance lease is reported as a receitainte
the lessee in the balance sheet item “Loans to the
public” at an amount equal to the net investmenhén
lease. The lease payment, excluding cost of sexvise
recorded as repayment of principal and interesirme
The income allocation is based on a pattern reéfigct
constant periodic return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Operating leases

Assets subject to operating leases in the balameet s
are reported in accordance with the nature of #isets,
in general as property and equipment. Leasing ircom
is recognised as income on a straight-line basés the
lease term. The depreciation of the leased assets i
calculated on the basis of NBF’s depreciation polic
for similar assets and reported as depreciation on
property and equipment in the income statement.

NBF as lessee

Finance leases

No leases in NBF have been classified as finance
leases.

Operating leases

For operating leases the lease payments are resgagni
as expenses in the income statement on a stranght-|
basis over the lease term unless another systewayic
better reflects the time pattern of the user’s Gerkhe
lease terms range between 3 to 25 years.

Operating leasing is mainly related to office pressi
contracts and office equipment contracts norméhéo
business.

The central district properties in Finland that NB&S
divested are leased back. The duration of the lease
agreements were initially 3-25 years with renewal
options. The lease agreements include no transfers
ownerships of the asset by the end of the leasg ter
nor any economic benefits from appreciation in galu
of the leased property. In addition, the lease tisrnot
for the major part of the assets’ economic lifee3éa
leases are thus classified as operating leasegented
expense for these premises is recognised on tlie dfas
the time-pattern of NBF's economic benefit which
differs from the straight-line basis and betteerables
an ordinary rental arrangement.
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Embedded leases

Agreements can contain a right to use an assetunrr
for a payment, or a series of payments, although th
agreement is not in the legal form of a leasing rean.
If applicable, these assets are separated from the
contract and accounted for as leased assets.

15. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable, non-monetasg&s
without physical substance. The assets are under
NBF'’s control, which means that NBF has the power
and rights to obtain the future economic benefits
flowing from the underlying resource. The intangibl
assets in NBF mainly consist of computer softwane a
customer related intangible assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of NBF's share ef n
identifiable assets of the acquired group
undertaking/associated undertaking at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of group
undertakings is included in “Intangible assets”.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included
“Investments in associated undertakings”. Goodiill
tested annually for impairment, or more frequeiftly
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programs are recognised as expenses as incurrsts Co
directly associated with major software development
investments, with a useful life of three years aren
and the ability to generate future economic begsgdite
recognised as intangible assets. These costs aclud
software development staff costs and overhead
expenditure directly attributable to preparing dsset
for use. Computer software includes also acquired
software licenses not related to the function of a
tangible asset.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line bamsisr
the useful life of the software, generally a perid@®
to 10 years.

Customer related intangible assets

When acquiring customer related contracts the fair
value of these contracts is recognised as customer
related intangible assets. Amortisation is recagghis
over the expected lifetime of the contracts.
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Other intangible assets

Expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks and
licenses is capitalised and amortised using tlaégst-
line method over their useful lives, generally ange

Impairment

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeénit
useful lives are not amortised but tested for impait
annually irrespective of any indications of impagmh
Impairment testing is also performed more frequeiftl
required due to indication of impairment. The
impairment charge is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount.

At each balance sheet date, all other intangildetas
with definite useful lives are reviewed for indiicats

of impairment. If such indications exist, an anays
performed to assess whether the carrying amouhieof
intangible asset is fully recoverable.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair védiss
costs to sell and the value in use of the assgeor
cash-generating unit, which is defined as the ssall
identifiable group of assets that generates cdkivia
in relation to the asset. For goodwill, the cash
generating units are defined as the customer areas
country. The value in use is the present valudef t
cash flows expected to be realised from the asgbeo
cash-generating unit. The cash flows are assessed
based on the asset or cash-generating unit initert
condition and discounted at a discount rate detedhi
as the cost of equity, estimated according to stahd
capital asset pricing. If the recoverable amoufgss
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised.

16. Property and equipment

Property and equipment includes own-used properties
leasehold improvements, IT equipment, furniture and
other equipment. Items of property and equipmeat ar
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of andem
property and equipment comprises its purchase price
as well as any directly attributable costs of hiriggthe
asset to the working condition for its intended. use
When parts of an item of property and equipmenthav
different useful lives, they are accounted forggzasate
items.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis

follows:

» Buildings: 30-75 years

» Equipment: 3-5 years

» Leasehold improvements: Changes within
buildings the shorter of 10 years and the remaining
leasing term.
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At each balance sheet date, Nordea assesses whether
there is any indication that an item of propertg an
equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset imattd

and any impairment loss is recognised.

17. Investment property

Investment properties are primarily properties held
earn rent and capital appreciation. Investment
properties are measured at fair value. The bedtace
of a fair value is normally given by current pricgsan
active market for similar property in the same taoa
and condition. In the absence of current pricearon
active market, discounted cash flow projectionstas
on reliable estimates of future cash flows are used

Net rental income is reported in the item “Other
operating income”. Gains and losses as well as fair
value adjustments are recognised directly in therime
statement as “Net gains/losses on items at faireval

18. Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defeawed t
Income tax expense is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that the tax efédates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income o
directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is
recognised in other comprehensive income or intgqui
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax expense on thélkaxa
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, ayd an
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previoasse

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognigsihg
the balance sheet method, for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and ligsilit
for financial reporting purposes and the amounésius
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for the carry forward of unused taxdess
and unused tax credits. Deferred tax is not recsaghi
for temporary differences arising on initial recdgm
of assets or liabilities in a transaction thatas a
business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differencestietp
to investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies to the extent that it is probable they thill
not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition,
deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporar
differences arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reportg d
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not distedinA
deferred tax asset is recognised to the extentttisat
probable that future taxable profits will be avhi&a
against which the temporary differences, tax losses
carry forward and unused tax credits can be utilise
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repatéitey
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be e

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitiescifget
when the legal right to offset exists. Deferred dazets
and liabilities are offset if there is a legallyferceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets.

19. Pensions to employees

Pension plans

The companies within Nordea have various pension
plans, consisting of both defined benefit plans and
defined contribution plans, reflecting nationalgiiges
and conditions in the countries where they opeiiite.
major defined benefit plans are funded schemes
covered by assets in pension funds/foundatioribelf
fair value of plan assets, associated with a sigecif
pension plan, is lower than the gross present wa@lue
the defined benefit obligation, the net amount is
recognised as a liability (defined benefit obligai. If
not, the net amount is recognised as an assehédkefi
benefit asset). Non-funded pension plans are
recognised as defined benefit obligations.

Certain Finnish plans are based on defined corioibu
arrangements that hold no pension liability for NBF
NBF also contributes to public pension systems.

Pension costs
The pension calculations are carried out by cousutiy
by pension plan in accordance with IAS 19.

Obligations for defined contribution pension plams
recognised as an expense as the employee renders
services to the entity and the contribution payatle
exchange for that service becomes due. Nordea’s net
obligation for defined benefit pension plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimatieg t
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
for their service in the current and prior periotisat
benefit is discounted to determine its presente/alu
Any unrecognised prior service cost and the faluea
of any plan assets are deducted. Actuarial caioulsit
performed annually, are applied to assess the mirese
value of defined benefit obligations and relatestsp
based on several actuarial and financial assungption
(as disclosed in Note 34 “Retirement benefit
obligations”).
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When establishing the present value of the oblbgati
and the fair value of any plan assets, actuariaisgand
losses may arise as a result of changes in adtuaria
assumptions and experience effects (actual outcome
compared to assumptions). The actuarial gains and
losses are not recognised immediately in the income
statement. Rather, only when the net cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds a
“corridor” equal to 10 percent of the greater dher

the present value of the defined benefit obligation
the fair value of the plan assets, the excess is
recognised in the income statement over the exgecte
average remaining service period of the employees
participating in the plan. Otherwise, actuarialngaand
losses are not recognised.

When the calculation results in a benefit to thedda
entity, the recognised asset is limited to thetotet of
any unrecognised actuarial losses, unrecognised pas
service costs and the present value of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

20. Equity

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the portion ef n
assets of group undertakings not owned directly or
indirectly by Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise income and expenses,taet af
tax effects that are reported in equity in accocgan

with IFRS. These reserves include revaluation keser

in accordance with IAS 39 (Fair value reserve and
Cash flow hedges) as well as translation differsrice
accordance with IAS 21.

Retained earnings

Apart from undistributed profits from previous ysar
retained earnings include the equity portion obxat
reserves.

Untaxed reserves according to national rules are
recorded as equity net of deferred tax at prewaiiax
rates in respective country.

In addition, NBF’s share of the earnings in asdeda
companies, after the acquisition date, that hate no
been distributed is included in retained earnings.

Treasury shares
NBF does not hold its own shares.

Contracts on Nordea shares that can be settlad net
cash are either a financial asset or financiallltsb

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009

21. Financial guarantee contracts and credit
commitments

Upon initial recognition, premiums received in isdu
financial guarantee contracts and credit commitsient
are recognised as deferred income on the balamet. sh
The guarantees and irrevocable credit commitments a
subsequently measured, and recognised on the balanc
sheet, at the higher of either the received fee les
amortisation, or a provision calculated as the
discounted best estimate of the expenditure redudae
settle the present obligation. Changes in proviseme
recognised in the income statement in the item fLoa
losses”.

Premiums received for financial guarantees are, as
stated in section 6 “Recognition of operating ineom
and loan losses”, amortised over the guaranteegeri
and recognised as "Fee and commission income”an th
income statement. Premiums received on credit
commitments are amortised over the loan commitment
period. The contractual amounts are recognised off-
balance sheet, financial guarantees in the item
“Contingent liabilities” and irrevocable credit
commitments in the item “Commitments”.

22. Share-based payment

Nordea Bank AB (publ) has issued Long Term
Incentive Programmes in 2007, 2008 and 2009.
Employees participating in these programmes are
granted share-based and equity-settled rightsghés
to acquire shares in Nordea at a significant disttu
the share price at grant date. According to IFR®e,
value of such rights is to be expensed. The expiense
based on the estimated fair value of each rigbtaatt
date. The total fair value of these rights is detaed
based on the group’s estimate of the number ofgigh
that will eventually vest, which is reassessedaahe
reporting date, and is expensed on a straightdasts
over the vesting period. The vesting period is the
period that the employees have to remain in Nosdea’
service in order for their rights to vest. Market
performance conditions in D-rights are reflectedas
probability adjustment to the initial estimate airf
value at grant date. There is no adjustment (tp)efar
differences between estimated and actual vestiegau
market conditions.

For more information see Note 8 “Staff costs”.
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23. Related party transactions

NBF defines related parties as:

» Shareholders with significant influence
e Group undertakings

e Associated undertakings

« Key management personnel

e Other related parties

Shareholders with significant influence

Shareholders with significant influence are
shareholders that, by any means, have a significant
influence over NBF. Nordea and its group companies
are considered as having such significant influence

Group undertakings

For the definition of Group undertakings see sechio
“Principles of consolidation”. Further informatiam
the undertakings included in the Bank Group is tbun
in Note 20 “Investments in group undertakings”.

Group internal transactions between legal entéres
performed according to arm’s length principles in
conformity with OECD requirements on transfer
pricing. These transactions are eliminated in the
consolidated accounts.

Associated undertakings
For the definition of Associated undertakings see
section 5 “Principles of consolidation”.

Further information on the associated undertakings
included in the Bank Group is found in Note 21
“Investments in associated undertakings”.

Key management personnel
Key management personnel include the following
positions:

e The Board of Directors of NBF and of Nordea
Bank AB (publ)

e The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

e The Group Executive Management (GEM)

For information about compensation, pensions and
other transactions with key management personeel, s
Note 8 “Staff costs”.

Other related parties

Other related parties comprise close family memteers
individuals in key management personnel. Other
related parties also include companies signifigantl
influenced by key management personnel in Nordea
Group as well as companies significantly influenbgd
close family members to these key management
personnel. Other related parties also include NBF's
pension foundations.
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Information concerning transactions between NBF and
other related parties is found in Note 45 “Relapadty
transactions”.

24. Segment reporting

Segment reporting structure

Within Nordea, customer responsibility is fundanaént
NBF's total business relations with customers are
reported in the customer responsible unit's income
statement and balance sheet. The Operating segments
have been identified based on Nordea’s operating
model and internal reporting structure.

Financial results are presented for the four opagat
segments Nordic Banking, New European Markets,
Financial Institutions as well as Shipping, Oil Bees
& International. The customer operations whichraose
included in these segments are included in Other
operating segments (International Private Banking &
Funds and the result in Capital Market Productstvhi
is not allocated to the main operating segments)ufs
Functions, eliminations as well as the result ihaiot
fully allocated to any of the operating segments, a
shown separately as reconciling items.

Allocation principles

Costs are allocated from Group Functions and Pitoduc
Areas to operating segments based on internal
principles, aiming at the highest possible degfemst
transparency. Income is allocated with the undeglyi
business transactions as driver combined with the
identification of the customer responsible unitséts,
liabilities and economic capital are allocatedhe t
operating segments.

Transfer pricing

Funds transfer pricing is based on current market
interest rates and applied to all assets and iliaisil
allocated to or accounted for in the operating sags
or Group Functions.

Group internal transactions between legal entéres
performed according to arm’s length principles in
conformity with OECD requirements on transfer
pricing. The financial result of such transactias
reported in the relevant operating segment based on
assigned product and customer responsibilities.
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Note 2 Segment reporting

Group
Operating segments
Shipping,
Oil Services
Nordic Banking New European Markets Financial buitbons & International
Income statementEURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Net interest income 789 1,146 103 99 7 14 66 57
Net fee and commission income 466 416 35 38 34 41 11 16
Net gains/losses on items at fair
value 148 131 19 14 44 49 16 10
Profit from companies accounted
for under the equity method 4 -4 - - - - - -
Other income 3 3 1 1 24 2 1 1
Total operating income 1,410 1,692 158 152 109 106 94 84
Staff costs -317 -293 -29 -29 -9 -9 -24 -23
Other expenses -495 -475 -40 -29 -27 -27 7 6
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment charges of tangible and
intangible assets -3 -4 -3 -2 0 0 -1 -1
Total operating expenses -815 =772 -72 -60 -36 -36 -18 -18
Net loan losses -185 -66 -138 -32 -10 -14 -7 1
Operating profit 410 854 -52 60 63 56 69 67
Income tax expense - - - - - - - -
Net profit for the year 410 854 -52 60 63 56 69 67
Balance sheettURm
Loans to the public 46,365 47,073 7,046 7,340 2 8 6,124 7,209
Deposits and borrowings from the
public 35,668 33,951 2,041 1,774 1,046 768 4,278 4,361
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Note 2 Segment reporting, cont.

Group
Operating segments

Other operating

Total

segments operating segments Reconciliation Total Group
Income statementEURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Net interest income 14 8 979 1,324 224 487 1,202 1,812
Net fee and commission income -109 -117 437 394 -196 -180 241 215
Net gains/losses on items at fair
value 1,076 602 1,303 806 22 -36 1,325 770
Profit from companies accounted
for under the equity method - - 4 -4 0 0 4 -4
Other income 0 -1 29 6 24 24 53 29
Total operating income 981 492 2,752 2,526 74 295 2,825 2,822
Staff costs -68 -64 -447 -418 -152 -118 -599 -537
Other expenses -200 -148 -755 -673 323 276 -432 -397
Depreciation of tangible and
intangible assets 0 0 -7 -7 -31 -26 -37 -33
Total operating expenses -268 -212 -1,209 -1,098 140 132 -1,068 -967
Net loan losses 0 0 -340 -111 -41 -22 -381 -133
Operating profit 713 280 1,203 1,317 173 405 1,376 1,722
Income tax expense - - - - -373 -389 -373 -389
Net profit for the year 713 280 1,203 1,317 -200 16 1,003 1,333
Balance sheetEURm
Loans to the public - - 59,537 61,630 6,185 6,664 65,723 68,293
Deposits and borrowings from the
public - - 43,033 40,854 1,224 4,425 44,256 45,279
Reconciliation between total operating segments arfthancial statements

2009

Total operating

Deposits and borrowings

EURmM income Operating profit Loans to the public from the public
Total Operating segments 2,752 1,203 59,537 43,033
Group function’ 85 173 6,306 1,246
Unallocated items - - - -

Eliminations -12 0 -120 -23

Total 2,825 1,376 65,723 44,256

2008
Total operating Deposits and borrowings

EURmM income Operating profit Loans to the public from the public
Total Operating segments 2,526 1,317 61,630 40,854
Group function’ 307 405 6,783 4,448
Unallocated items - - - -

Eliminations -11 0 -120 -23
Total 2,822 1,722 68,293 45,279

T Consists of Group Management Secretariat, Group Internal Audit, Group Credit and Risk Control, Human Resources and Group Identity and Communications.

Basis of segmentation and measurement of segmenofit or loss
In November 2006 the IASB issued IFRS 8 "OperaSegments", which is mandatory for periods beginoingr after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8
has had an impact on the reportable segments idledpmainly as the previously aggregated segmestitutional & International Banking has
been divided into three individual reportable segtaéNew European Markets, Financial Institutiond &hipping, Oil Services &
International). Other Operating segments belowgtiemntitative thresholds in IFRS 8 are included théd operating segments. Comparative
information has been restated accordingly.
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Note 2 Segment reporting, cont.

Reportable Operating segments

Nordea's operating model defines four areas irthanisation reflecting different responsibiliti€ustomer areas, Product areas, Group
operations and Support areas. The Operating segrhané been identified based on the Customer ard¢las operating model and on the
internal reporting structure. The Customer areasesponsible for the overall business relatiomaitustomer or customer group.

Nordic Banking conducts a full service banking aien. It is NBF's largest customer area and sdreesehold customers and corporate
customers in the Finnish markets. The branchesnibrdea's banking activities in the New Europktarkets offer full banking services for
local and Nordic corporate and personal custonmeEstonia, Latvia and Lithuania. Customers withordic Banking and New European
Markets are offered a complete range of bankingyets and services including accounts productsséaetions products, markets products and
insurance products. The Financial Institutions sagns responsible for Nordea's customers withirfittancial institution industry. Nordea
Bank Finland's financial institution services irtusingle products such as funds, equity proddctaswell as consulting services within asset
allocation and fund sales. The segment ShippinigG@vices & International is responsible for Nagecustomers within the shipping,
offshore and oil services industries. Nordea presithilormade solutions and syndicated loan traiegecwithin this area.

Group

Total operating income split on product groups

EURmM 2009 2008
Banking products 1,858 2,120
Capital Markets products 990 522
Savings Products & Asset Management 18 25
Life & Pensions 7 3
Other -48 152
Total 2,825 2,822

Banking products consists of three product respdmsiivisions. Account products is responsibledeveloping and delivering account based
products such as lending, deposits and cards atishileservices. Transaction products provides aweldps cash management, trade and
project finance services. Nordea Finance is resplenfor asset based financing through leasing purchase and factoring as well as offering
sales to finance partners such as dealers, veaddreetailers. Capital Markets products includearftial instruments, or arrangement for a
financial instrument, that are available in theafinial marketplace, including currencies, commesjtstocks, bonds, and existing
arrangements. Savings Products & Asset Managemeintes Investment funds, Discretionary Managentemtfolio Advice, Equity Trading
and Pension Accounts. Investment Funds is a bumitatlict where the fund company invest in stockads, derivatives or other standardised
products on behalf of the fund's shareholders.rBiemary Management is a service providing theagament of an investment portfolio on
behalf of the customer and Portfolio Advice is eviee provided to support the customers investrdeotsion. Nordea Life & Pensions
provides life insurance and pension products andcss.

Group
Geographical information
Total operating income Assets

EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Sweden 26 90 3,288 5,673
Finland 1,587 2,051 95,347 124,601
Norway 178 161 5,097 6,549
Denmark 628 126 63,329 40,747
Baltic countries 157 154 8,146 9,093
Poland 1 1 60 50
Russia - - - -
Other 248 239 45,899 33,247
Total 2,825 2,822 221,165 219,961

Nordea Bank Finland's main geographical market ctwap the Nordic countries, the Baltic countried Boland. Revenues and assets are
distributed to geographical areas based on théitocaf the legal entities. Assets comprises investts in associated undertakings, intangible
assets, tangible assets and investment propertdv@lbis allocated to different countries basedtoa location of the business activities of the
acquired entities.
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Note 3 Net interest income

Group Parent company

EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest income

Loans to credit institutions 610 2,171 731 2,400
Loans to the public 2,002 3,317 1,671 2,880
Interest-bearing securities 140 193 140 193
Other interest income -60 13 -60 13
Interest income 2,692 5,694 2,482 5,486
Interest expense

Deposits by credit institutions -453 -1,429 -451 -1,425
Deposits and borrowings from the public -496 -1,183 -496 -1,184
Debt securities in issue -376 -1,106 -376 -1,106
Subordinated liabilities -37 -71 -37 -71
Other interest expense -128 -93 -128 -93
Interest expense -1,490 -3,882 -1,488 -3,879
Net interest income 1,202 1,812 994 1,607

Interest income from financial instruments not nueed at fair value through profit and loss amototS8UR 2,655m (5,612) for the Group and
EUR 2,445m (5,405) for the parent company. Intezgpenses from financial instruments not measuréairavalue through profit and loss
amounts to EUR -1,364m (-3,791) for the Group abdRE1,361m (-3,788) for the parent company. Theimerest income from derivatives,
measured at fair value and related to NBF's fundiegreases the total interest expense. For furif@mation see also Note 1.

Net interest income

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest income 2,582 5,561 2,482 5,486
Leasing income, net 110 133 - -
Interest expenses -1,490 -3,882 -1,488 -3,879
Total 1,202 1,812 994 1,607

All interest income and interest expense relatddddkets are presented on the same income linevatuation effects from financial
instruments at fair value, i e “Net gains/lossestems at fair value”, instead of being reportethi “Net interest income”. For further
information, see Note 1.
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Note 4 Net fee and commission income

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Asset Management commissions 31 40 31 40
Life insurance 10 7 10 7
Brokerage 25 21 25 21
Custody 35 48 35 48
Deposits 5 5 5 5
Total savings related commissions 106 121 106 121
Payments 165 149 166 150
Cards 61 47 38 25
Total payment commissions 226 196 204 175
Lending 83 78 67 61
Guarantees and documentary payments 117 86 119 88
Total lending related to commissions 200 164 186 149
Other commission income 79 64 77 62
Fee and commission income 611 545 573 507
Payment expenses -72 -63 -49 -42
Other commission expenses -298 -267 -306 -266
Fee and commission expenses -370 -330 -355 -308
Net fee and commission income 241 215 218 199

Fee income, not included in determining the effecitnterest rate, from financial assets and liaégdinot measured at fair value through profit
or loss amounts to EUR 87m (83) for the Group ad&® E2m (66) for the parent company.

Fee income, not included in determining the effectnterest rate, from fiduciary activities thasu# in the holding or investing of assets on
behalf of customers amounts to EUR 66m (68) forGhaup and EUR 66m (68) for the parent company.
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Note 5 Net gains/losses on items at fair value

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Shares/participations and other share-relatecuimsnts 22 85 18 85
Interest-bearing securities and other interestedlamstruments 929 377 929 377
Other financial instruments 131 13 131 13
Foreign exchange gains/losses 244 296 244 295
Investment properties -1 -1 -1 -1
Total 1,325 770 1,321 769
Net gains/losses for categories of financial instroents

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Available for sale assets, realised 0 2 0 2
Financial instruments designated at fair valueugloprofit or loss 253 280 250 280
Financial instruments held for trading 1,077 491 1,076 491
Financial instruments under hedge accounting -4 -4 -4 -4
- of which net gains/losses on hedging instruments -27 -82 -27 -82
- of which net gains/losses on hedged items 23 78 23 78
Other -1 1 -1 0
Total 1,325 770 1,321 769
* Deferred day one profits amounted to EUR 51m for 2009 (-7) both in the Group and parent company.
Note 6 Dividends

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Investments in group undertakings - - 51 1
Investments in associated undertakings - - 1 1
Total - - 52 2
Note 7 Other operating income

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Divestment of shares - - -
Income from real estate 4 4 7 7
Disposals of tangible and intangible assets 0 0 0
Other 49 25 53 27
Total 53 29 60 34
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Note 8 Staff costs

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Salaries and remuneration -442 -429 -405 -392
Pension costs (specification below) -66 -36 -60 -31
Social insurance contributions -35 -38 -32 -35
Allocation to profit-sharing foundation -31 -8 -30 -7
Other staff costs -25 -26 -23 -24
Total -599 -537 -550 -489
Group Parent company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Pension costs:
Defined benefit plans (Note 34) -5 9 -5 8
Defined contribution plans -61 -45 -55 -39
Total -66 -36 -60 -31

Compensation etc to the Board of Directors, Preside and his deputy

The members of the Board of Directors of Nordeal&&inland Plc, the President and his deputy armathbers of the Nordea Bank AB (publ)
Group Executive Management. In 2009 Nordea Bankl) has paid all salaries, fees, pension- ahdrdttaff-related expenses to the above
mentioned members and deputies of the administratid controlling boards. Nordea Bank AB (publ) hléecated these salary expenses to
Nordea Bank Finland Plc as part of the Head Offitecation -expenses.

Information on salaries, loans and pension liaedits presented in the Annual Report of NordeakBs® (publ).

EURmM 2009 2008

Loans granted by Nordea Bank Finland Plc

To members and deputy members of the Board of Direc 0 0
of whom to the President and his deputy 0 0

Terms and conditions regarding loans to membetiseoBoard of Directors to President and his depugydecided in accordance with
instructions issued by the Board of Directors.

Guarantees and other off-balance sheet commitments

No guarantees or other off-balance sheet commisente been granted to members of administratieermrolling boards or to auditors.
The members of the administrative and controllingrds have no holdings of shares, equity warrantsmvertible bonds issued by Nordea
Bank Finland Plc.

Loans to key management personnel

Loans to key management personnel amounted to EBWR Lin the Group and EUR Om (1) in the parent gany. Interest income on these
loans amounted to EUR Om (0) in the Group and EWR®) in the parent company.

Terms and conditions regarding loans for key mamege personnel employed by Nordea are decidedciordance with instructions issued by
the Board of Directors. Loans and receivablesitoiy members of key management personnel areegtant normal market terms, as well as
loans and receivables to key management persortteebre not employees of Nordea. In Finland the eysg interest rate for loans
corresponds to Nordea's funding cost with a mas§jit0 basis points up to EUR 400,000, and 30 hasigs for loans over EUR 400,000.

The Group has not pledged any assets or otheterallaor committed itself to contingent liabilities behalf of any member of the key
management personnel.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Share-based payment

Group 2009
Conditional Rights LTIP 2009 A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights
Granted 281,849 563,698 281,849
Forfeited -6,728 -6,728 -6,728
Outstanding at end of year 275,121 556,970 275,121
Of which currently exercisable - - -
Parent company 2009
Conditional Rights LTIP 2009 A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights
Granted 277,520 555,040 277,520
Forfeited -6,728 -6,728 -6,728
Outstanding at end of year 270,792 548,312 270,792
Of which currently exercisable - - -
Group 2009 2008
Conditional Rights LTIP 2008 A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights
Outstanding at the beginning of year 89,496 89,496 89,496 - - -
Granted - - - 92,284 184,568 92,284
Forfeited -1,805 -1,805 -19,343 -2,788 -95,072 -2,788
Outstanding at end of year 87,691 87,691 70,153 89,496 89,496 89,496
Of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Parent company 2009 2008
Conditional Rights LTIP 2008 A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights
Outstanding at the beginning of year 88,120 88,120 88,120 - - -
Granted - - - 90,908 181,816 90,908
Forfeited -1,805 -1,805 -19,068 -2,788 -93,696 -2,788
Outstanding at end of year 86,315 86,315 69,052 88,120 88,120 88,120
Of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Group 2009 2008
Conditional Rights LTIP 2007 ARights  B-C Rights D Rights A Rights  B-C Rights D Rights
Outstanding at the beginning of year 78,732 76,993 78,732 86,112 170,304 86,112
Forfeited - - - -7,380 -93,311 -7,380
Exercised -64,113 -63,980 -54,560 -
Outstanding at end of year 14,619 13,013 24,172 78,732 76,993 78,732
Of which currently exercisable 14,619 13,013 24,172 - - -
Parent company 2009 2008
Conditional Rights LTIP 2007 ARights  B-C Rights D Rights A Rights B-C Rights D Rights
Outstanding at the beginning of year 77,495 75,783 77,495 84,875 167,857 84,875
Forfeited - - - -7,380 -92,074 -7,380
Exercised -62,876 -62,770 -53,323 - - -
Outstanding at end of year 14,619 13,013 24,172 77,495 75,783 77,495
Of which currently exercisable 14,619 13,013 24,172 - - -
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Long-Term Incentive Programmes

In May 2007, May 2008 and May 2009 the parent catyfdordea Bank AB (publ) issued Share-based PayPragrams named "Long Term
Incentive Programme 2007" (LTIP 2007), "Long Tenmdntive Programme 2008" (LTIP 2008) and "Long Témoentive Programme 2009"
(LTIP 2009). Participation in the Long-Term IncetetiProgrammes (LTIPs) requires that the particgptake direct ownership by investing in
Nordea shares.

LTIP 2009

A Rights B-C Rights D Rights

Ordinary share per right 1.00 1.00 1.00
Exercise price EUR 0.77 EUR 0.38 EUR 0.38
Grant date 14 May 2009 14 May 2009 14 May 2009
Vesting period 24 months 24 months 24 months
Contractual life 48 months 48 months 48 months
First day of exercise April 2011 April 2011 April 2011
Fair value at grant date EUR 4.66 EUR 5.01 EUR 1.75
LTIP 2008 LTIP 2007

A Rights B-C Rights D Rights A Rights B-C Rights D Rights
Ordinary share per right 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30
Exercise price EUR 2.30 EUR 1.53 EUR 1.53 EUR 2.53 EUR 1.00 EUR 1.00
Grant date 13 May 2008 13 May 2008 13 May 2008 17 May 2007 17 May 2007 17 May 2007
Vesting period 24 months 24 months 24 months 24 months 24 months 24 months
Contractual life 48 months 48 months 48 months 48 months 48 months 48 months
First day of exercise 29 April 201029 April 2010 29 April 2010 30 April 2009 30 April 2009 30 April 2009
Fair value at grant date EUR7.53 EURS8.45 EUR 4.14 EUR 8.76 EUR 10.49 EUR 7.76

* The new rights issue, which was resolved in an extra ordinary general meeting on 12 March 2009, triggered recalculations of some of the parameters in LTIP 2007 and LTIP
2008, in accordance with the agreements of the programmes. The recalculations were performed with the purpose of putting the participants in an equivalent financial position
as the one being at hand immediately prior to the new rights issue.

Conditions and requirements

For each ordinary share the participants locked the LTIPs, they were granted a conditional Atigp acquire ordinary shares ("Matching
Share") based on continued employment and the tonali B-D rights to acquire additional ordinaryasés based on fulfilment of certain
performance conditions ("Performance Shares").pérérmance conditions for B and C rights compaigarget growth in risk adjusted profit
per share (RAPPS). Should the reported earningshzee (EPS) be lower then a predetermined leegbditicipants are not entitled to exercise
any B or C rights. The performance condition forights is market related and comprises growtloialtshareholder return (TSR) in
comparison with a peer group's TSR.

When the performance conditions are not fully fidél, the rights that are no longer exercisablesamvn as forfeited in the previous tables, as
well as shares forfeited due to participants legwtive Nordea Group.

The exercise price for the ordinary shares is &eljLfor dividends, however never adjusted belowealgtermined price. Furthermore the profit
for each right is capped.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 58



Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

LTIP 2009" LTIP 2008 LTIP 2007
Service condition, A-D rights Employed within thefdea Employed within the Nordea Employed within the Nordea
Group during the two year  Group during the two year ~ Group during the two year
vesting period. vesting period. vesting period.
Performance condition, B rights Increase in RAPP@92 Increase in RAPPS 2008 Increase in RAPPS 2007

compared to 2008. Full right compared to 2007. Full right compared to 2006. Full right
to exercise was obtained if to exercise was obtained if to exercise was obtained if
RAPPS increased by 8% or RAPPS increased by 12% or RAPPS increased by 15% or

more. more. more.

EPS knock out, B rights Reported EPS for 2009 lowReported EPS for 2008 lowerReported EPS for 2007 lower
than EUR 0.26. than EUR 0.80. than EUR 0.80.

Performance condition, C rights Increase in RAPBB)2 Increase in RAPPS 2009 Increase in RAPPS 2008

compared to 2009. Full right compared to 2008. Full right compared to 2007. Full right
to exercise will be obtained ifto exercise was obtained if to exercise was obtained if
RAPPS increases by 8% or RAPPS increased by 12% or RAPPS increased by 12% or

more. more. more.

EPS knock out, C rights Reported EPS for 2010 lowReported EPS for 2009 lowerReported EPS for 2008 lower
than EUR 0.26. than EUR 0.52. than EUR 0.80.

Performance conditions, D rights TSR during 20022 TSR during 2008-2009 in TSR during 2007-2008 in

comparison to a peer group. comparison to a peer group. comparison to a peer group.

Full right to exercise will be Full right to exercise was Full right to exercise was

obtained if Nordea is ranked obtained if Nordea was obtained if Nordea's TSR

number 1. ranked number 1. exceeded peer group index
with 10% or more.

Cap The profit per A-D rights is  The profit per A-D rights is  The profit per A-D rights is
capped to EUR 9.59 per rightcapped to EUR 21.87 per  capped to EUR 19.18 per
right. right.
Exercise price adjustments The exercise pricebeill The exercise price willbe  The exercise price will be

adjusted for dividends during adjusted for dividends duringadjusted for dividends during

the exercise period, however the exercise period, howeverthe vesting period and the

never adjusted below EUR never adjusted below EUR exercise period, however

0.10. 0.10. never adjusted below EUR
0.10.

1 RAPPS for the financial year 2008 used for LTIP 2008 (C-rights) and LTIP 2009 (B-rights), RAPPS for the financial year 2009 used for LTIP 2009 (C-rights), EPS knock out in
LTIP 2008 (C-rights) and LTIP 2009 (B- and C-rights) and the cap in LTIP 2009, LTIP 2008 and LTIP 2007 has been adjusted due to the financial effects of the new rights
issue.

Fair value calculations

The fair value is measured through the use of gdlyexccepted valuation models with the followimgut factors:

LTIP 2009 LTIP 2008 LTIP 2007
Weighted average share price EUR 5.79 EUR 11.08 EUR 12.33
Right life 2.5 years 2.5 years 3.0 years
Deduction of expected dividends Yes Yes Yes
Risk free rate 1.84% 3.83% 4.20%
Expected volatility 29.00% 21.00% 20.00%

Expected volatility is based on historical valus.the exercise price is significantly below theghprice at grant date, the value has a limited
sensitivity to expected volatility and risk-fregérest. The fair value calculations are also baseestimated early exercise behaviour during the
programme's exercise windows.

The value of the D rights is based on market rdlatenditions and fulfilment of the TSR targets hasen taken into consideration when
calculating the right's fair value at grant.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Expenses
Group Parent company

EURmM LTIP 2009  LTIP 2008  LTIP 2007 LTIP 2009  LTIP 2008  LTIP 2007
Expected expense 4.9 2.3 0.5 4.9 2.2 0.5
- of which social security 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Maximum expense 7.2 3.4 0.6 7.1 3.3 0.6
- of which social security 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total expense 2009 0.5 0.8 2.1 0.5 0.8 2.1
- of which social security 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total expense 2008 - 0.5 0.9 - 0.5 0.9
- of which social security - 0.0 0.0 - 0.0 0.0

* Fulfilment of the performance conditions are known. The difference between the expected expense and the maximum expense arises as assumptions on employee turnover
(only in LTIP 2008 since fulfilment of service condition in LTIP 2007 is known) and annual share price increases are used when calculating the expected expense, but not when
calculating the maximum expense where the maximum profit for each right is used instead of annual share price increases.

When calculating the expected and maximum expexseceed annual employee turnover of 5% in LTIP 2808 4% in LTIP 2008 have been
used.

The expense is recognised in each sub-group aity, @plying the IFRS accounting standard, wittoanter entry in equity. The recognition

is based on the total number of matching shareghidy the participants in each sub-group or enfibe expected expense are expensed over
the vesting period of 24 months.

Average number of employees

Groug Parent compar
200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢
Full-time employees 9,566 9,640 8,734 8,757
Part-time employees 586 772 516 684
Total 10,152 10,412 9,250 9,441
Total number of employees (FTEs), end of period 9,218 9,634 8,454 8,754
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Note 9 Other expenses

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Information technology -146 -127 -165 -145
Marketing -25 -32 -22 -29
Postage, telephone and office expenses -41 -41 -35 -34
Rents, premises and real estate -86 -85 -85 -84
Divestment of shares 0 - 0 -
Disposals of tangible and intangible assets -1 - 0 -
Other? -133 -112 -120 -100
Total -432 -397 -427 -392

* Refers to IT operations, service expenses and consultant fees for the Group. Total IT-related costs including staff etc., were EUR 199m EUR (175) in the Group and EUR

185m (161) in the parent company.
2 Including fees and remuneration to auditors.

Auditors' fees

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
KPMG
Auditing assignments -1 -1 -1 -1
Tax advisory services 0 0 0 0
Other assignments incl audit-related services 0 0 0 0
Ernst & Young
Auditing assignments - - - -
Tax advisory services 0
Other assignments incl audit-related services 0 0 0 0
Deloitte
Auditing assignments - - - -
Tax advisory services 0 - 0 -
Other assignments incl audit-related services 0 0 0 0
PriceWaterhouseCoopers
Auditing assignments - -
Tax advisory services 0 0 0
Other assignments incl audit-related services -2 0 -2 0
Other
Auditing assignments - - - -
Tax advisory services 0 - 0 -
Other assignments incl audit-related services 0 0 0 0
Total -3 -1 -3 -1
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Note 10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

charges of tangible and intangible assets

Depreciation/amortisation

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Property and equipment(Note 23)
Equipment -28 -28 -14 -16
Buildings 0 0 0 0
Intangible assetqNote 22)
Goodwill 0 0 - -
Internally developed software -7 -4 -7 -4
Other intangible assets -2 -1 -1 0
Total -37 -33 -22 -20
Impairment charges / Reversed impairment charges

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Property and equipment(Note 23)
Equipment - - - -
Buildings - - - -
Total - - - -
Intangible assetqNote 22)
Goodwill 0 0 - -
Internally developed software
Other intangible assets 0 - - -
Total 0 0 - -
Total -37 -33 -22 -20
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Note 11 Loan losses

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Net loan losses divided by class
Loans to credit institutions -9 -14 -9 -14
- of which provisions -10 -15 -10 -15
- of which write-offs - - - -
- of which allowances used for covering write-offs - - - -
- of which reversals 1 1 1 1
- of which recoveries - - - -
Loans to the public -399 -102 -331 -81
- of which provisions -417 -157 -361 -138
- of which write-offs -104 -26 -73 -7
- of which allowances used for covering write-offs 39 20 34 16
- of which reversals 52 49 47 44
- of which recoveries 31 12 22 4
Off-balance sheet iterhs 27 -17 27 -18
- of which provisions -1 -18 -1 -19
- of which write-offs - - - -
- of which allowances used for covering write-offs - - - -
- of which reversals 28 1 28 1
- of which recoveries - - - -
Total -381 -133 -313 -113
Specification of Net loan losses
Changes of allowance accounts in the balance sheet -347 -139 -296 -125
- of which Loans, individually assesged -232 -94 -189 -82
- of which Loans, collectively asses3ed -142 -27 -134 -25
- of which Off-balance sheet items, individuallsesset 0 -1 0 -1
- of which Off-balance sheet items, collectivelgesset 27 -17 27 -17
Changes directly recognised in the income statement -34 6 -17 12
- of which realised loan losses, individually asses -65 -6 -39 8
- of which realised loan losses, collectively aseds - - - -
- of which realised recoveries, individually assess 31 12 22 4
- of which realised recoveries, collectively asséss - - - -
Total -381 -133 -313 -113
*Included in Note 33 Provisions.
2Included in Note 14 Loans and their impairment
Key ratios

Group Parent company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Loan loss ratio, basis poifts 56 22 50 20
- of which individual 39 15 33 13
- of which collective 17 7 17 8
% Net loan losses divided by opening balance of loans to the public (lending).
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Note 12 Taxes

Income tax expense

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current tax -370 -261 -346 -234
Deferred tax -3 -128 0 -121
Total -373 -389 -346 -355

The tax on the Group’s operating profit differsnfréhe theoretical amount that would arise usingadlaate of Finland as follows:

Group Parent company
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Profit before tax 1,376 1,722 1,333 1,588
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 26% -358 -448 -347 -413
Tax charges not related to profit 0 - - -
Income from associated undertakings 1 - - -
Other direct taxes 0 0 0 0
Tax-exempt income 2 3 14 3
Non-deductible expenses -11 -6 -5 -6
Adjustments relating to prior years 3 1 3 0
Income tax due to tax assets previously not reseghi 1 68 - 68
Change of tax rate - - - -
Not creditable foreign taxes -10 -7 -10 -7
Tax charge -372 -389 -345 -355
Average effective tax rate 27% 23% 26% 22%
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (-)/income (+)
Deferred tax due to temporary differences, inclgdax losses
carry-forward -2 -196 0 -190
Deferred tax due to change of tax rate - - - -
Deferred tax due to tax assets previously not neised 0 68 - 68
Income tax expense, net -2 -128 0 -122
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax asset due to tax losses carry-forward 0 0 - -
Deferred tax assets due to temporary differences 17 15 13 13
Offset against tax liabilities - - - -
Total 17 15 13 13
Of which expected to be settled after more thardr y 0 15 0 13
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities due to untaxed reserves 35 33 - -
Deferred tax liabilities due to temporary differesc 9 6 - -
Offset against tax assets - - - -
Total 44 39 - -
Of which expected to be settled after more thardr y 44 39 - -
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Note 12 Taxes, cont.

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Deferred tax assets (+)/liabilities (-), net
Deferred tax assets due to tax losses carry-forwar 0 0 - -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in untaxed reserves -35 -33 - -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in loans to theljpub 9 9 15 14
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in financial instrents - 0 -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in property andipoent 7 10 6 9
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in investment prope - 0 - -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in retirement béradfligations -12 -14 -12 -14
Deferred tax assets/liabilities in provisions 5 4 4 4
Deferred tax assets/liabilities, net -26 -24 13 13
Movements in deferred tax assets/liabilities, netre as follows:

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Acquisitions and others - 1 - 0
Deferred tax in the income statement -3 -128 0 -121
At the end of the year -3 -127 0 -121

There were no unrecognised deferred tax assete iGtoup nor in the parent company in 2009 or 2008.

There was no deferred tax relating to temporarfgihices associated with investments in group tiakiags, associated undertakings and joint
ventures.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arectffghen there is a legally enforceable right teetfcurrent tax assets against current tax
liabilities, when the deferred tax income relateshie same fiscal authority.

Note 13 Treasury bills

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
State and sovereigns 1,033 691 1,033 691
Municipalities and other public bodies 0 0 0 0
Total 1,033 691 1,033 691
All bills are subject to variable interest ratekris
Of which Financial instruments pledged as colldt@¥ate 16) - - - -
Total 1,033 691 1,033 691
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Note 14 Loans and their impairment

Total
Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans, not impaired 123,723 115,201 123,212 114,664
Impaired loans 1,801 971 1,570 833
- Performing 937 608 878 573
- Non-performing 864 363 692 260
Loans before allowances 125,524 116,172 124,782 115,497
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans -447 -258 -375 -223
- Performing -223 -168 -164 -144
- Non-performing -224 -90 -211 -79
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans -316 -174 -300 -166
Allowances -763 -432 -675 -389
Loans, carrying amount 124,761 115,740 124,107 115,108

Credit institutions

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans, not impaired 59,038 47,435 64,055 52,617
Impaired loans 24 27 24 27
- Performing - 27 - 27
- Non-performing 24 - 24 -
Loans before allowances 59,062 47,462 64,079 52,644
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans -25 -14 -25 -14
- Performing - -14 - -14
- Non-performing -25 - -25 -
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans 0 -1 0 -1
Allowances -25 -15 -25 -15
Loans, carrying amount 59,037 47,447 64,054 52,629

The publi¢
Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans, not impaired 64,685 67,766 59,157 62,047
Impaired loans 1,776 944 1,546 806
- Performing 937 581 878 546
- Non-performing 839 363 668 260
Loans before allowances 66,461 68,710 60,703 62,853
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans -422 -244 -350 -209
- Performing -223 -154 -164 -130
- Non-performing -199 -90 -186 -79
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans -316 -173 -300 -165
Allowances -738 -417 -650 -374
Loans, carrying amount 65,723 68,293 60,053 62,479
* Finance leases, where the NBF is a lessor, are included in Loans to the public, see Note 24 Leasing.
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Note 14 Loans and their impairment, cont.

Reconciliation of allowance accounts for impaireddansg

Total
Group Parent company

Individually Collectively Individually ~ Collectively
EURmM assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2009 -258 -174 -432 -223 -166 -389
Provisions -257 -171 -428 -209 -162 -371
Reversals 24 29 53 20 28 48
Changes through the income statement -233 -142 -375 -189 -134 -323
Allowances used to cover write-offs 39 - 39 34 - 34
Currency translation differences and reclassifirei 5 0 5 3 0 3
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2009 -447 -316 -763 -375 -300 -675
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2008 -186 -140 -326 -153 -140 -293
Provisions -138 -34 -172 -121 -31 -152
Reversals 44 7 51 39 6 45
Changes through the income statement -94 -27 -121 -82 -25 -107
Allowances used to cover write-offs 20 - 20 16 - 16
Currency translation differences and reclassifinefi 2 -7 -5 -4 -1 -5
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2008 -258 -174 -432 -223 -166 -389

Credit institutions
Group Parent company

Individually Collectively Individually ~ Collectively
EURM assessed  assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2009 -14 -1 -15 -14 -1 -15
Provisions -11 0 -11 -11 0 -11
Reversals - 1 1 - 1 1
Changes through the income statement -11 1 -10 -11 1 -10
Allowances used to cover write-offs - - - - - -
Currency translation differences and reclassifireti - - - - - -
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2009 -25 0 -25 -25 0 -25
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2008 - -2 -2 - -2 -2
Provisions -14 0 -14 -14 0 -14
Reversals 0 1 1 - 1 1
Changes through the income statement -14 1 -13 -14 1 -13
Allowances used to cover write-offs - - - - - -
Currency translation differences and reclassifinedi - - - - - -
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2008 -14 -1 -15 -14 -1 -15

The public
Group Parent company

Individually Collectively Individually  Collectively
EURmM assessed  assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2009 -244 -173 -417 -209 -165 -374
Provisions -246 -171 -417 -198 -162 -360
Reversals 24 28 52 20 27 47
Changes through the income statement -222 -143 -365 -178 -135 -313
Allowances used to cover write-offs 39 - 39 34 - 34
Currency translation differences and reclassificeti 5 0 5 3 0 3
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2009 -422 -316 -738 -350 -300 -650
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2008 -186 -138 -324 -153 -138 -291
Provisions -124 -34 -158 -107 -31 -138
Reversals 44 6 50 39 5 44
Changes through the income statement -80 -28 -108 -68 -26 -94
Allowances used to cover write-offs 20 - 20 16 - 16
Currency translation differences and reclassifirefi 2 -7 -5 -4 -1 -5
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2008 -244 -173 -417 -209 -165 -374
?See Note 11 Loan losses.
% Mainly reclassification to off-balance sheet items
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Note 14 Loans and their impairment, cont.

Allowances and provisions

Total
Group Parent pamy

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Allowances for items in the balance sheet -763 -432 -675 -389
Provisions for off balance sheet items -22 -47 -22 -47
Total allowances and provisions -785 -479 -697 -436

Credit institutions
Group Parent pamy

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Allowances for items in the balance sheet -25 -15 -25 -15
Provisions for off balance sheet items -15 -43 -15 -43
Total allowances and provisions -40 -58 -40 -58

The public
EURmM
Allowances for items in the balance sheet -738 -417 -650 -374
Provisions for off balance sheet items -7 -4 -7 -4
Total allowances and provisions -745 -421 -657 -378
Key ratios Total
Group Pareompany
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008 2009 2008
Impairment rate, gro§sbasis points 143 84 126 72
Impairment rate, ngtbasis points 108 61 96 53
Total allowance ratf basis points 61 37 54 34
Allowances in relation to impaired loan%o 25 27 24 27
Total allowances in relation to impaired logrig 42 44 43 47
Non-performing loans, not impairedEURmM 89 13 89 13
4 Individually assessed impaired loans before allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
® Individually assessed impaired loans after allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
® Total allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
7 Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans divided by individually assessed impaired loans before allowances.
8 Total allowances divided by total impaired loans before allowances.
° Past due loans, not impaired due to future cash flows (included in Loans, not impaired).
68

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009



Note 15 Interest-bearing securities

Groub Parent compahy

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Issued by public bodies 33 57 33 57
Issued by other borrowers 7,840 4,872 7,840 4,872
Total 7,873 4,929 7,873 4,929
Listed securities 6,097 3,092 6,097 3,092
Unlisted securities 1,776 1,837 1,776 1,837
Total 7,873 4,929 7,873 4,929
1Of which EUR 6,717m (4,176) held at amortised cost with a nominal amount of EUR 6,717m (4,374).
Of which Financial instruments pledged as colldt@Mate 16) - - - -
Total 7,873 4,929 7,873 4,929

Note 16 Financial instruments pledged as collatera |

Financial instruments pledged as collateral

In repurchase transactions and in securities lgnamsactions, non-cash assets are transferremllateral. When the counterpart receiving the
collateral has the right to sell or repledge theetss the assets are reclassified in the balases &hthe item Financial instruments pledged as
collateral.

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008

Repurchase agreements - - B,
Securities lending agreements

Total

Transferred assets that are still recognised in thbalance sheet and associated liabilities

The types of assets transferred and the liabilggsociated with these transactions are specifiditki following tables. The assets continue to be
recognised on the balance sheet since NBF iegfibsed to changes in the fair value of the astb&sefore, these assets and its associated
liabilities are included in the tables below.

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Repurchase agreements - - - -
Securities lending agreements
Shares 1 0 1 0
Securitisations - - - -
Total 1 0 1 0
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Note 16 Financial instruments pledged as collateral, cont.

Liabilities associated with the assets

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Repurchase agreements - - - -
Securities lending agreements - - - -
Securitisations - - - -
Total - - - -
Note 17 Shares

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Shares held for trading 1,029 958 1,029 958
Shares designated at fair value through profibss | 24 24 20 23
- of which shares taken over for protection ofrrolsi 0 - 0 -
Shares available for sale - 0 - 0
- of which shares taken over for protection of g - - - -
Total 1,053 982 1,049 981
Listed shares 64 99 61 99
Unlisted shares 989 883 988 882
Total 1,053 982 1,049 981
Of which Financial instruments pledged as colldt@Mate 16) 1 0 1 0
Total 1,052 982 1,048 981
Of which expected to be settled after more thaedr y 24 24 20 23
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Note 18 Derivatives and hedge accounting

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom. Fair value Total nom.
31 Dec 2009, EURm Positive  Negative amount Positive Negative amount
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 53,955 52,788 2,350,747 53,955 52,788 2,350,747
FRAs 756 723 921,796 756 723 921,796
Futures and forwards 8 8 13,823 8 8 13,823
Options 5,999 5,838 365,833 5,999 5,838 365,833
Total 60,718 59,357 3,652,199 60,718 59,357 3,652,199
Equity derivatives
Equity swaps 37 37 734 37 37 734
Futures and forwards 55 58 799 55 58 799
Options 767 952 16,290 767 952 16,290
Total 859 1,047 17,823 859 1,047 17,823
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 4,280 3,944 252,846 4,280 3,944 252,866
Currency forwards 5,817 5,784 447,540 5,817 5,784 447,540
Options 604 682 46,667 604 682 46,667
Total 10,701 10,410 747,053 10,701 10,410 747,073
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps 1,309 1,238 80,768 1,309 1,238 80,768
Total rate of return swaps 45 56 3,000 45 56 3,000
Total 1,354 1,294 83,768 1,354 1,294 83,768
Other derivatives
Swaps 719 631 8,991 719 631 8,991
Futures and forwards 50 64 549 50 64 549
Options 62 62 1,654 62 62 1,654
Total 831 757 11,194 831 757 11,194
Total derivatives held for trading 74,463 72,865 4,512,037 74,463 72,865 4,512,057

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom. Fair value Total nom.
31 Dec 2009, EURm Positive  Negative amount Positive Negative amount
Derivatives used for hedge accounting
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 44 174 11,191 44 174 11,191
Total 44 174 11,191 44 174 11,191
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 13 198 2,338 13 198 2,337
Total 13 198 2,338 13 198 2,337
Total derivatives used for hedge accounting 57 372 13,529 57 372 13,528
Of which
- Fair value hedges 57 372 13,529 57 372 13,528
Total derivatives 74,520 73,237 4,525,566 74,520 73,237 4,525,585
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Note 18 Derivatives and hedge accounting, cont.

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom. Fair value Total nom.
31 Dec 2008, EURm Positive  Negative amount Positive Negative amount
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 44,085 43,553 1,893,877 44,085 43,553 1,893,877
FRAs 2,134 2,031 782,193 2,134 2,031 782,193
Futures and forwards 1 4 1,701 1 4 1,701
Options 6,240 6,412 238,109 6,240 6,412 238,109
Total 52,460 52,000 2,915,880 52,460 52,000 2,915,880
Equity derivatives
Equity swaps 139 286 1,841 139 286 1,841
Futures and forwards 314 263 1,463 314 263 1,463
Options 467 601 14,198 467 601 14,198
Total 920 1,150 17,502 920 1,150 17,502
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 7,223 7,278 192,123 7,223 7,278 192,142
Currency forwards 18,133 17,961 480,888 18,133 17,961 480,888
Options 912 867 33,879 912 867 33,879
Total 26,268 26,106 706,890 26,268 26,106 706,909
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps 4,634 4,625 100,077 4,634 4,625 100,077
Total rate of return swaps 1 136 3,000 1 136 3,000
Total 4,635 4,761 103,077 4,635 4,761 103,077
Other derivatives
Swaps 1,125 1,033 10,007 1,125 1,033 10,007
Futures and forwards 65 100 596 65 100 596
Options 84 87 1,414 84 87 1,414
Total 1,274 1,220 12,017 1,274 1,220 12,017
Total derivatives held for trading 85,557 85,237 3,755,366 85,557 85,237 3,755,385

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom Fair value Total nom
31 Dec 2008, EURmM Positive  Negative amount Positive Negative amount
Derivatives used for hedge accounting
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 53 175 8,641 53 175 8,641
Total 53 175 8,641 53 175 8,641
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 52 1,879 16,562 52 1,879 16,562
Total 52 1,879 16,562 52 1,879 16,562
Total derivatives used for hedge accounting 105 2,054 25,203 105 2,054 25,203
Of which
- Fair value hedges 105 2,054 25,203 105 2,054 25,203
Total derivatives 85,662 87,291 3,780,569 85,662 87,291 3,780,588
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Note 19 Fair value changes of the hedged items in

portfolio hedge of interest rate risk

Assets Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Carrying amount at beginning of year 157 -45 157 -45
Changes during the year
- Change in accounting policies - - - -
- Revaluation of hedged items -16 202 -16 202
Carrying amount at end of year 141 157 141 157
Liabilities Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Carrying amount at beginning of year 15 =77 15 =77
Changes during the year
- Change in accounting policies - - - -
- Revaluation of hedged items -8 93 -8 93
Carrying amount at end of year 7 16 7 16

The carrying amount at end of year represents asleted changes in the fair value for those re-pgtime periods in which the hedged item
is an asset respectively a liability. When the leebigem is an asset, the change in the fair vaitieechedged item is presented within assets
and when the hedged item is a liability, the chasgeesented as a liability.

Note 20 Investments in group undertakings

Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008
Acquisition value at beginning of year 310 323
Acquisitions during the year 30 -
Through mergers - -13
Sales during the year -2 -
Reclassifications - 0
Translation differences 0 0
Acquisition value at end of year 338 310
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year -1 -1
Reversed impairment charges during the year 1 -
Impairment charges during the year - -
Reclassifications - 0
Translation differences - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year 0 -1
Total 338 309
Of which listed shares - -
The total amount is expected to be settled afteerttan 1 year
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Note 20 Investments in group undertakings, cont.

Specification
This specification includes all directly owned gpoundertakings and major group undertakings talitestly owned companies.

Group
Carrying Carrying Voting
Number of amount 2009 amount 2008 power of
31 Dec 2009 shares EURmM EURmM holding, %  Domicile Business ID
Domestic
Credit institutions
Nordea Finance Finland Ltd 1,000,000 306 306 100.0 Espoo 0112305-3
Financial institutions
Tukirahoitus Oy 672 7 7 100.0 Espoo 0677131-6
Real estate companies
VKR-Kiinteistét Oy Ab* 600 1 1 60.0 Vantaa 0728754-2
Kiinteisté Oy Tampereen Kirkkokatu'7 280 50 50 100.0 Tampere 0819781-3
Kiinteisté Oy Levytie 6 147 22 23 100.0 Helsinki 0818921-5
Kiinteistd Oy Lahden Aleksanterinkatu 19-21 340,090 10 10 100.0 Lahti 0150108-5
Other companies
Fidenta Oy 2,000 0 0 60.0 Espoo 0988412-1
International
Financial institutions
Nordea Finance Polska S'A 19,690,000 0 0 100.0 Warsaw  PL5861944082
Nordea Finance Estonia Ltd 60,000 6 6 100.0 Tallinn EE100212426
Nordea Finance Latvia Lfd 1,100 4 1 100.0 Riga LVv40003348054
Nordea Finance Lithuania Ltd 6,540 4 1 100.0 Vilnius LT116672716
Nordea Securities Holding (U.K.) Ltd 49,010,000 2 2 100.0 London 01803666
Real estate companies
Ou Promano Est 156,466 10 - 100.0 Tallinn 11681888
UAB Promano Lit 34,528 10 - 100.0 Vilnius 302423219
SIA Promano Lat 7,028 10 - 100.0 Riga 40103235197
Other subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements; total assets of less than Carrying amount Total assets
EUR 10m Number of companies of shares EURm EURmM
Real estate companies 9 13 20
Other companies 5 0 50

*Indirect holding through Nordea Finance Finland Ltd, a subsidiary of Nordea Bank Finland Plc

The parent company of Nordea Bank Finland Plc islsa Bank AB (publ) domiciled in Stockholm, regigiton number 516406-0120. The
Annual Report 2009 of Nordea Bank AB (publ) maydiogvn-loaded on the Internet at www.nordea.com aravailable from Nordea Group
Investor Relations, SE 105 71 Stockholm, Sweder.Afmual Report 2009 of the Nordea Group is alsilavie at branches of Nordea Bank
Finland Plc.

Group
Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) - Consolidated

SPEs that have been set up for enabling investnresteuctured credit products and for acquiringets from customers.

NBF's
EURmM Purpose Duration _investment Total assets
Kirkas Northern Lights Limited Collateralised Mortgage Obligation >5 years 6,233 6,233
Total 6,233 6,233

* Includes all assets towards the SPEs (bonds and subordinated loans). Additionally 9 SPEs have been setup in the Baltics to acquire assets from commercial customers. The
total consolidated value of these assets is EUR 26m.

2Kirkas Northern Lights Ltd (Kirkas) has been established during 2008. Assets have been sold from NBF's ordinary lending portfolio to Kirkas. Kirkas has used the assets as
collateral for bonds issued. The total notional of bonds and subordinated loans was EUR 6,233m at year end 2009, which is held in full by NBF. NBF still holds the majority of
the risks and rewards in the sold loan portfolio and thus the loans are not derecognised in NBF. To prevent double counting of the assets in the parent company's balance
sheet, the bonds and subordinated loans issued by the SPE, and held in full by NBF, are offset against the corresponding liability arising from the transfer of the portfolio. NBF
also retains the ownership risks and rewards and followingly the SPE is consolidated in the Bank Group.
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Note 21 Investments in associated undertakings

Group Parentnpany

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Acquisition value at beginning of year 53 77 25 45
Acquisitions during the year 3 6 - 6
Sales during the year -1 -22 0 -22
Share in earnings 3 -4 - -
Dividend received -1 -1 - -
Reclassifications - -4 - -4
Translation differences - - - -
Acquisition value at end of year 57 52 25 25
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year -1 -1 -9 -
Accumulated impairment charges on sales during¢ae - - - -
Reversed impairment charges during the year - - - -
Impairment charges during the year 0 0 - -9
Translation differences - - - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year -1 -1 -9 -9
Total 56 51 16 16

Of which listed shares

The total amount is expected to be settled afteerti@an 1 year.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc's and Nordea Bank Finlarai@s associated undertakings' aggregated bastwests and income statements can be

summarised as follows:

31 Dec 31 Dec

EURmM 2009 2008
Total assets 394 409
Total liabilities 303 323
Operating income 74 36
0 2

Operating profit

Nordea Bank Finland Plc's and Nordea Bank Finlar@i@s share of contingent liabilities in favourasiociated undertakings of Nordea Bank

Finland Group amounts to EUR 20m (20) and on belfafsociated undertakings EUR Om (0).

Group

Carrying amount  Voting power of
31 Dec 2009 Business ID Domicile EURmM holding %
Credit institutions
Luottokunta 0201646-0 Helsinki 42 24.7
Total 42
Other
Automatia Pankkiautomaatit Oy 0974651-1 Helsinki 8 33.3
Fenestra Oy 0177676-7 Vantaa 0 9.9
NF Fleet Oy 2006935-5 Espoo 1 20.0
UAB ALD Automotive, Lithuania 300156575 Vilnius 0 25.0
ALD Automotive Eesti AS, Estonia 11094435 Tallinn 0 25.0
ALD Automotive SIA, Latvia 50003825931 Riga 0 25.0
Oy Realinvest Ab 0680035-9 Helsinki 3 49.3
Realia Holding Oy 2106796-8 Helsinki 0 40.3
Securus Oy 0742429-5 Helsinki 0 35.2
Other 2
Total 14
Total 56
* Nordea Bank Finland Plc holds currently convertible bonds which, if converted, would give Nordea Bank Finland significant influence over the entity.
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Note 21 Investments in associated undertakings, cont.

Parent company

Carrying amount Voting power of

31 Dec 2009 Business ID Domicile EURmM holding %
Credit institutions

Luottokunta 0201646-0 Helsinki 24.7
Total

Other

Automatia Pankkiautomaatit Oy 0974651-1 Helsinki 5 33.3
Fenestra Oy 0177676-7 Vantaa 0 9.9
Realia Holding Oy 2106796-8 Helsinki 0 40.3
Oy Realinvest Ab 0680035-9 Helsinki 2 49.3
Securus Oy 0742429-5 Helsinki 0 35.2
Total 7

Total 16

* Nordea Bank Finland Plc holds currently convertible bonds which, if converted, would give Nordea Bank Finland significant influence over the entity.

Note 22 Intangible assets

Group Parent Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Goodwill*
Other goodwiill - -
Goodwill, total - -
Internally developed software 57 49 62 53
Other intangible assets 12 10 2 -
Total 69 59 64 53
* Excluding goodwill in associated undertakings.

Group Parent Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Goodwill
Acquisition value at beginning of year 0 3 - -
Acquisitions during the year - - - -
Reclassifications -3 - -
Acquisition value at end of year 0 - -
Accumulated amortisation at beginning of year 0 -3 - -
Amortisation according to plan for the year - - - -
Reclassifications - -
Accumulated amortisation at end of year - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year - - - -
Total 0 0 - -
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Note 22 Intangible assets, cont.

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008 2009 2008
Internally developed software
Acquisition value at beginning of year 61 43 65 43
Acquisitions during the year 14 19 16 21
Sales/disposals during the year 0 -1 0 -
Reclassifications - - - 1
Translation differences 0 0 0 -
Acquisition value at end of year 75 61 81 65
Accumulated amortisation at beginning of year -12 -8 -12 -7
Amortisation according to plan for the year -7 -4 -7 -4
Accumulated amortisation on sales/disposals duhiag/ear 0 - - -
Reclassifications 1 - - -1
Translation differences - - - -
Accumulated amortisation at end of year -18 -12 -19 -12
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year - - - -
Impairment charges during the year - - - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year - - - -
Total 57 49 62 53
Group Parent Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008 2009 2008

Other intangible assets
Acquisition value at beginning of year 15 17 4 4
Acquisitions during the year 5 1 3 -
Sales/disposals during the year - -3 - 0
Reclassifications -4 0 - -
Translation differences 0 0 - -
Acquisition value at end of year 16 15 7 4
Accumulated amortisation at beginning of year -5 -4 -4 -4
Amortisation according to plan for the year -2 -1 -1 0
Accumulated amortisation on sales/disposals duflirg/ear - 0 - 0
Reclassifications 3 0 - -
Translation differences 0 0 - -
Accumulated amortisation at end of year -4 -5 -5 -4
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year - - - -
Impairment charges during the year 0 - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year 0 - -
Total 12 10 2 -
The total amount is expected to be settled afteerttman 1 year.
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Note 23 Property and equipment

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Property and equipment 143 117 54 54

Of which buildings for own use 25 3 2 2
Total 143 117 54 54
Equipment
Acquisition value at beginning of year 227 199 140 126
Acquisitions during the year 36 51 14 24
Sales/disposals during the year -14 -13 - 0
Reclassifications -10 -10 -13 -10
Translation differences 0 0 - 0
Acquisition value at end of year 239 227 141 140
Accumulated depreciation at beginning of year -113 -91 -88 -73
Accumulated depreciation on sales/disposals duhiagyear 7 5 0 0
Reclassifications 13 1 13 1
Depreciation according to plan for the year -28 -28 -14 -16
Translation differences 0 0 0 -
Accumulated depreciation at end of year -121 -113 -89 -88
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year 0 0 - -
Accumulated impairment charges on sales/disposeisgithe year - - -
Reversed impairment charges during the year - - - -
Impairment charges during the year 0 0 - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year 0 0 0 0
Total 118 114 52 52
Land and buildings
Acquisition value at beginning of year 4 4 3 3
Acquisitions during the year 23 0 0 0
Sales/disposals during the year 0 0 0 -
Reclassifications 0 0 - -
Acquisition value at end of year 27 4 3 3
Accumulated depreciation at beginning of year -1 -2 -1 -1
Accumulated depreciation on sales/disposals duhiagyear - 1 - -
Reclassifications -1 0 - -
Depreciation according to plan for the year 0 0 0
Accumulated depreciation at end of year -2 -1 -1 -1
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year - - - -
Accumulated impairment charges on sales/disposaisgithe year - - -
Reversed impairment charges during the year - - - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year - - - -
Total 25 3 2 2
The total amount is expected to be settled afteertian 1 year.
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Note 24 Leasing

NBF as a lessor

Finance leases

Nordea Bank Finland Group owns assets leased torness under finance lease agreements. Finanaedgasements are reported as
receivables from the lessee included in "Loan&é¢opublic” (see Note 14) at an amount equal tméténvestment in the lease. The leased
assets mainly comprise vehicles, machinery and etipgipment.

Reconciliation of gross investments and presentevaf future minimum lease payments:

Group
31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008
Gross investments 2,031 2,245
Less unearned finance income -126 -249
Net investments in finance leases 1,905 1,996
Less unguaranteed residual values accruing toghefib of the lessor -64 -75
Present value of future minimum lease payments res@ble 1,841 1,921
Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimumdeaayments receivable - 3
As of 31 December 2009 the gross investment andeéh&vestment by remaining maturity was distréolias follows:
Group
31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008
EURmM Gross investment  Net investment
2010 597 549
2011 535 502
2012 364 343
2013 335 324
2014 108 101
Later years 92 86
Total 2,031 1,905

Operating leases

Assets subject to operating leases mainly compebéles and other equipment. In the balance shegtare reported as tangible assets.

Group
31 Dec 31 Dec
Carrying amount of leased assets, EURm 2009 2008
Acquisition value 89 80
Accumulated depreciations -27 -20
Carrying amount at end of year 62 60
- Of which repossessed leased property, carryinguam 0 -
Group
31 Dec 31 Dec
Carrying amount distributed on groups of assetREU 2009 2008
Equipment 62 60
Carrying amount at end of year 62 60

Depreciation for 2009 amounted to EUR 13 m (11).
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Note 24 Leasing, cont.

Under non-cancellable operating leases, the fuhinémum lease payments receivables are distribasellows:

Group

31 Dec

EURM 2009
2010 14
2011 9
2012 4
2013 1
2014 0
Later years 0
Total 28

NBF as a lessee

Finance leases

Nordea Bank Finland Group has only to a minor exéetered into finance lease agreements. The balole vf assets subject to finance leases
amounts to EUR Om (EUR 1m).

Operating leases

Nordea Bank Finland Group has entered into opeydginse agreements for premises and office equippmen

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
Leasing expenses during the year, EURm 2009 2008 2009 2008
Leasing expenses during the year 67 63 66 57
Of which
-minimum lease payments 67 62 66 57
-contingent rents 0 1 - 0

Leasing income during the year regarding subleagmpnts - - - -

Future minimum lease payments under non-canceligi#eating leases amounted to and are distribtéollaws:

Parent

Group company

EURmM 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2009
2010 47 47
2011 27 27
2012 20 21
2013 14 14
2014 13 12
Later years 140 139
Total 261 260
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Note 25 Investment property

Group
Movement in the balance sheet

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008
Carrying amount at beginning of year 3 4
Acquisitions 4 -
Disposals during the year - -1
Net gains or losses from fair value adjustments - -
Carrying amount at end of year 7 3
The total amount is expected to be settled afteerttan 1 year 7 3
Amounts recognised in the income statemeht
EURM 2009 2008
Rental income 0 0
Direct operating expenses that generate rentahiaco - -
Direct operating expenses that did not generatalrgrcome
Total
: Together with fair value adjustments included in Net gains/losses on items at fair value.
Market value 7 3
Parent company
Movement in the balance sheet

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008
Carrying amount at beginning of year 3 3
Acquisitions 1 0
Acquisitions through business combinations - 0
Disposals during the year - 0
Carrying amount at end of year 3
The total amount is expected to be settled afteerttan 1 year 4 3
Amounts recognised in the income statemeht
EURM 2009 2008
Rental income 0 0
Direct operating expenses that generated rentairiec - -
Direct operating expenses that did not generatalrercome
Total
* Together with fair value adjustments included in Net gains/losses on items at fair value.
Market value 4 3
Note 26 Other assets

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Claims on securities settlement proceeds 297 103 297 103
Other 2,732 9,429 2,717 9,404
Total 3,029 9,532 3,014 9,507
Of which expected to be settled after more thagdry - - - -
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Note 27 Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Accrued interest income 193 474 195 498
Other accrued income 165 420 32 319
Prepaid expenses 11 8 8 7
Total 369 902 235 824
Of which expected to be settled after more thagdry - - - -
Note 28 Deposits by credit institutions

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Central banks 3,266 4,717 3,266 4,717
Other banks 27,295 21,022 27,236 20,973
Other credit institutions 13,783 11,974 13,783 11,974
Total 44,344 37,713 44,285 37,664
Note 29 Deposits and borrowings from the public

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Deposits from the public 44,194 44,940 44,289 45,026
Borrowings from the public 62 339 65 340
Total 44,256 45,279 44,354 45,366

Deposits are defined as funds in deposit accowvsred by the government deposit guarantee buiradfading amounts in excess of the

individual amount limits.
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Note 30 Debt securities in issue

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Certificates of deposit 33,040 25,829 33,040 25,832
Bond loans 6,236 5,434 6,236 5,434
Total 39,276 31,263 39,276 31,266
Note 31 Other liabilities
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Liabilities on securities settlement proceeds 4,116 120 4,116 120
Sold, not held, securities 15 3 15 3
Accounts payable 45 13 4 4
Other 3,637 4,267 3,631 4,171
Total 7,813 4,403 7,666 4,298
Of which expected to be settled after more thagdr y - - - -
Note 32 Accrued expenses and prepaid income
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Accrued interest 172 580 171 579
Other accrued expenses 377 400 237 269
Prepaid income 22 36 20 34
Total 571 1,016 428 882
Of which expected to be settled after more thagdry - - - -
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Note 33 Provisions

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Reserve for restructuring costs 10 - 10 -
Transfer risks, off-balance 16 42 16 42
Individually assessed, off-balance sheet 6 4 6 4
Other 17 13 14 9
Total 49 59 46 55

Movement in the balance sheet:

Transfer Off-balance

Group risks sheet  Restructuring Other Total
At the beginning of year 43 4 - 12 59
New provisions made - 2 10 6 18
Provisions utilised - 0 - 0 0
Reversals -27 0 - -1 -28
Reclassifications - - - - -
Translation differences - - - - -
At the end of year 16 6 10 17 49
Of which expected to be settled within 1 year - - 3 3 6

Restructuring activities, which should increaséc&hcy during coming years, have been initiatddshas resulted in restructuring provisions
of EUR 10m.

Provision for Transfer risk reserve is relatedffebalance sheet items. Transfer risk reserveirgldb loans and receivables is included in the
item Allowances for collectively assessed impaigshs in Note 14. Provision for Transfer risk ipéeding on the volume of business with
different countries.

Loan loss provisions for individually assessedlzfance sheet items (i e guarantees and L/C’s) rewbto EUR 6m.

Other provision refers to the following provisiomsntal liabilities EUR 2m (of which EUR 1m expett® be settled during 2010), provision
for environmental and property-related obligatioh&UR 5m (not expected to be settled during 2@i@) other provisions amounting to EUR
10m (of which EUR 3m expected to be settled dugogo).

Transfer Off-balance

Parent company risks sheet  Restructuring Other Total
At beginning of year 42 4 - 9 55
New provisions made - 2 10 6 18
Provisions utilised - 0 - 0 0
Reversals -27 0 - 0 -27

Reclassifications -
Translation differences - - - - R

At the end of year 15 6 10 15 46

Of which expected to be settled within 1 year - - 3 3 6

Provision for Transfer risk reserve is relatedffebalance sheet items. Transfer risk reserveirgdb loans is included in the item Allowances
for collectively assessed impaired loans in NotePrdvision for transfer risk is depending on tume of business with different countries.

Restructuring activities, which should increaséc&hcy during coming years, have been initiatddshas resulted in restructuring provisions
of EUR 10m.

Loan loss provisions for individually assessedlfance sheet items (i e guarantees and L/C’s) riebto EUR 6m.
Other provision refers to the following provisiomsntal liabilities EUR 2m (of which EUR 1 m expedtto be settled during 2010), provision

for environmental and property-related obligatioh&UR 5m (not expected to be settled during 2@i@) other provisions amounting to EUR
8m (of which EUR 3m expected to be settled duridy@.
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Note 34 Retirement benefit obligations

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Defined benefit plans, net -62 -54 55 -47
Total -62 -54 55 -47

NBF has various pension plans, which are classift as defined benefit plans as well as defirmedribution plans. The defined benefit plans
in Finland are closed to new employees and insteamsions for new employees are based on defimgdlmation arrangements. The plans for
the foreign branches are also mainly defined doutiion plans. The existing defined benefit plankdndon, New York and Frankfurt are all
closed to new employees. Defined contribution pkmesnot reflected on the balance sheet.

IAS 19 secures that the market-based value of permiligations net of plan assets backing thesgatidns will be reflected on the Group's
balance sheet. The major plans are funded schemmesed by assets in pension funds/foundations. Sxh& pension plans are recognised
directly on the balance sheet as a liability.

Funded schemes Group Parent company
2009

Members 19,307 18,647
Average member age 60 60
2008

Members 19,524 18,864
Average member age 59 59

* Numbers are combined for the Finnish pension fund and pension foundation, Life Assurance Finland Ltd and London plans.
IAS 19 pension calculations and assumptions

Calculations on major plans are performed by eztdiability calculators and are based on the a@bassumptions fixed for each of the
Group's pension plans.

Assumptions Finland
2009

Discount rate 4.5%
Salary increase 3.5%
Inflation 2.0%
Expected return on assets before taxes 5.5%
2008

Discount rate 4.5%
Salary increase 3.5%
Inflation 2.0%
Expected return on assets before taxes 5.5%

The expected return on assets is based on longetguactations for return on the different assetsgda. On bonds, this is linked to the discount
rate while equities and real estate have an adslegremium.

The discount rate has the most significant impadhe obligation and pension cost. If the discoate is reduced the pension obligation will
increase and vice versa. A one percentage poirgase in the discount rate would lead to a dectiegsension obligation of 12% and in
service cost of 17%. A one percentage point deereethe discount rate would lead to an increageeision obligation of 15% and in service
cost 0f21%

Asset composition

The combined return on assets in 2009 was 11%{a®)ly reflecting the general market turmoil durthg yearAt the end of the year, the
equity exposure in pension funds/foundations regesi 19% (14) of total assets.

Asset composition in funded schemes 2009 2008
Equity 19% 14%
Bonds 75% 7%
Real Estate 6% 6%
Other plan assets 0% 3%
Of which

- Nordea real estate 3% 0%
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Note 34 Retirement benefit obligations, cont.

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Parent company

EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
PBO 774 774 757 744
Plan assets 816 775 798 746
Total surplus/deficit (-) 42 1 41 2
of which unrecognised actuarial gains/losses(-) -20 -53 -14 -45
Of which recognised in the balance sheet 62 54 55 47
Of which
- retirement benefit assets 91 82 85 75
- retirement benefit obligations 30 28 30 28
- related to unfunded plans (PBO) 16 17 16 17
Overview of surplus or deficit in the plans

Total Total Total Total Total
EURM 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
PBO 774 774 759 874 869
Plan Assets 816 775 857 851 828
Funded status - surplus/deficit(-) 42 1 98 -23 -41
Changes in the PBO

Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
PBO at 1 Jan 774 759 744 705
Service cost 3 3 2 3
Interest cost 33 36 33 34
Pensions paid -41 -40 -41 -40
Curtailments and settlements -1 - -1 -
Past service cost 7 0 7 0
Actuarial gains(-)/losses -7 31 7 58
Effect of exchange rate changes 6 -15 6 -16
PBO at 31 Dec 774 774 757 744
Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Group Parent company
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets at 1 Jan 775 857 747 792
Expected return on assets 39 47 38 44
Pensions paid -41 -39 -41 -39
Contributions 14 24 14 23
Actuarial gains/losses(-) 25 -102 36 -62
Effect of exchange rate changes 4 -12 4 -12
Plan assets at 31 Dec 816 775 798 746
Actual return on plan assets 82 -55 76 -17
Overview of actuarial gains/losse’s
Total Total Total Total

EURM 2009 2008 2007 2006
Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions -1 -41 87 -16
Experience adjustments 33 -92 8 28
Of which:
- on plan assets 25 -102 -12 11
- on plan liabilities 8 10 20 17
Actuarial gains/losses 32 -133 95 12
2The 5-year trend information will be built up over time.
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Note 34 Retirement benefit obligations, cont.

Defined benefit pension cost

The total net pension cost related to defined lieplains recognised in the Group's income staterfaenstaff costs) for the year is EUR 5m
(positive 9). In the parent company's income statdrthe respective cost was EUR 5m (positive 20i09.

Total pension costs comprise defined benefit pensists as well as costs related to defined cartoib plans. (See specification in Note 8.)

Group Pdreompany
Recognised net defined benefit cost, EURm 2009 2008 2009 2008
Service cost 3 3 2 3
Interest cost 33 36 33 34
Expected return on assets -39 -47 -38 -44
Curtailments and settlements -1 - -1 -
Recognised past service cost 7 0 7 0
Recognised actuarial gains(-) / losses 2 -1 2 -1
Pension cost on defined benefit plans 5 -9 5 -8

The pension cost is higher than expected in thenhaw of the year mainly due to higher recognipest service cost. The net pension cost on
defined benefit plans is expected to decrease R &id positive both in the Group and in the paremygany in 2010 mainly as a consequence
of lower recognised actuarial losses and pasteepasts.

The Group and parent company expect to contributie E8m to its defined benefit plans in 2010.

Key management personnel
The members of the Board of Directors of Nordeal&&nland Plc, the President and his deputy, dmmainbers of the Nordea Bank AB

(publ) Group Executive Management. In 2009 NordaakBAB (publ) has paid all salaries, fees, pensiand other staff-related expenses to
the above mentioned members and deputies of thaeirmative and controlling boards. Nordea Bank @Bbl) has allocated these salary
expenses to Nordea Bank Finland Plc as part dfiteel Office Allocation -expenses.

Information on salaries, loans and pension liaedits presented in the Annual Report of NordeakBs® (publ).

Note 35 Subordinated liabilities

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Dated subordinated debenture loans - 845 - 845
Undated subordinated debenture loans 437 393 437 393
Total 437 1,238 437 1,238
Of which expected to be settled within 1 year - 845 - 845

These debenture loans are subordinated to othdities. Dated debenture loans entitle the leriddgrayment before undated subordinated
loans. Within each respective category, the loatiielenders to equal payment rights.

Group and parent company

On 31 December 2009 loans - with terms specifiéovbe exceeded 10% of the total outstanding volume.

Year of issue Nominal Carrying amount Interest rate
Issued by / maturity value EURmM (coupon)
Nordea Bank Finland Plc 2002/undated MGBP 300 337 6.25%
Nordea Bank Finland Plc? 1999/undated MJPY 10,000 75 3.66%

* Callable for the first time on 18 July 2014
2 Callable for the first time on 26 February 2029

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 87



Note 36 Assets pledged as security for own liabili  ties

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets pledged for own liabilities
Securities etc 8,656 16,624 8,656 16,623
Loans to the public 3,754 - 3,754 -
Other pledged assets 264 216 264 216
Total 12,674 16,840 12,674 16,839
_The above pledges pertain to the following liabilit and commitment
items
Deposits by credit institutions 35 40 35 40
Other liabilities and commitments 11,365 14,359 11,364 14,359
Total 11,400 14,399 11,399 14,399

Assets pledged for own liabilities contain secastpledged as security in repurchase agreementa aedurities borrowing. The transactions
are conducted under standard agreements employfatebgial markets participants. Counterparts osthtransactions are credit institutions
and the public. The transactions are typically stesm with maturity within three months. Loanghe public have been registered as collateral
for bonds issued by Kirkas. For further informatamKirkas see Note 20.

Note 37 Other assets pledged

There are no collaterals pledged on behalf of ateers other than the company's own liabilities.

Note 38 Contingent liabilities

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Guarantees
Loan guarantees 3,083 2,994 3,084 2,996
Other guarantees 11,273 11,598 11,538 11,853
Documentary credits 2,715 2,511 2,715 2,512
Other contingent liabilities 13 16 13 16
Total 17,084 17,119 17,350 17,377

In the normal business of Nordea Bank Finland pirgk issues various forms of guarantees in favbhaik's customers. Loan guarantees are
given for customers to guarantee obligations irothedit and pension institutions. Other guarantemsist mainly of commercial guarantees
such as bid guarantees, advance payment guarantgesnty guarantees and export related guarar@eggingent liabilities also include
unutilised irrevocable import documentary creditd aonfirmed export documentary credits. Thesestetions are part of the bank services
and support the bank's customers. Guarantees andchéatary credits are considered as off-balancet sfeens, unless there is a need for a
provision to cover a probable loan loss that arisea the judgement that reimbursement will notrdéeeived

Note 39 Commitments

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Future payment obligations 15 17 15 17
Credit commitments 17,836 16,046 15,053 13,335
Other commitments 611 485 412 247
Total 18,462 16,548 15,480 13,599

: Including unutilised portion of approved overdraft facilities.
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Note 40 Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets at
fair value through

Group profit or loss
Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Non-
Heldto  Held for profit or used for Available financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 Loans maturity trading loss hedging  for sale assets Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 - - - - - - 8,004
Treasury bills - - 1,033 - - - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 57,804 - 1,233 - - - - 59,037
Loans to the public 65,723 - - - - - - 65,723
Interest-bearing securities - 6,717 1,151 - - 5 - 7,873
Financial instruments pledged as collateral - - 1 - - - - 1
Shares - - 1,028 24 - - - 1,052
Derivatives - - 74,463 - 57 - - 74,520
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 141 - - - - - - 141
Investments in associated undertakings - - - - - - 56 56
Intangible assets - - - - - - 69 69
Property and equipment - - - - - - 143 143
Investment property - - - - - - 7 7
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 17 17
Current tax assets - - - - - - 0 0
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - - 91 91
Other assets 584 - - 2,435 - - 10 3,029
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 204 - - - - - 165 369
Total 132,460 6,717 78,909 2,459 57 5 558 221,165
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions - - - 44,344 - 44,344
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - 44,256 - 44,256
Debt securities in issue 6,147 - - 33,129 - 39,276
Derivatives 72,865 - 372 - - 73,237
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk - - - 7 - 7
Current tax liabilities - - - - 129 129
Other liabilities 15 2,130 - 5,660 8 7,813
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - 194 377 571
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 44 44
Provisions - - - - 49 49
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 30 30
Subordinated liabilities - - - 437 - 437
Total 79,027 2,130 372 128,027 637 210,193
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Note 40 Classification of financial instruments,cont.

Financial assets at fair
value through profit

Group or loss
Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Non-
Heldto Held for profit or used for Available financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 Loans maturity trading loss hedging  for sale assets Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 906 - - - - - - 906
Treasury bills - - 691 - - - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 45,700 - 1,747 - - - - 47,447
Loans to the public 68,293 - - - - - - 68,293
Interest-bearing securities - 4,176 635 113 - 5 - 4,929
Financial instruments pledged as collateral - - 0 - - - - 0
Shares - - 958 24 - 0 - 982
Derivatives - - 85,557 - 105 - - 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 157 - - - - - - 157
Investments in associated undertakings - - - - - - 51 51
Intangible assets - - - - - - 59 59
Property and equipment - - - - - - 117 117
Investment property - - - - - - 3 3
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 15 15
Current tax assets - - - - - - 133 133
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - - 82 82
Other assets 1,283 - - 8,242 - - 7 9,532
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 482 - - - - - 420 902
Total 116,821 4,176 89,588 8,379 105 5 887 219,961
Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit
or loss
Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial  financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 501 3,423 - 33,789 - 37,713
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - 45279 - 45,279
Debt securities in issue 5,242 - - 26,021 - 31,263
Derivatives 85,237 - 2,054 - - 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk - - - 16 - 16
Current tax liabilities - - - - 341 341
Other liabilities 3 2,177 - 2,217 6 4,403
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - 616 400 1,016
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 39 39
Provisions - - - - 59 59
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 28 28
Subordinated liabilities - - - 1,238 - 1,238
Total 90,983 5,600 2,054 109,176 873 208,686
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Note 40 Classification of financial instruments, cont.

Parent company

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Non-
Held to Held for profit or used for Available financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 Loansmaturity  trading loss hedging  for sale assets  Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 - - - - - - 8,004
Treasury bills - - 1,033 - - - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 62,821 - 1,233 - - - - 64,054
Loans to the public 60,053 - - - - - - 60,053
Interest-bearing securities - 6,717 1,151 - - 5 - 7,873
Financial instruments pledged as collateral - - 1 - - - - 1
Shares - - 1,028 20 - - - 1,048
Derivatives - - 74,463 - 57 - - 74,520
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 141 - - - - - - 141
Investments in group undertakings - - - - - - 16 16
Investments in associated undertakings - - - - - - 338 338
Intangible assets - - - - - - 64 64
Property and equipment - - - - - - 54 54
Investment property - - - - - - 4 4
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 13 13
Current tax assets - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - - 85 85
Other assets 572 - - 2,435 - - 7 3,014
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 204 - - - - - 31 235
Total 131,795 6,717 78,909 2,455 57 5 612 220,550
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair
value
through Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions - - - 44,285 - 44,285
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - 44,354 - 44,354
Debt securities in issue 6,147 - - 33,129 - 39,276
Derivatives 72,865 - 372 - - 73,237
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk - - - 7 - 7
Current tax liabilities - - - - 128 128
Other liabilities 15 2,130 - 5,513 8 7,666
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - 191 237 428
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - -
Provisions - - - - 46 46
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 30 30
Subordinated liabilities - - - 437 - 437
Total 79,027 2,130 372 127,916 449 209,894
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Note 40 Classification of financial instruments, cont.

Parent company

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through Derivatives Non-
Held to Held for profit or used for Available financial
EURm, 31 Dec 2008 Loans maturity  trading loss hedging for sale assets  Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 906 - - - - - - 906
Treasury bills - - 691 - - - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 50,882 - 1,747 - - - - 52,629
Loans to the public 62,479 - - - - - - 62,479
Interest-bearing securities - 4,176 635 113 - 5 - 4,929
Financial instruments pledged as collateral - - 0 - - - - 0
Shares - - 958 23 - 0 - 981
Derivatives - - 85,557 - 105 - - 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 157 - - - - - - 157
Investments in group undertakings - - - - - - 16 16
Investments in associated undertakings - - - - - - 309 309
Intangible assets - - - - - - 53 53
Property and equipment - - - - - - 54 54
Investment property - - - - - - 3 3
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 13 13
Current tax assets - - - - - - 124 124
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - - 75 75
Other assets 1,263 - - 8,242 - - 2 9,507
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 505 - - - - - 319 824
Total 116,192 4,176 89,588 8,378 105 5 968 219,412
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial
EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 501 3,423 - - 33,740 37,664
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - - 45,366 45,366
Debt securities in issue 5,242 - - - 26,024 31,266
Derivatives 85,237 - 2,054 - - 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk - - - - 16 16
Current tax liabilities - - - 340 - 340
Other liabilities 3 2,177 - 8 2,110 4,298
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - 269 613 882
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - -
Provisions - - - 55 - 55
Retirement benefit obligations - - - 28 - 28
Subordinated liabilities - - - - 1,238 1,238
Total 90,983 5,600 2,054 700 109,107 208,444
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value

Group

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008
EURmM Carrying amount Fair value  Carrying amount Fair value
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 8,004 906 906
Treasury bills 1,033 1,033 691 691
Loans to credit institutions 59,037 59,076 47,447 47,527
Loans to the public 65,723 65,789 68,293 68,645
Interest-bearing securities 7,873 7,899 4,929 4,944
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 1 1 0 0
Shares 1,052 1,052 982 982
Derivatives 74,520 74,520 85,662 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 141 141 157 157
Investments in associated undertakings 56 56 51 51
Intangible assets 69 69 59 59
Property and equipment 143 143 117 117
Investment property 7 7 3 3
Deferred tax assets 17 17 15 15
Current tax assets 0 0 133 133
Retirement benefit assets 91 91 82 82
Other assets 3,029 3,029 9,532 9,532
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 369 369 902 902
Total assets 221,165 221,296 219,961 220,408
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 44,344 44,376 37,713 37,765
Deposits and borrowings from the public 44,256 44,274 45,279 45,344
Debt securities in issue 39,276 39,280 31,263 31,359
Derivatives 73,237 73,237 87,291 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 7 7 16 16
Current tax liabilities 129 129 341 341
Other liabilities 7,813 7,813 4,403 4,403
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 571 571 1,016 1,016
Deferred tax liabilities 44 44 39 39
Provisions 49 49 59 59
Retirement benefit obligation 30 30 28 28
Subordinated liabilities 437 437 1,238 1,278
Total liabilities 210,193 210,247 208,686 208,939
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Parent company 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

EURmM Carrying amount Fair value  Carrying amount Fair value
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 8,004 906 906
Treasury bills 1,033 1,033 691 691
Loans to credit institutions 64,054 64,117 52,629 52,725
Loans to the public 60,053 60,095 62,479 62,814
Interest-bearing instruments 7,873 7,899 4,929 4,945
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 1 1 0 0
Shares 1,048 1,048 981 981
Derivatives 74,520 74,520 85,662 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of

interest rate risk 141 141 157 157
Investments in group undertakings 338 338 309 309
Investments in associated undertakings 16 16 16 16
Intangible assets 64 64 53 53
Property and equipment 54 54 54 54
Investment property 4 4 3 3
Deferred tax assets 13 13 13 13
Current tax assets - - 124 124
Retirement benefit assets 85 85 75 75
Other assets 3,014 3,014 9,507 9,507
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 235 235 824 824
Total assets 220,550 220,681 219,412 219,859
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions 44,285 44,316 37,664 37,715
Deposits and borrowings from the public 44,354 44,372 45,366 45,431
Debt securities in issue 39,276 39,280 31,266 31,362
Derivatives 73,237 73,237 87,291 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of

interest rate risk 7 7 16 16
Current tax liabilities 128 128 340 340
Other liabilities 7,666 7,666 4,298 4,298
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 428 428 882 882
Provisions 46 46 55 55
Retirement benefit obligations 30 30 28 28
Subordinated liabilities 437 437 1,238 1,278
Total liabilities 209,894 209,947 208,444 208,696
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Estimation of fair value for assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities in ttaamce sheet are generally measured at fair vaitlethe exception of loans and receivables,

deposits and borrowings and issued securities.

The carrying amounts on loans and receivables,gitspmnd borrowings and issued securities are tgjder the value of the fixed interest term
in order to estimate the fair values that are prieskin the tables above. The value of the fixéer@st term is a result of changes in the relevant
market interest rates. The discount rates uselaaed on current market rates for each term.

reasonable approximation of fair value due to kahitredit risk and short time to maturity.

Fair value is set to carrying amount, in the tablesve, for assets and liabilities for which naatelk fair value has been possible to estimate.
This is valid for the line items investments in@sated undertakings, investments in group undemgsk intangible assets, property and
equipment and provisions.

Nordea holds very limited amounts of equity instemts measured at cost. Fair value is set to carasmount for these instruments as the fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

For further information about valuation of itemsmally measured at fair value, see Note 1.

Deferred Day 1 profit or loss

In accordance with the Group's accounting policgescribed in Note 1, if there are significant usefable inputs used in the valuation
technique, the financial instrument is recognisetth@ transaction price and any trade date pfiteferred. The table below shows the
aggregate difference yet to be recognised in tbenire statement at the beginning and end of thegbarid a reconciliation of changes in the
balance of this difference (movement of deferregt Darofit or loss).

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Amount at beginning of year -95 -88 -95 -88
Deferred profit/loss on new transactions -53 -61 -53 -61
Recognised in the income statement during the year 104 54 104 54
Amount at end of year -44 -95 -44 -95
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Determination of fair value from quoted market prices or valuation techniques
Fair value measurements are classified using adie hierarchy.

Level 1 consists of financial assets and finan@ailities valued using unadjusted quoted priceadtive markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This category includes listed bondsl ather securities, listed shares, exchange-treddedatives, as well as listed issued bonds and
other securities.

Level 2 consists of financial assets and finan@ailities which do not have quoted market pridegctly available from an active market, and
where fair values are estimated using valuatiohrtiegies or models, based wherever possible on assurs supported by observable market
prices or rates prevailing at the balance sheet date majority of NBF's OTC derivatives and seletiaer instruments not traded in active
markets fall within this category.

Level 3 consists of those types of financial instemts the fair values of which cannot be obtairieettly from quoted market prices or
indirectly using valuation techniques or modelsparted by observable market prices or rates. Bhienerally the case for private equity
instruments and private equity funds as well aséstain complex and/or structured financial instemts.

Group
Valuation
Quoted prices in Valuation technique using
active markets for technique using non-observable
same instrument observable dati data

31 Dec 2009, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets

Loans to credit institutions - 1,233 - 1,233
Loans to the public - - - -
Debt securitiels 2,051 138 - 2,189
Share$ 210 - 842 1,052
Derivatives 84 72,017 2,419 74,520
Other assets - 2,435 - 2,435
Prepaid expenses and accrued income - -5 - -5
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions - - - -
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - -
Debt securities in issue - 6,147 - 6,147
Derivatives 99 70,834 2,304 73,237
Other liabilities 15 2,130 - 2,145
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - 77 - 77

* Of which EUR 1,033m Treasury bills and EUR 1,156m Interest-bearing securities (the portion held at fair value in Note 40).

2 EUR 1m relates to the balance sheet item Financial instruments pledged as collateral.
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Group
Valuation
Quoted prices in Valuation technique using
active markets for technique using non-observable
same instrument observable dat data

31 Dec 2008, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets

Loans to credit institutions - 1,747 - 1,747
Loans to the public - - - -
Debt securitiels 759 685 - 1,444
Share$ 958 - 24 982
Derivatives 80 82,862 2,615 85,557
Other assets - 8,242 - 8,242
Prepaid expenses and accrued income - - - -
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions - 3,423 - 3,423
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - -
Debt securities in issue - 5,242 - 5,242
Derivatives 103 82,278 2,856 85,237
Other liabilities - 2,180 - 2,180

Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - -

 Of which EUR 691m Treasury bills and EUR 753m Interest-bearing securities (the portion held at fair value in Note 40).

2EUR 0m relates to the balance sheet item Financial instruments pledged as collateral.
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Parent company

Valuation

Valuation technique using
Instruments with technique using non-observable
quoted prices observable dat: data
31 Dec 2009, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Loans to credit institutions - 1,233 - 1,233
Loans to the public - - - -
Debt securitiels 2,051 138 - 2,189
Share$ 206 - 842 1,048
Derivatives 84 72,017 2,419 74,520
Other assets - 2,435 - 2,435
Prepaid expenses and accrued income - -5 - -5
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions - - - -
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - -
Debt securities in issue - 6,147 - 6,147
Derivatives 99 70,834 2,304 73,237
Other liabilities 15 2,130 - 2,145
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - 77 - 77
1 of which EUR 1,033m Treasury bills and EUR 1,156m Interest-bearing securities. (The portion held at fair value in Note 40.)
2EUR 1m relates to the balance sheet item Financial instruments pledged as collateral.
Valuation
Valuation technique using
Instruments with technique using non-observable
quoted prices observable dat: data
31 Dec 2008, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Loans to credit institutions - 1,747 - 1,747
Loans to the public - - - -
Debt securitiels 759 685 - 1,444
Share$ 958 - 23 981
Derivatives 80 82,862 2,615 85,557
Other assets - 8,242 - 8,242
Prepaid expenses and accrued income - - - -
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions - 3,423 - 3,423
Deposits and borrowings from the public - - - -
Debt securities in issue - 5,242 - 5,242
Derivatives 103 82,278 2,856 85,237
Other liabilities - 2,180 - 2,180
Accrued expenses and prepaid income - - - -
* Of which EUR 691m Treasury bills and EUR 753m Interest-bearing securities. (The portion held at fair value in Note 40.)
2EUR 0Om relates to the balance sheet item Financial instruments pledged as collateral.
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Movements in level 3
The following table shows a reconciliation of thEeaing and closing amount of level 3 financial &saed liabilities which are recorded at fair
value.

Group
Fair value gains/losses recognised
in the income statement
during the year

31 Dec 2009, EURm 1 Jan 2009 Realised Unrealised Purchases Sales
Assets

Shares 24 0 -5 2 -1
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) -242 228 111 - -

Transfers
into/out of Translation

31 Dec 2009, EURm Settlements level 3 differences 31 Dec 2009
Assets

Shares - 822 0 842
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) -228 344 -98 115

* Relates to those assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, NBF transferred shares from ldvehd level 2 to level 3 of the fair value hiergrchhe carrying amount of the total assets
transferred was EUR 822m. The reason for the tearisfim level 1 to level 3 is that the market fon® securities has become inactive, which
has led to a change in the method used to deteffaiinealue. The reason for the transfer from Ié&b level 3 is that inputs to the valuation
models ceased to be observable.

Fair value gains/losses recorded in the incomersiat during the year are included in "Net gaissés on items at fair value" (see note 5).

Parent company
Fair value gains/losses recognised
in the income statement
during the year

31 Dec 2009, EURm 1 Jan 2009 Realised Unrealised Purchases Sales
Assets
Shares 24 0 -5 2 -1
Derivatives -242 228 111 - -
Transfers
into/out of Translation
31 Dec 2009, EURm Settlements level 3 differences 31 Dec 2009
Assets
Shares - 822 0 842
Derivatives -228 344 -98 115

* Relates to those assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period.
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Note 41 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Sensitivity of level 3 financial instruments measwed at fair value to changes in key assumptions

Included in the fair value of financial instrumentsried at fair value on the balance sheet argetlestimated in full or in part using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are not segdmyr market observable prices or rates. Therebreayncertainty about a valuation,
resulting from the choice of valuation techniquemmdel used, the assumptions embedded in thoselsntue extent to which inputs are not
market observable, or as a result of other eleradfesting the valuation technique. Portfolio adijnents are applied to reflect such
uncertainties and are deducted from the fair vgweduced by the models or other valuation tectesdtor further information see Note 1
section 11 "Determination of fair value of finarldizgstruments").

This disclosure shows the potential impact of #ative uncertainty in the fair value of finandia$truments for which valuation is dependent
on unobservable input parameters. The estimatelsiesl below are likely to be greater than the tieertainty in fair value of these
instruments, as it is unlikely in practice thatwalobservable parameters would be simultaneousheagxtremes of their ranges of reasonably
possible alternatives. The disclosure is neithedigtive nor indicative of future movements in feadue.

The following table shows the sensitivity of thé& faalue of level 3 instruments to changes in kegumptions, by class of instruments. (Where
the exposure to an unobservable parameter is @itsess different instruments then only the netaictjis disclosed in the table.)

Group Parent company

Effect of Effect of Effect of Effect of

reasonably  reasonably reasonably  reasonably

possible possible possible possible

favourable unfavourable favourable unfavourable

Carrying alternative  alternative Carrying alternative alternative

31 Dec 2009, EURm amount assumption assumption amount assumption assumption
Assets

Shares 842 48 -48 842 48 -48

Derivatives 115 18 -31 115 18 -31

In order to calculate the effect on level 3 failues from altering the assumptions of the valuatémhnique or model the sensitivity to
unobservable input data is assessed. For the tlegsgortfolio key inputs that are based on pgaimodel assumptions or unobservability of
market data inputs are replaced by alternativenaséis or assumptions and impact on valuation caedpiihe majority of the effect on the
derivatives is related to various types of corfefeg or correlation related inputs in credit detives, in interest rate OTC derivatives or OTC
structured equity derivatives. For the level 3 fmiids of shares and debt securities the fair vafas increased and decreased within a range of
3-10 percentage units, which are assessed to senaale changes in market movements.
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Note 42 Assets and liabilities in foreign currenci

Group

EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 EUR SEK DKK NOK USD Other Total
Assets

Treasury bills 1,033 - - - - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 8,035 5,300 16,264 3,416 22,604 3,418 59,037
Loans to the public 58,418 613 140 105 4,580 1,867 65,723
Interest-bearing securities 5,227 0 878 0 1,735 33 7,873
Other assets 64,101 6,524 2,921 2,995 4,756 6,202 87,499
Total assets 136,814 12,437 20,203 6,516 33,675 11,520 221,165
Liabilities and equity

Deposits by credit institutions 19,557 256 101 125 20,654 3,651 44,344
Deposits and borrowings from the public 37,444 189 10 67 4,450 2,096 44,256
Debt securities in issue 8,102 2,244 558 302 22,046 6,024 39,276
Provisions 49 - - - - - 49
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 437 437
Other liabilities and equity 70,355 6,201 2,487 2,546 4,308 6,906 92,803
Total liabilities and equity 135,507 8,890 3,156 3,040 51,458 19,114 221,165
Position not reported in the balance sheet 253 954 661 900 -608 -610 1,550
Net position, currencies 1,560 4,501 17,708 4,376 -18,391 -8,204 1,550
Group

EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 EUR SEK DKK NOK UsSbD Other Total

Assets

Treasury bills 691 - - - - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 8,977 7,939 11,141 1616 13,788 3,986 47,447
Loans to the public 59,768 669 148 123 5,291 2,294 68,293
Interest-bearing securities 2,969 57 119 - 1,725 59 4,929
Other assets 66,438 10,251 4,131 5,655 8,333 3,793 98,601
Total assets 138,843 18,916 15,539 7,394 29,137 10,132 219,961
Liabilities and equity

Deposits by credit institutions 15,577 281 573 296 19,357 1,629 37,713
Deposits and borrowings from the public 39,296 134 28 41 3,703 2,077 45,279
Debt securities in issue 10,087 1,768 432 566 12,686 5,724 31,263
Provisions 56 - - - - 3 59

Subordinated liabilities 600 - - - 245 393 1,238
Other liabilities and equity 74,532 9,933 4,018 5,471 7,818 2,637 104,409
Total liabilities and equity 140,148 12,116 5,051 6,374 43,809 12,463 219,961
Position not reported in the balance sheet 2,607 -6,442  -10,771 -617 14,368 1,670 815

Net position, currencies 1,302 358 -283 403 -304 -661 815

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2009 101



Note 42 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, cont.

Parent company

EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 EUR SEK DKK NOK USD Other Total
Assets

Treasury bills 1,033 - - - - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 13,013 5,315 16,264 3,417 22,624 3,422 64,055
Loans to the public 52,870 595 140 104 4,559 1,784 60,052
Interest-bearing securities 5,227 0 878 0 1,735 33 7,873
Other assets 64,165 6,524 2,921 2,995 4,756 6,174 87,535
Total assets 136,308 12,434 20,203 6,516 33,674 11,413 220,548
Liabilities and equity

Deposits by credit institutions 19,530 256 101 125 20,654 3,618 44,284
Deposits and borrowings from the public 37,541 189 10 67 4,450 2,096 44,353
Debt securities in issue 8,102 2,244 558 302 22,046 6,024 39,276
Provisions 46 - - - - - 46
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 437 437
Other liabilities and equity 69,790 6,199 2,487 2,546 4,308 6,822 92,152
Total liabilities and equity 135,009 8,888 3,156 3,040 51,458 18,997 220,548
Position not reported in the balance sheet 253 954 661 900 -608 -610 1,550
Net position, currencies 1,552 4,500 17,708 4,376 -18,392 -8,194 1,550
Parent company

EURm, 31 Dec 2008 EUR SEK DKK NOK UsD Other Total
Assets

Treasury bills 691 - - - - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 14,137 7,939 11,141 1,616 13,802 3,994 52,629
Loans to the public 53,832 652 148 121 5,267 2,459 62,479
Interest-bearing securities 2,969 57 119 - 1,725 59 4,929
Other assets 66,539 10,251 4,130 5,655 8,333 3,776 98,684
Total assets 138,168 18,899 15,538 7,392 29,127 10,288 219,412
Liabilities and equity

Deposits by credit institutions 15,572 281 573 296 19,357 1,585 37,664
Deposits and borrowings from the public 39,383 134 28 41 3,703 2,077 45,366
Debt securities in issue 10,091 1,768 432 566 12,686 5,723 31,266
Provisions 53 - - - - 2 55
Subordinated liabilities 600 - - - 245 393 1,238
Other liabilities and equity 73,980 9,930 4,018 5,471 7,818 2,606 103,823
Total liabilities and equity 139,679 12,113 5,051 6,374 43,809 12,386 219,412
Position not reported in the balance sheet 2,607 -6,442  -10,770 -617 14,368 1,669 815
Net position, currencies 1,096 344 -283 401 -314 -429 815
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Note 43 Obtained collateral which is permitted to be sold or repledged

NBF obtains collaterals under reverse repurchadesacurities borrowing agreements which, undetetras of the agreements, can be sold or
repledged. The transactions are conducted undetasthagreements employed by financial marketsczants. Generally, the agreements
require additional collateral to be provided if tredue of the securities falls below a predetermiilesel. Under standard terms for most
repurchase transactions, the recipient of collaters an unrestricted right to sell or repledgsubject to returning equivalent securities on
settlement of the transactions. The fair valuehefgecurities obtained as collateral under reveysgrchase and securities borrowing
agreements is disclosed below.

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Reverse repurchase agreements
Received collaterals which can be repledged or sold 1,233 1,747 1,233 1,747
- of which repledged or sold 915 1,246 915 1,246
Securities borrowing agreements
Received collaterals which can be repledged or sold - - - -
- of which repledged or sold - - - -
Total 1,233 1,747 1,233 1,747
Note 44 Maturity analysis for assets and liabiliti ~ es
Group
Remaining maturity

Without
Payable oiMaximum 3-12 More thar fixed

EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 Note  demand 3 months months 1-5years 5years maturity Total
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 - - - - - 8,004
Treasury bills 13 - 0 236 797 - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 14 16,554 31,458 7,955 3,043 27 - 59,037
Loans to the public 14 35 8,790 6,901 21,646 28,351 - 65,723
Interest bearing securities 15 - 821 2,523 4,381 148 - 7,873
Derivatives 18 - 5,625 7,112 26,319 35,464 - 74,520
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - 2 23 93 23 - 141
Total assets with fixed maturities 24,593 46,696 24,750 56,279 64,013 - 216,331
Other assets 26 - - - - - 4,834 4,834
Total assets 24,593 46,696 24,750 56,279 64,013 4,834 221,165
Deposits by credit institutions 28 4,771 33,630 5,733 125 85 - 44,344
Deposits and borrowings from the public 29 30,594 9,818 3,174 668 2 - 44,256
- of which Deposits 30,594 9,816 3,143 634 2 - 44,189
- of which Borrowings - 2 31 34 0 - 67
Debt securities in issue 30 - 27,880 5,949 5,116 331 - 39,276
- of which Debt securities in issue - 27,880 5,949 5,116 331 - 39,276
- of which Other - - - - - - -
Derivatives 18 - 5195 7,175 26,716 34,151 - 73,237
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - 0 4 - 3 - 7
Subordinated liabilities 35 - - - 362 75 - 437
Total liabilities with fixed maturities 35,365 76,523 22,035 32,987 34,647 - 201,557
Other liabilties 31 - - - - - 8,636 8,636
Equity - - - - - 10,972 10,972
Total liabilities and equity 35,365 76,523 22,035 32,987 34,647 19,608 221,165
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Note 44 Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities, cont.

Group

Remaining maturity

Payable oiMaximum 3-12 More thar ~ Without
EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 Note  demand 3 months months 1-5years 5years maturity Total
Cash and balances with central banks 906 - - - - - 906
Treasury bills 13 - 0 0 691 - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 14 15,494 16,732 10,871 3,868 482 - 47,447
Loans to the public 14 421 14,854 5,801 18,206 29,011 - 68,293
Interest bearing securities 15 - 2,478 2,018 280 153 - 4,929
Derivatives 18 - 13,516 10,853 26,986 34,307 - 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - -12 45 101 23 - 157
Total assets with fixed maturities 16,821 47,568 29,588 50,132 63,976 - 208,085
Other assets 26 - - - - - 11,876 11,876
Total assets 16,821 47,568 29,588 50,132 63,976 11,876 219,961
Deposits by credit institutions 28 2,693 27,559 7,350 78 33 - 37,713
Deposits and borrowings from the public 29 27,978 11,927 5,023 350 - - 45,279
- of which Deposits 27,978 11,701 4,951 307 2 - 44,940
- of which Borrowings - 226 72 41 - - 339
Debt securities in issue 30 - 16,916 10,212 3,742 393 - 31,263
- of which Debt securities in issue - 16,916 10,212 3,742 393 - 31,263
- of which Other - - - - - - -
Derivatives 18 - 15,254 10,958 27,202 33,877 - 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - -7 20 - 3 - 16
Subordinated liabilities 35 - 640 205 - 393 - 1,238
Total liabilities with fixed maturities 30,671 72,289 33,768 31,371 34,701 - 202,800
Other liabilities 31 - - - - - 5,886 5,886
Equity - - - - - 11,275 11,275
Total liabilities and equity 30,671 72,289 33,768 31,371 34,701 17,161 219,961
Parent company
Remaining maturity

Payable oiMaximum 3-12 Morethan  Without
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 Note  demand 3 months months 1-5years 5years maturity Total
Cash and balances with central banks 8,004 - - - - - 8,004
Treasury bills 13 - 0 236 797 - - 1,033
Loans to credit institutions 14 16,535 35,166 8,470 3,847 36 - 64,054
Loans to the public 14 89 7,907 4871 18,946 28,240 - 60,053
Interest bearing securities 15 - 821 2,523 4,381 148 - 7,873
Derivatives 18 - 5,625 7,112 26,319 35,464 - 74,520
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - 2 23 93 23 - 141
Total assets with fixed maturities 24,628 49,521 23,235 54,383 63,911 - 215,678
Other assets 26 - - - - - 4,872 4,872
Total assets 24,628 49,521 23,235 54,383 63,911 4,872 220,550
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Note 44 Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities, cont.

Parent company

Remaining maturity

Payable oiMaximum 3-12 More thar ~ Without
EURmM, 31 Dec 2009 Note  demand 3 months months 1-5years 5years maturity Total
Deposits by credit institutions 28 4,771 33,627 5,678 125 84 - 44,285
Deposits and borrowings from the public 29 30,689 9,822 3,173 668 - 44,354
- of which Deposits 30,689 9,820 3,158 668 - 44,337
- of which Borrowings - 2 15 - - - 17
Debt securities in issue 30 - 27,880 5,949 5,116 331 - 39,276
- of which Debt securities in issue - 27,880 5,949 5,116 331 - 39,276
- of which Other - - - - - - -
Derivatives 18 - 5195 7,175 26,716 34,151 - 73,237
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - 0 4 - 3 - 7
Subordinated liabilities 35 - - - 362 75 - 437
Total liabilities with fixed maturities 35,460 76,524 21,979 32,987 34,646 - 201,596
Other liabilities 31 - - - - - 8,298 8,298
Equity - - - - - 10,656 10,656
Total liabilities and equity 35,460 76,524 21,979 32,987 34,646 18,954 220,550
Parent company
Remaining maturity

Payable oiMaximum 3-12 More thar ~ Without
EURmM, 31 Dec 2008 Note  demand 3 months months 1-5years 5years maturity Total
Cash and balances with central banks 906 - - - - - 906
Treasury bills 13 - 0 0 691 - - 691
Loans to credit institutions 14 15,491 20,416 11,477 4,751 494 - 52,629
Loans to the public 14 255 10,694 5,196 17,323 29,011 - 62,479
Interest bearing securities 15 - 2,478 2,018 280 153 - 4,929
Derivatives 18 - 13,516 10,853 26,986 34,307 - 85,662
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - -12 45 101 23 - 157
Total assets with fixed maturities 16,652 47,092 29,589 50,132 63,988 - 207,453
Other assets 26 - - - - - 11,959 11,959
Total assets 16,652 47,092 29,589 50,132 63,988 11,959 219,412
Deposits by credit institutions 28 2,693 27,510 7,350 78 33 - 37,664
Deposits and borrowings from the public 29 27,979 12,014 5,023 350 - - 45,366
- of which Deposits 27,979 11,787 4,951 307 2 - 45,026
- of which Borrowings - 227 72 41 - - 340
Debt securities in issue 30 - 16,919 10,212 3,742 393 - 31,266
- of which Debt securities in issue - 16,919 10,212 3,742 393 - 31,266
- of which Other - - - - - - -
Derivatives 18 - 15,254 10,958 27,202 33,877 - 87,291
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 19 - -7 20 - 3 - 16
Subordinated liabilities 35 - 640 205 - 393 - 1,238
Total liabilities with fixed maturities 30,672 72,330 33,768 31,372 34,699 - 202,841
Other liabilities 31 - - - - - 5,603 5,603
Equity - - - - - 10,968 10,968
Total liabilities and equity 30,672 72,330 33,768 31,372 34,699 16,571 219,412
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Note 45 Related-party transactions

Companies significantly influenced by key managenpensonnel in Nordea Group as well as companggsfiiantly influenced by close

family members to these key management personaeiomsidered to be related parties to Nordea. dieclun this group of related parties are
Nokia Oyj, Posten AB, Sampo Abp, Danisco A/S, Ikdatment Partners AB and TrygVesta A/S. Transastwith related companies are
made in Nordea's and the related companies' oydanarrse of business and on the same criteriaeantstas those for comparable transactions
with companies of similar standing. They did natalve more than normal risk-taking. The transadtiare therefore not included in the table
below.

Nordea Group associatec

Group Nordea Group undertakings undertakings Other related parties
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets
Loans 52,511 43,026 111 137 - -
Interest-bearing securities 0 - - 119 - -
Derivatives 976 990 109 202 - -
Investments in associated undertakings 0 - - 51 - -
Total assets 53,487 44,016 220 509 - -
Liabilities
Deposits 29,924 22,631 115 136 9 15
Debt securities in issue 632 465 - - - -
Derivatives 1,427 3,251 66 242 - -
Total liabilities 31,983 26,347 181 378 9 15
Off balance 251,029 145,942 2,983 4,516 - -
Group 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest income and interest expense
Interest income 403 1,967 2 6 - -
Interest expense 316 762 0 0 0 0
Net interest income and expense 87 1,205
Parent company Group undertakings Associated undertakings Other related parties
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets
Loans and receivables 5,150 5,489 111 113 - -
Interest-bearing securities - - - - - -
Derivatives - - - - - -
Investments in associated undertakings - - - 16 - -
Investments in group undertakings - 309 - - - -
Total assets 5,150 5,798 111 129 - -
Liabilities
Deposits 23 15 115 136 9 15
Debt securities in issue - 3 - - - -
Derivatives - - - - - -
Total liabilities 23 18 115 136 9 15
Off balance 346 444 54 50 - -
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Note 45 Related-party transactions, cont.

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest income and interest expense
Interest income 129 246 2 5 - -
Interest expense 0 1
Net interest income and expense 129 245

The terms "group undertakings" and "associated imkiags" refer to group undertakings and assodiatelertakings of the Nordea Bank
Finland Group. In addition to the parent compagyifes stated above, the parent company's assktdédaeceivables, interest-bearing
securities and derivatives from other Nordea gnanglertakings in the amount of EUR 59,647m (44,0l&)jlities in the amount of 31,946m
EUR m (26,292), net interest income in the amodiiWR 218m (1,208) and off-balance sheet commitmanthe amount of EUR 251,029m
(145,942), see Group's specification above. Offihe sheet transactions with Nordea group assdaiatgertakings amounted to EUR 2,929m
(4,465) and corresponding balance sheet valuesrofadives were EUR 109m (202) in assets and EUR @&812) in liabilities.

Compensations and loans and receivables to Key magement personnel
Compensations and loans and receivables to Keygeament personnel are specified in Note 8.

Note 46 Mergers, acquisitions, disposals and disso

lutions

Subsidiaries sold during 2009

Line of business

Total  Profit/loss for the year
assets, as included in the Bank
EURmM Group

Menox Palvelut Oy

Business and management consultancy

1 0

Total  Profit/loss for the year
assets, as included in the Bank

Subsidiaries dissolved during 2009 Line of business EURmM Group
Power Partners Oy Renting and leasing of other machinery,
equipment and tangible goods 2 0

Other subsidiaries merged during 2009

Number of companies

Total  Profit/loss for the year
assets, as included in the Bank
EURmM Group

Other companies

1

0 0

Total  Profit/loss for the year
assets, as included in the Bank

Associated undertakings dissolved during 2009 Line of business EURmM Group
Arfin Oy Business and management consultancy

activities 0 0
Eka-kiinteistot Oy Letting of other real estate 19 0
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Note 47 Credit risk disclosure

Credit risk management and credit risk analysgeicribed in the Risk, Liquidity and Capital marragat section of the Board of Directors”
Report. Additional information on credit risk isaldisclosed in the Capital and Risk managemenoiRépillar 3) 2009, which is available on

www.nordea.com.

Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss if cemiarts fail to fulfil their agreed obligations atie pledged collateral does not cover the claims.
Credit risk stems mainly from various forms of lerg] but also from guarantees and documentarytsretbunterparty credit risk in derivatives
contracts, transfer risk attributable to the transf money from another country and settlemeht ris

Information on credit risk in lending is disclosedhe Risk, Liquidity and Capital management sectf the Board of Directors” Report.
Information on credit risk in interest-bearing setbes is found below, as well as some additionfdiimation on loans and collaterals.

Interest-bearing securities and Treasury bills

Group Parent company
31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008
At At At At
At fair amortised At fair amortised At fair amortised At fair amortised
EURM value cost value cost  value cost value cost
State and sovereigns 1,065 150 691 - 1,065 150 691 -
Municipalities and other public bodies - 66 - 9 - 66 -
Mortgage institutions 17 3,293 14 12 17 3,293 14 12
Other credit institutions 1,028 3,274 590 4,164 1,028 3,274 590 4,164
Corporates 70 - 78 - 70 - 78 -
Corporates, sub-investment grade - 5 - - - 5 -
Other - - - - - - - -
Total 2,189 6,717 1,444 4,176 2,189 6,717 1,444 4,176
Loans to corporate customers, by size of loan
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 % 2008 % 2009 % 2008 %
0-10 17,310 53.4 18,491 50.0 15,721 53.4 16,942 50.0
10-50 8,309 25.6 9,619 26.0 7,547 25.6 8,813 26.0
50-100 3,764 11.6 4,057 11.0 3,418 11.6 3,717 11.0
100-250 2,581 8.0 3,825 10.3 2,345 8.0 3,504 10.3
250-500 448 14 980 2.7 407 14 898 2.7
500- - - - - - - - -
Total 32,412 100,0 36,972 100,0 29,438 100,0 33,874 100,0
Restructured loans current year
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans before restructuring, carrying amount 0 1 0 1
Loans after restructuring, carrying amount 0 1 0 1
Assets taken over for protection of claims
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current assets, carrying amount:
Land and buildings 3 0 0 0
Shares and other participations 0 - 0 -
Other assets 4 1 -
Total 7 1 0
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Note 47 Credit risk disclosure,cont.

Past due loans, excl impaired loans

Group Parent company

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

Corporate Household Corporate Household Corporate Household Corporate Household

EURM customers customers customers customers customers customers customers customers
6-30 days 98 249 124 200 34 211 57 169
31-60 days 75 157 131 157 38 102 78 104
61-90 days 45 69 83 59 31 43 72 35
>90 days 89 0 13 - 89 0 13 -
Total 307 475 351 416 192 356 220 308
Past due not impaired/loans in % 095 145 0.95 1.35 0.65 1.19 0.65 1.10

Note 48 Nordea shares

Nordea Bank Finland Plc does not possess own sHaueisg the year Nordea Bank Finland has bougttsmtd shares in its parent company
Nordea Bank AB (publ) as part of its normal tradargl marketmaking activities. The trades are sjgekif the table enclosed.

Acquisitions
Month Quantity Average acq.price Amount, EUR
January 605,300 4.01 2,424,939.60
February 260,002 4.15 1,078,908.58
March 116,400 3.93 457,482.00
April 250,269 4.12 1,031,627.74
May 63,550 5.54 352,038.73
June 330,300 453 1,496,564.00
July 52,000 5.48 285,128.00
August 179,119 6.81 1,218,918.19
September 1,719,226 3.16 5,432,087.85
October 82,622 7.17 592,419.38
November 86,800 7.20 624,699.60
December 34,400 7.05 242,511.00
3,779,988 15,237,324.67
Sales
Month Quantity Average price Amount, EUR
January -601,000 4.10 -2,466,474.00
February -386,751 5.74 -2,219,104.21
March -214,941 4.39 -942,708.55
April -153,381 4.73 -724,738,03
May -40,541 5.96 -241,523.44
June -461,800 4.20 -1,941,142.08
July -706,221 5.83 -4,118,946.16
August -331,186 6.98 -2,313,130.31
September -913,838 5.93 -5,417,712.83
October -64,564 7.07 -456,463.90
November -94,400 7.27 -686,651.00
December -108,600 7.15 -776,502.00
-4,077,223 -22,305,096.51

The quota value of the Nordea Bank AB (publ) shisfeUR 1.00. The trades had an insignificant eféecthe shareholding and voting-power
in Nordea Bank AB (publ). At year-end 2009 NBF odmmshares of the parent company.
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The proposal of the Board of Directors to the Annua | General Meeting

The parent company'’s distributable funds on 31 Dés=r 2009 were EUR 7,738,115,525.15, of which toditp
for the year was EUR 986,815,297.35. The Boardioddiors proposes that

1. adividend of EUR 600,000,000.00 be paid and
2. EUR 200,000.00 be reserved for public good purposes
3. whereafter the distributable funds will be EUR 7,035,525.15.

Signatures of the Directors’ report and of the Rimal Statements:

Helsinki, 26 February 2010

Christian Clausen
Carl-Johan Granvik Michael Rasmussen

Fredrik Rystedt Peter Schitze

Our auditors’ report has been issued today.

Helsinki, 26 February 2010

KPMG OY AB

Raija-Leena Hankonen
Authorised Public Accountant
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Auditors’ report
This document is an English translation of the Swedish auditor's report. Only the Swedish version of the report is legally binding.

To the Annual General Meeting of Nordea Bank Finland Plc

We have audited the accounting records, the fimhstatements, the report of the Board of Directond the
administration of Nordea Bank Finland PlIc for tlemyended on 31 December, 2009. The financialrstatts
comprise the consolidated and parent company'sibalaheet, income statement, statement of comps®een
income, statement of changes in equity, cash flatesent and notes to the financial statements.

The Responsibility of the Board of Directors and kftanaging Director

The Board of Directors and the Managing Directaer r@sponsible for the preparation of the finansiatements
and the report of the Board of Directors and fer fdir presentation of the consolidated and pasemtpany’s
financial statements in accordance with Internatidtinancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopyettie EU,
as well as for the fair presentation of the repdthe Board of Directors in accordance with lawd aegulations
governing the preparation of the report of the BlazfrDirectors in Finland. The Board of Directosgésponsible
for the appropriate arrangement of the controhef¢ompany’s accounts and finances, and the Mag&jnector
shall see to it that the accounts of the compaeyracompliance with the law and that its finanaifihirs have
been arranged in a reliable manner.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to perform an audit in acamde with good auditing practice in Finland, anéxpress an
opinion on the parent company’s financial statesiem the consolidated financial statements anth@meport of
the Board of Directors based on our audit. Goodtugdpractice requires that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit toimlbéasonable assurance whether the financialnséatts and
the report of the Board of Directors are free fnmaterial misstatement and whether the memberssddttard of
Directors and the Managing Director have complidgtth ¢he Finnish Credit Institutions Act and the lified
Liability Companies Act.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidifevidence about the amounts and disclosurtieein
financial statements and the report of the Boarmioéctors. The procedures selected depend onuithiéoa's
judgment, including the assessment of the riskwaterial misstatement of the financial statememitsgther due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessmemésatditor considers internal control relevanti éntity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the finansiatements in order to design audit proceduresatigaappropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evalgahe appropriateness of accounting policiesl e the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made bygeraeat, as well as evaluating the overall presientaf the
financial statements and the report of the Boaditdctors.

The audit was performed in accordance with goodtiagdoractice in Finland. We believe that the awdidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriatertwvige a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion on the consolidated and the parent compafigancial statements and the report of the Ba#rd
Directors

In our opinion, the consolidated and parent com{safityancial statements give a true and fair vidwhe financial
position, financial performance and cash flowshaf group and the parent company in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFBRSadopted by the EU. The report of the Board oéd@ors
gives a true and fair view of the financial perfamae and financial position of the group and themacompany
in accordance with the laws and regulations gowegrttie preparation of the report of the Board a€Btors in
Finland. The information in the report of the BoafdDirectors is consistent with the informationtie financial
statements.

Opinion on the discharge from liability and dispbe&distributable funds

The consolidated and the parent company’s finarstéaéments can be adopted and the members obtrel Bf
Directors and the Managing Director of the paremhpany can be discharged from liability for theipérudited
by us. The proposal by the Board of Directors rdigay the disposal of distributable funds is in cdimmce with
the Limited Liability Companies Act.

Helsinki, 26 February 2010
KPMG OY AB

Raija-Leena Hankonen
Authorized Public Accountant
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Board of Directors and auditors

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland
Plc comprises the President and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Nordea Group, Christian
Clausen, and four members.

The President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc is Carl-
Johan Granvik and Ari Kaperi acts as his deputy.

Board of Directors 31 December 2009

Christian Clausen

Born 1955. President and Group Chief Executive
Officer of Nordea. Chairman of the Board since
2007. Member since 2002.

Carl-Johan Granvik

Born 1949. President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc.
Vice Chairman of the Board since 2008. Chief Risk
Officer and Head of Group Credit and Risk Control.
Country Senior Executive in Finland. Member since
1995.

Michael Rasmussen

Born 1964. Head of Banking Products & Group
Operations. Member since 2008.

Auditors
KPMG Oy Ab

Auditor with main responsibility
Raija-Leena Hankonen
Authorised Public Accountant
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Auditors

The Annual General Meeting of Nordea Bank Finland
Plc elects the company’s auditors for a periodref o
year at a time. The auditor must be an audit firm
authorised by the Finnish Chamber of Commerce.

Fredrik Rystedt

Born 1963. Chief Financial Officer and Head of Grou
Corporate Centre. Member since 2008.

Peter Schiitze

Born 1948. Head of Nordic Banking in Nordea.
Country Senior Executive in Denmark. Member since
2002.
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Corporate Governance Report 2009
Application by Nordea Bank Finland Plc

Nordea Bank Finland Plc as an issuer of bonds dsbmi
this report for the first time. This report has bee
prepared following recommendation 51 in the Finnish
Corporate Governance Code and the report is
submitted as a separate report from the Annual Repo
20009.

Nordea Bank Finland PlIc is a wholly-owned subsidiar
of Nordea Bank AB (publ), the listed parent company
of the whole Nordea Group. The Nordea Group is
referred to as “Nordea”. A description of corporate
governance in Nordea during the most recent firs@nci
year is included in the 2009 Annual Report of Narde
Bank AB (publ). All the operations of Nordea Bank
Finland PIc are integrated into the operationsef t
Nordea Group. Nordea has established the Corporate
Governance framework at group level and the
framework is reviewed on a continuous basis.
Information on Corporate Governance in Nordea and
this report are available amww.nordea.com

Good corporate governance facilitates sound styateg
and competent management, gives competitive edge
and enhances the trust in the capital market. Norde
follows generally adopted principles of corporate
governance including the rules and principles eeghf
in the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance.
Although the codes differ in details between the
countries, they are all based on the general
international development and common Nordic
approach within this field and thus show a fundatalen
resemblance to one another.

Nordea Bank AB (publ) has a separate Board Audit
Committee. The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank
Finland Plc has reviewed this Corporate Governance
Report.

This Corporate Governance Report describes the main
features of the internal control and risk managemen
systems regarding the financial reporting process i
Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Report on the key aspects of the systems for inteah
control and risk management regarding financial
reports for the Financial Year 2009

Nordea Bank Finland Plc belongs to the Nordea Group
and the internal control and risk management system
in relation to the financial reporting process are
organised at Nordea level. Financial reporting
processes are fully integrated within Nordea. The
Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Plc is
monitoring financial and risk reporting at Nordearik
Finland PIc level.
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The systems for internal control and risk managemen
over financial reporting are designed to give reabde
assurance concerning reliability of financial rejpay
and the preparation of financial statements foermms!
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, applicable laws and regois]
and other applicable requirements for listed corgsan
and issuers of bonds. The internal control and risk
management activities are included in Nordea’s
planning and resource allocation processes. Irterna
control and risk management over financial repgrtin
in Nordea can be described in accordance with the
following framework:

Control Environment

Internal control in Nordea is based on the control
environment, which includes the following elements:
Values and management culture, goal-orientation and
follow-up, a clear and transparent organisational
structure, segregation of duties, the four-eyesciple,
quality and efficiency of internal communicatiordan

an independent evaluation process. The documentatio
of the internal control framework consists of Group
directives and supporting instructions covering the
financial and administrative business processes in
Nordea. Nordea Bank Finland Plc complies with the
above mentioned Group directives and supporting
instructions from applicable parts.

Risk Assessment

Management of risks within Nordea is proactive,
emphasising training and risk awareness. Nordea
maintains a high standard of risk management,
applying available techniques and methodology in a
cost efficient way. Risk management is considered a
integrated part of running the business.

Control Activities

The control activities include general as well agen
detailed controls, which aim at preventing, revegli
and correcting errors and deviations. The control
activities are prepared and documented at grougd,lev
at business area level as well as unit level. The
procedures cover the initial registration of each
transaction and the subsequent IT processing. The
heads of the respective units in Nordea are priynari
responsible for managing the risks associated thith
operations and financial reporting processes ofittie
The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Plc
has dealt with the risk reports on Nordea Bankdridl
Plc level.
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Information & Communication

The Group Accounting Manual and the Financial
Control Principles constitute the main tools for
accounting and financial reporting principles ispect
of providing financial reporting and internal cauitr
information and instructions, as well as beinglihsis
for updating standard operating procedures. They
include a standard reporting package used by all
entities to ensure consistent use of Nordea's jplies
and coordinated financial reporting. Matters affegt
the achievement of financial reporting objectives a
communicated with outside parties, where Nordea
actively participates in relevant national fora, fo
example fora established by Financial Supervisory
Authorities, Central Banks, and associations for
financial institutions.

Monitoring

Nordea has established a process with the purgose o
ensuring a proper monitoring of the quality of the
financial reporting and the follow-up regarding
possible deficiencies.

The CEO of Nordea annually issues a report to the
Board of Directors of Nordea Bank AB (publ) on the
quality of internal control in Nordea. This intetna
control report is based oimter alia, an internal control
process checklist and a hierarchical reporting doge
the whole organisation. Internal control and risk
assessment regarding financial reporting is incluake
one of several focus categories in this process.
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Group Internal Audit (GIA) is an independent fuocti
commissioned by the Board of Directors of Nordea
Bank AB (publ). The Board Audit Committee is
responsible for guidance and evaluation of GIA. The
internal auditing work provides assurance on tlaat p

of Nordea’s control system, which is essentialtfer
external auditors’ assessment of the financial
statements. GIA annually issues an assurance satem
to the Board of Directors on the risk management,
control and governance processes of the NordeapGrou

The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Plc
approves the Group Internal Audit Annual Plan for
Nordea Group and deals with the Group Internal Audi
Annual Report on Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

The Audit Committee also assists the Board of
Directors of Nordea Bank AB (publ) in fulfillingst
oversight responsibilities inter alia by monitorithg
Nordea Group’s financial reporting process, the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of GIA,
keeping itself informed as to the statutory auflihe
annual and consolidated accounts, and by reviewing
and monitoring the impartiality and independence of
the external auditors, and in particular the prioviof
additional services to the Group.

This Corporate Governance Report, including the
Report on the key aspects of the systems for iatern
control and risk management regarding financial
reports, has not been reviewed by the externat@nsdi
and it is not part of the formal financial statersen
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